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AGENDA
JAMES CITY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR MEETING
County Government Center Board Room
101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
December 8, 2020
5:00 PM

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

MOMENT OF SILENCE

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

PRESENTATIONS

1.  Chairman's Awards

2. James City County Audit Report (including JCSA Audit)

3. Elections Update

4. 2020 Employee Engagement Survey Results

PUBLIC COMMENT

CONSENT CALENDAR

1 Minutes Adoption

2. Appointment and Authorization of Police Powers for Assistant Fire Marshal Jared Randall
3. Authorization of Two Percent General Wage Increase

4 Fire Department Overhire Authorization

5 Grant Award - Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act Broadband Funding -

$88,196

6.  Grant Award - Virginia Department of Environmental Quality Fiscal Year 2021 Litter Grant -
$12,632

7. Grant Award - HUD CARES Act Housing Assistance Payments - $47,643
Participation in the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act Delinquent Utility Bill
Grant Program as Fiscal Agent

PUBLIC HEARING(S)

BOARD CONSIDERATION(S)

1.

Authorization for an Application Support Analyst Position and Related Budget Appropriation

BOARD REQUESTS AND DIRECTIVES

REPORTS OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

CLOSED SESSION

1.

2.

Consideration of a personnel matter, the appointment of individuals to County Boards and/or
Commission pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia

Re-Appointment to the Historic Triangle Bicycle Advisory Committee



Appointment to the Chesapeake Bay Board and Wetlands Board

4.  Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, or of the
disposition of publicly held real property, including but not limited to the terms of the lease of
WISC, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the bargaining position or
negotiating strategy of the public body, pursuant to Section 2.2-3711 (A)(3) of the Code of
Virginia

M. ADJOURNMENT

1. Adjourn until 4 p.m. on January 4, 2021 for the Organizational Meeting
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REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS WITH THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE

To the Board of Supervisors
County of James City, Virginia
Williamsburg, Virginia

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of County of James
City, Virginia (the “County”) for the year ended June 30, 2020. Professional standards require that we
provide you with information about our responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the
planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such information in our letter to you dated
August 5, 2020. Professional standards also require that we communicate to you the following information
related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters
Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by County are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2020. We noted no
transactions entered into by the County during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance
or consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper
period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management, and are
based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events, and assumptions about
future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ
significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the financial statements were:

e The useful lives of capital assets and the allowance for uncollectible accounts are based on
management’s knowledge and judgment, which is based on history.

e The other post-employment benefits liabilities are based on an actuary engaged by the Virginia
Retirement System and an actuarial study provided by the County’s external actuarial firm.

e The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on historical records and an analysis of the
collectability of accounts.

e The net pension liability is based on an actuarial study performed by an actuary engaged by the
Virginia Retirement System.

We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used to develop these estimates in determining that it is
reasonable in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. The most sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements include those related to:

o Note 6 - Capital Assets
o Note 9 - Long-Term Liabilities
¢ Note 16 - Commitments and Contingencies
e Note 18 - COVID-19
The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all misstatements identified during the audit, other than
those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. We are pleased to
report that all audit adjustments were either reclassifications for financial reporting purposes or were
provided by County finance staff. There were no uncorrected misstatements or omitted disclosures.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a financial
accounting, reporting, or auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be
significant to the financial statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such
disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter included in Appendix A.

Management Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the County’s financial statements or a determination of the type
of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the County’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to Management’s Discussion and Analysis and the other Required
Supplementary Information as identified on the Table of Contents, which are required supplementary
information (RSI) that supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries
of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the RSI and
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

We were engaged to report on the Supplementary Information as identified in the Table of Contents and
the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and related notes, which accompany the financial
statements but are not RSI. With respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of
management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that
the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the information is appropriate and
complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared and reconciled the
supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the financial statements
or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory Section or the Statistical Section, which accompany
the financial statements but are not RSI. Such information has not been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Supervisors and management of the County
of James City, Virginia, and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these
specified parties.

Sincerely,
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Newport News, Virginia
December 8, 2020

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

In this section, we would like to make you aware of certain confirmed and potential changes that are on the horizon
that may affect your financial reporting and audit. The effective dates below are updated based on Statement No.
95, Postponement of the Effective Dates of Certain Authoritative Guidance due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

The GASB issued Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities in January 2017. The objective of this Statement is to
improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes
and how those activities should be reported.

This Statement establishes criteria for identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus
of the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets of the fiduciary activity and (2) the
beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify fiduciary
component units and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.

An activity meeting the criteria should be reported in a fiduciary fund in the basic financial statements. Governments
with activities meeting the criteria should present a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes
in fiduciary net position. An exception to that requirement is provided for a business-type activity that normally
expects to hold custodial assets for three months or less.

This Statement describes four fiduciary funds that should be reported, if applicable: (1) pension (and other employee
benefit) trust funds, (2) investment trust funds, (3) private-purpose trust funds, and (4) custodial funds. Custodial
funds generally should report fiduciary activities that are not held in a trust or equivalent arrangement that meets
specific criteria.

A fiduciary component unit, when reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements of a primary government,
should combine its information with its component units that are fiduciary component units and aggregate that
combined information with the primary government’s fiduciary funds.

This Statement also provides for recognition of a liability to the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fund when an event has
occurred that compels the government to disburse fiduciary resources. Events that compel a government to disburse
fiduciary resources occur when a demand for the resources has been made or when no further action, approval, or
condition is required to be taken or met by the beneficiary to release the assets.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases in June 2017. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition
of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as
inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are financings of the right to use an
underlying asset. Under this Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-
use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby
enhancing the relevance and consistency of information about governments’ leasing activities.

Definition of a Lease

A lease is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another entity’s nonfinancial asset (the
underlying asset) as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.
Examples of nonfinancial assets include buildings, land, vehicles, and equipment. Any contract that meets this
definition should be accounted for under the leases guidance, unless specifically excluded in this Statement.

Lease Term

The lease term is defined as the period during which a lessee has a noncancelable right to use an underlying asset,
plus the following periods, if applicable:

a. Periods covered by a lessee’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant
factors, that the lessee will exercise that option.

b. Periods covered by a lessee’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant
factors, that the lessee will not exercise that option.

c. Periods covered by a lessor’s option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant
factors, that the lessor will exercise that option.

d. Periods covered by a lessor’s option to terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant
factors, that the lessor will not exercise that option.

A fiscal funding or cancellation clause should affect the lease term only when it is reasonably certain that the clause
will be exercised.

Lessees and lessors should reassess the lease term only if one or more of the following occur:
a. The lessee or lessor elects to exercise an option even though it was previously determined that it was

reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would not exercise that option.

b. The lessee or lessor elects not to exercise an option even though it was previously determined that it was
reasonably certain that the lessee or lessor would exercise that option.

c. An event specified in the lease contract that requires an extension or termination of the lease takes place.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

Short-Term Leases

A short-term lease is defined as a lease that, at the commencement of the lease term, has a maximum possible term
under the lease contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of
being exercised. Lessees and lessors should recognize short-term lease payments as outflows of resources or inflows
of resources, respectively, based on the payment provisions of the lease contract.

Lessee Accounting

A lessee should recognize a lease liability and a lease asset at the commencement of the lease term, unless the lease
is a short-term lease or it transfers ownership of the underlying asset. The lease liability should be measured at the
present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term (less any lease incentives). The lease asset
should be measured at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any payments made to the
lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term and certain direct costs.

A lessee should reduce the lease liability as payments are made and recognize an outflow of resources (for example,
expense) for interest on the liability. The lessee should amortize the lease asset in a systematic and rational manner
over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the underlying asset. The notes to financial statements should
include a description of leasing arrangements, the amount of lease assets recognized, and a schedule of future lease
payments to be made.

Lessor Accounting

A lessor should recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources at the commencement of the lease
term, with certain exceptions for leases of assets held as investments, certain regulated leases, short-term leases,
and leases that transfer ownership of the underlying asset. A lessor should not derecognize the asset underlying the
lease. The lease receivable should be measured at the present value of lease payments expected to be received during
the lease term. The deferred inflow of resources should be measured at the value of the lease receivable plus any
payments received at or before the commencement of the lease term that relate to future periods.

A lessor should recognize interest revenue on the lease receivable and an inflow of resources (for example, revenue)
from the deferred inflows of resources in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the lease. The notes to
financial statements should include a description of leasing arrangements and the total amount of inflows of
resources recognized from leases.

Contracts with Multiple Components and Contract Combinations

Generally, a government should account for the lease and nonlease components of a lease as separate contracts. If
a lease involves multiple underlying assets, lessees and lessors in certain cases should account for each underlying
asset as a separate lease contract. To allocate the contract price to different components, lessees and lessors should
use contract prices for individual components as long as they do not appear to be unreasonable based on professional
judgment, or use professional judgment to determine their best estimate if there are no stated prices or if stated
prices appear to be unreasonable. If determining a best estimate is not practicable, multiple components in a lease
contract should be accounted for as a single lease unit. Contracts that are entered into at or near the same time with
the same counterparty and that meet certain criteria should be considered part of the same lease contract and should
be evaluated in accordance with the guidance for contracts with multiple components.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

Lease Modifications and Terminations

An amendment to a lease contract should be considered a lease modification, unless the lessee’s right to use the
underlying asset decreases, in which case it would be a partial or full lease termination. A lease termination should
be accounted for by reducing the carrying values of the lease liability and lease asset by a lessee, or the lease
receivable and deferred inflows of resources by the lessor, with any difference being recognized as a gain or loss.
A lease modification that does not qualify as a separate lease should be accounted for by remeasuring the lease
liability and adjusting the related lease asset by a lessee and remeasuring the lease receivable and adjusting the
related deferred inflows of resources by a lessor.

Subleases and Leaseback Transactions

Subleases should be treated as transactions separate from the original lease. The original lessee that becomes the
lessor in a sublease should account for the original lease and the sublease as separate transactions, as a lessee and
lessor, respectively.

A transaction qualifies for sale-leaseback accounting only if it includes a sale. Otherwise, it is a borrowing. The
sale and lease portions of a transaction should be accounted for as separate sale and lease transactions, except that
any difference between the carrying value of the capital asset that was sold and the net proceeds from the sale should
be reported as a deferred inflow of resources or a deferred outflow of resources and recognized over the term of the
lease.

A lease-leaseback transaction should be accounted for as a net transaction. The gross amounts of each portion of
the transaction should be disclosed.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021.

The GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings and
Direct Placements in March 2018. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve the information that is
disclosed in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct
placements. It also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing information related to
debt.

This Statement defines debt for purposes of disclosure in notes to financial statements as a liability that arises from
a contractual obligation to pay cash (or other assets that may be used in lieu of cash) in one or more payments to
settle an amount that is fixed at the date the contractual obligation is established.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt be disclosed in notes to financial
statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt
agreements related to significant events of default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events
with finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.

For notes to financial statements related to debt, this Statement also requires that existing and additional information
be provided for direct borrowings and direct placements of debt separately from other debt.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2019.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB issued Statement No. 90, Majority Equity Interests, an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and
No. 61 in August 2018. This Statement improves the consistency and comparability of reporting a government’s
majority equity interest in a legally separate organization and improves the relevance of financial statement
information for certain component units. It defines a majority equity interest and specifies that a majority equity
interest in a legally separate organization should be reported as an investment if a government’s holding of the
equity interest meets the definition of an investment. A majority equity interest that meets the definition of an
investment should be measured using the equity method, unless it is held by a special-purpose government engaged
only in fiduciary activities, a fiduciary fund, or an endowment (including permanent and term endowments) or
permanent fund. Those governments and funds should measure the majority equity interest at fair value.

For all other holdings of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization, a government should report
the legally separate organization as a component unit, and the government or fund that holds the equity interest
should report an asset related to the majority equity interest using the equity method. This Statement establishes
that ownership of a majority equity interest in a legally separate organization results in the government being
financially accountable for the legally separate organization and, therefore, the government should report that
organization as a component unit.

This Statement also requires that a component unit in which a government has a 100 percent equity interest account
for its assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources at acquisition value at the
date the government acquired a 100 percent equity interest in the component unit. Transactions presented in flows
statements of the component unit in that circumstance should include only transactions that occurred subsequent to
the acquisition.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The
requirements should be applied retroactively, except for the provisions related to (1) reporting a majority equity
interest in a component unit and (2) reporting a component unit if the government acquires a 100 percent equity
interest. Those provisions should be applied on a prospective basis.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB issued Statement No. 91, Conduit Debt Obligations in May 2019. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by issuers and eliminate diversity in
practice associated with (1) commitments extended by issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt
obligations, and (3) related note disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a liability of the issuer;
establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of additional commitments and voluntary
commitments extended by issuers and arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations; and improving
required note disclosures.

A conduit debt obligation is defined as a debt instrument having all of the following characteristics:

e There are at least three parties involved: (1) an issuer, (2) a third-party obligor, and (3) a debt holder or
a debt trustee.

e The issuer and the third-party obligor are not within the same financial reporting entity.

e The debt obligation is not a parity bond of the issuer, nor is it cross-collateralized with other debt of the
issuer.

e The third-party obligor or its agent, not the issuer, ultimately receives the proceeds from the debt
issuance.

e The third-party obligor, not the issuer, is primarily obligated for the payment of all amounts associated
with the debt obligation (debt service payments).

All conduit debt obligations involve the issuer making a limited commitment. Some issuers extend additional
commitments or voluntary commitments to support debt service in the event the third party is, or will be, unable to
do so.

An issuer should not recognize a conduit debt obligation as a liability. However, an issuer should recognize a
liability associated with an additional commitment or a voluntary commitment to support debt service if certain
recognition criteria are met. As long as a conduit debt obligation is outstanding, an issuer that has made an additional
commitment should evaluate at least annually whether those criteria are met. An issuer that has made only a limited
commitment should evaluate whether those criteria are met when an event occurs that causes the issuer to reevaluate
its willingness or ability to support the obligor’s debt service through a voluntary commitment.

This Statement also addresses arrangements—often characterized as leases—that are associated with conduit debt
obligations. In those arrangements, capital assets are constructed or acquired with the proceeds of a conduit debt
obligation and used by third-party obligors in the course of their activities. Payments from third-party obligors are
intended to cover and coincide with debt service payments. During those arrangements, issuers retain the titles to
the capital assets. Those titles may or may not pass to the obligors at the end of the arrangements.

Issuers should not report those arrangements as leases, nor should they recognize a liability for the related conduit
debt obligations or a receivable for the payments related to those arrangements. In addition, the following provisions
apply:
o If the title passes to the third-party obligor at the end of the arrangement, an issuer should not recognize
a capital asset.
o If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of the entire
capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer should not recognize a capital asset until the
arrangement ends.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

o If the title does not pass to the third-party obligor and the third party has exclusive use of only portions
of the capital asset during the arrangement, the issuer, at the inception of the arrangement, should
recognize the entire capital asset and a deferred inflow of resources. The deferred inflow of resources
should be reduced, and an inflow recognized, in a systematic and rational manner over the term of the
arrangement.

This Statement requires issuers to disclose general information about their conduit debt obligations, organized by
type of commitment, including the aggregate outstanding principal amount of the issuers’ conduit debt obligations
and a description of each type of commitment. Issuers that recognize liabilities related to supporting the debt service
of conduit debt obligations also should disclose information about the amount recognized and how the liabilities
changed during the reporting period.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021.

The GASB issued Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020 in January 2020. The primary objectives of this Statement
are to enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the consistency of authoritative
literature by addressing practice issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain
GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a variety of topics and includes specific provisions about the
following:

o The effective date of Statement No. 87, Leases, and Implementation Guide No. 2019-3, Leases, for
interim financial reports.

e Reporting of intra-entity transfers of assets between a primary government employer and a component
unit defined benefit pension plan or defined benefit other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plan.

e The applicability of Statements No. 73, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions and Related
Assets That Are Not within the Scope of GASB Statement 68, and Amendments to Certain Provisions
of GASB Statements 67 and 68, as amended, and No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, as amended, to reporting assets accumulated for
postemployment benefits.

e The applicability of certain requirements of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities, to postemployment
benefit arrangements.

e Measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) related to asset retirement obligations (AROS) in a
government acquisition.

Reporting by public entity risk pools for amounts that are recoverable from reinsurers or excess insurers

o Reference to nonrecurring fair value measurements of assets or liabilities in authoritative literature.
Terminology used to refer to derivative instruments.

The requirements related to the effective date of Statement 87 and Implementation Guide 2019-3, reinsurance
recoveries, and terminology used to refer to derivative instruments are effective upon issuance. The requirements
related to intra-entity transfers of assets and those related to the applicability of Statements 73 and 74 and
application of Statement 84 to postemployment benefit arrangements and those related to nonrecurring fair value
measurements of assets or liabilities are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. The
requirements related to the measurement of liabilities (and assets, if any) associated with AROs in a government
acquisition are effective for government acquisitions occurring in reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2021.
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ACCOUNTING AND OTHER MATTERS
June 30, 2020

NEW GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates in March 2020. Some governments
have entered into agreements in which variable payments made or received depend on an interbank offered rate
(IBOR)—most notably, the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR). As a result of global reference rate reform,
LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of 2021, prompting governments to amend or
replace financial instruments for the purpose of replacing LIBOR with other reference rates, by either changing the
reference rate or adding or changing fallback provisions related to the reference rate.

Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative Instruments, as amended, requires a
government to terminate hedge accounting when it renegotiates or amends a critical term of a hedging derivative
instrument, such as the reference rate of a hedging derivative instrument’s variable payment. In addition, in
accordance with Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended, replacement of the rate on which variable payments depend
in a lease contract would require a government to apply the provisions for lease modifications, including
remeasurement of the lease liability or lease receivable.

The objective of this Statement is to address those and other accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an IBOR. This Statement achieves that objective by:

e Providing exceptions for certain hedging derivative instruments to the hedge accounting termination
provisions when an IBOR is replaced as the reference rate of the hedging derivative instrument’s
variable payment.

o Clarifying the hedge accounting termination provisions when a hedged item is amended to replace the
reference rate.

e Clarifying that the uncertainty related to the continued availability of IBORs does not, by itself, affect
the assessment of whether the occurrence of a hedged expected transaction is probable.

e Removing LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate for the qualitative evaluation of the
effectiveness of an interest rate swap.

e Identifying a Secured Overnight Financing Rate and the Effective Federal Funds Rate as appropriate
benchmark interest rates for the qualitative evaluation of the effectiveness of an interest rate swap.

o Clarifying the definition of reference rate, as it is used in Statement 53, as amended.

Providing an exception to the lease modifications guidance in Statement 87, as amended, for certain lease contracts
that are amended solely to replace an IBOR as the rate upon which variable payments depend.

The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest rate is effective for reporting periods ending after
December 31, 2022. All other requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after
June 15, 2021.

The GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements in March 2020. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by
addressing issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements (PPPs). As used in this
Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator (a
governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right to operate or
use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP asset), for a period of time
in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. Some PPPs meet the definition of a service concession arrangement
(SCA), which the Board defines in this Statement as a PPP in which (1) the operator collects and is compensated
by fees from third parties; (2) the transferor determines or has the ability to modify or approve which services the
operator is required to provide, to whom the operator is required to provide the services, and the prices or rates that
can be charged for the services; and (3) the transferor is entitled to significant residual interest in the service utility
of the underlying PPP asset at the end of the arrangement.

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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This Statement also provides guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements
(APAS). As defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator
for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining, or operating an underlying
nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

This Statement requires that PPPs that meet the definition of a lease apply the guidance in Statement No.
87, Leases, as amended, if existing assets of the transferor that are not required to be improved by the operator as
part of the PPP arrangement are the only underlying PPP assets and the PPP does not meet the definition of an SCA.
This Statement provides accounting and financial reporting requirements for all other PPPs: those that either (1)
meet the definition of an SCA or (2) are not within the scope of Statement 87, as amended (as clarified by this
Statement). The PPP term is defined as the period during which an operator has a honcancellable right to use an
underlying PPP asset, plus, if applicable, certain periods if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that
the transferor or the operator either will exercise an option to extend the PPP or will not exercise an option to
terminate the PPP.

A transferor generally should recognize an underlying PPP asset as an asset in financial statements prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus. However, in the case of an underlying PPP asset that is not owned by
the transferor or is not the underlying asset of an SCA, a transferor should recognize a receivable measured based
on the operator’s estimated carrying value of the underlying PPP asset as of the expected date of the transfer in
ownership. In addition, a transferor should recognize a receivable for installment payments, if any, to be received
from the operator in relation to the PPP. Measurement of a receivable for installment payments should be at the
present value of the payments expected to be received during the PPP term. A transferor also should recognize a
deferred inflow of resources for the consideration received or to be received by the transferor as part of the PPP.
Revenue should be recognized by a transferor in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term.

This Statement requires a transferor to recognize a receivable for installment payments and a deferred inflow of
resources to account for a PPP in financial statements prepared using the current financial resources measurement
focus. Governmental fund revenue would be recognized in a systematic and rational manner over the PPP term.

This Statement also provides specific guidance in financial statements prepared using the economic resources
measurement focus for a government that is an operator in a PPP that either (1) meets the definition of an SCA or
(2) is not within the scope of Statement 87, as amended (as clarified in this Statement). An operator should report
an intangible right-to-use asset related to an underlying PPP asset that either is owned by the transferor or is the
underlying asset of an SCA. Measurement of the right-to-use asset should be the amount of consideration to be
provided to the transferor, plus any payments made to the transferor at or before the commencement of the PPP
term, and certain direct costs. For an underlying PPP asset that is not owned by the transferor and is not the
underlying asset of an SCA, an operator should recognize a liability measured based on the estimated carrying value
of the underlying PPP asset as of the expected date of the transfer in ownership. In addition, an operator should
recognize a liability for installment payments, if any, to be made to the transferor in relation to the PPP.
Measurement of a liability for installment payments should be at the present value of the payments expected to be
made during the PPP term. An operator also should recognize a deferred outflow of resources for the consideration
provided or to be provided to the transferor as part of the PPP. Expense should be recognized by an operator in a
systematic and rational manner over the PPP term.
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This Statement also requires a government to account for PPP and non-PPP components of a PPP as separate
contracts. If a PPP involves multiple underlying assets, a transferor and an operator in certain cases should account
for each underlying PPP asset as a separate PPP. To allocate the contract price to different components, a transferor
and an operator should use contract prices for individual components as long as they do not appear to be
unreasonable based on professional judgment or use professional judgment to determine their best estimate if there
are no stated prices or if stated prices appear to be unreasonable. If determining the best estimate is not practicable,
multiple components in a PPP should be accounted for as a single PPP.

This Statement also requires an amendment to a PPP to be considered a PPP modification, unless the operator’s
right to use the underlying PPP asset decreases, in which case it should be considered a partial or full PPP
termination. A PPP termination should be accounted for by a transferor by reducing, as applicable, any receivable
for installment payments or any receivable related to the transfer of ownership of the underlying PPP asset and by
reducing the related deferred inflow of resources. An operator should account for a termination by reducing the
carrying value of the right-to-use asset and, as applicable, any liability for installment payments or liability to
transfer ownership of the underlying PPP asset. A PPP modification that does not qualify as a separate PPP should
be accounted for by remeasuring PPP assets and liabilities.

An APA that is related to designing, constructing, and financing a nonfinancial asset in which ownership of the
asset transfers by the end of the contract should be accounted for by a government as a financed purchase of the
underlying nonfinancial asset. This Statement requires a government that engaged in an APA that contains multiple
components to recognize each component as a separate arrangement. An APA that is related to operating or
maintaining a nonfinancial asset should be reported by a government as an outflow of resources in the period to
which payments relate.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.

The GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements in May 2020.
This Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for subscription-based information
technology arrangements (SBITAS) for government end users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA,;
(2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding
subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. To the extent relevant, the
standards for SBITASs are based on the standards established in Statement No. 87, Leases, as amended.

A SBITA is defined as a contract that conveys control of the right to use another party’s (a SBITA vendor’s)
information technology (IT) software, alone or in combination with tangible capital assets (the underlying IT assets),
as specified in the contract for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction.

The subscription term includes the period during which a government has a noncancellable right to use the
underlying IT assets. The subscription term also includes periods covered by an option to extend (if it is reasonably
certain that the government or SBITA vendor will exercise that option) or to terminate (if it is reasonably certain
that the government or SBITA vendor will not exercise that option).

Report to the Board of Supervisors
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Under this Statement, a government generally should recognize a right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible
asset—and a corresponding subscription liability. A government should recognize the subscription liability at the
commencement of the subscription term, —which is when the subscription asset is placed into service. The
subscription liability should be initially measured at the present value of subscription payments expected to be made
during the subscription term. Future subscription payments should be discounted using the interest rate the SBITA
vendor charges the government, which may be implicit, or the government’s incremental borrowing rate if the
interest rate is not readily determinable. A government should recognize amortization of the discount on the
subscription liability as an outflow of resources (for example, interest expense) in subsequent financial reporting
periods.

The subscription asset should be initially measured as the sum of (1) the initial subscription liability amount, (2)
payments made to the SBITA vendor before commencement of the subscription term, and (3) capitalizable
implementation costs, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the
subscription term. A government should recognize amortization of the subscription asset as an outflow of resources
over the subscription term.

Activities associated with a SBITA, other than making subscription payments, should be grouped into the following
three stages, and their costs should be accounted for accordingly:

e Preliminary Project Stage, including activities such as evaluating alternatives, determining needed
technology, and selecting a SBITA vendor. Outlays in this stage should be expensed as incurred.

e Initial Implementation Stage, including all ancillary charges necessary to place the subscription asset
into service. Outlays in this stage generally should be capitalized as an addition to the subscription
asset.

e Operation and Additional Implementation Stage, including activities such as subsequent
implementation activities, maintenance, and other activities for a government’s ongoing operations
related to a SBITA. Qutlays in this stage should be expensed as incurred unless they meet specific
capitalization criteria.

In classifying certain outlays into the appropriate stage, the nature of the activity should be the determining factor.
Training costs should be expensed as incurred, regardless of the stage in which they are incurred.

If a SBITA contract contains multiple components, a government should account for each component as a separate
SBITA or nonsubscription component and allocate the contract price to the different components. If it is not
practicable to determine a best estimate for price allocation for some or all components in the contract, a government
should account for those components as a single SBITA.

This Statement provides an exception for short-term SBITAs. Short-term SBITAs have a maximum possible term
under the SBITA contract of 12 months (or less), including any options to extend, regardless of their probability of
being exercised. Subscription payments for short-term SBITAs should be recognized as outflows of resources.

This Statement requires a government to disclose descriptive information about its SBITAs other than short-term
SBITAs, such as the amount of the subscription asset, accumulated amortization, other payments not included in
the measurement of a subscription liability, principal and interest requirements for the subscription liability, and
other essential information.

The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022.
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The GASB issued Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans - an Amendment of GASB Statements No.
14 and No. 84, and a Supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 in June 2020. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in
circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary government
performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting
of certain defined contribution pension plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans,
and employee benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary
component units in fiduciary fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and
comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred
compensation plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans.

This Statement requires that for purposes of determining whether a primary government is financially accountable
for a potential component unit, except for a potential component unit that is a defined contribution pension plan, a
defined contribution OPEB plan, or another employee benefit plan (for example, certain Section 457 plans), the
absence of a governing board should be treated the same as the appointment of a voting majority of a governing
board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform.

This Statement also requires that the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement No. 84, Fiduciary
Activities, be applicable to only defined benefit pension plans and defined benefit OPEB plans that are administered
through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, or
paragraph 3 of Statement No. 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans,
respectively.

This Statement (1) requires that a Section 457 plan be classified as either a pension plan or another employee benefit
plan depending on whether the plan meets the definition of a pension plan and (2) clarifies that Statement 84, as
amended, should be applied to all arrangements organized under IRC Section 457 to determine whether those
arrangements should be reported as fiduciary activities.

This Statement supersedes the remaining provisions of Statement No. 32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans, as amended, regarding investment valuation
requirements for Section 457 plans. As a result, investments of all Section 457 plans should be measured as of the
end of the plan’s reporting period in all circumstances.

The requirements of this Statement that (1) exempt primary governments that perform the duties that a governing
board typically performs from treating the absence of a governing board the same as the appointment of a voting
majority of a governing board in determining whether they are financially accountable for defined contribution
pension plans, defined contribution OPEB plans, or other employee benefit plans and (2) limit the applicability
of the financial burden criterion in paragraph 7 of Statement 84 to defined benefit pension plans and defined
benefit OPEB plans that are administered through trusts that meet the criteria in paragraph 3 of Statement 67
or paragraph 3 of Statement 74, respectively, are effective immediately.

The requirements of this Statement that are related to the accounting and financial reporting for Section 457
plans are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2021. For purposes of determining whether a primary
government is financially accountable for a potential component unit, the requirements of this Statement that
provide that for all other arrangements, the absence of a governing board be treated the same as the appointment
of a voting majority of a governing board if the primary government performs the duties that a governing board
typically would perform, are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021.
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CURRENT GASB PROJECTS

GASB currently has a variety of projects in process. Some of these projects discussed below.

Conceptual Framework - Recognition. The project’s objective is to develop recognition criteria for whether
information should be reported in state and local governmental financial statements and when that information
should be reported. This project ultimately will lead to a Concepts Statement on recognition of elements of financial
statements. The project is currently in the exposure draft comment period, with an estimated completion of February
2021.

Conceptual Framework - Disclosure. The project’s objective is to develop concepts related to a framework for the
development and evaluation of notes to financial statements for the purpose of improving the effectiveness of note
disclosures in government financial reports. The framework will establish criteria for the Board to use in evaluating
potential note disclosure requirements during future standards-setting activities and in reexamining existing note
disclosure requirements. Those concepts also will provide governments a basis for considering the essentiality of
information items for which the GASB does not specifically provide authoritative disclosure guidance. This project
is currently in exposure draft comment period.

Financial Reporting Model. The objective of this project is to make improvements to the financial reporting model,
including Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State
and Local Governments, and other reporting model-related pronouncements (Statements No. 35, Basic Financial
Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for Public Colleges and Universities, No. 37, Basic
Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and Local Governments: Omnibus,
No. 41, Budgetary Comparison Schedules - Perspective Differences, and No. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling
Legislation, and Interpretation No. 6, Recognition and Measurement of Certain Liabilities and Expenditures in
Governmental Fund Financial Statements). The objective of these improvements would be to enhance the
effectiveness of the model in providing information that is essential for decision-making and enhance the ability to
assess a government’s accounting and address certain application issues, based upon the results of the pre-agenda
research on the financial reporting model. The project is currently in the exposure draft comment period, with an
estimated completion of February 2021.

Revenue and Expense Recognition. The objective of this project is to develop a comprehensive application model
for the classification, recognition, and measurement of revenues and expenses. The purpose for developing a
comprehensive model is (1) to improve the information regarding revenues and expenses that users need to make
decisions and assess accountability, (2) to provide guidance regarding exchange and exchange-like transactions that
have not been specifically addressed, (3) to evaluate revenue and expense recognition in the context of the
conceptual framework, and (4) to address application issues identified in practice, based upon the results of the pre-
agenda research on revenue for exchange and exchange-like transactions. The project is currently in the preliminary
views comment period, with an estimated completion of February 2021.
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Brown, Edwards & Company, L.L.P.
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700
Newport News, VA 23606-4295

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the financial statements of the County
of James City, Virginia (the “County”), which comprise the respective financial positions of the
governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position
for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on whether the financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP).

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material. Items are
considered material, regardless of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of accounting
information that, in the light of surrounding circumstances, makes it probable that the judgment of a
reasonable person relying on the information would be changed or influenced by the omission or
misstatement. An omission or misstatement that is monetarily small in amount could be considered material
as a result of qualitative factors.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, as of the date of this letter, the following
representations made to you during your audit.

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement letter dated April
29, 2020, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S.
GAAP and for preparation of the supplementary information in accordance with the applicable criteria.

2. The financial statements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with U.S. GAAP and
include all properly classified funds and other financial information required by generally accepted
accounting principles to be included in the financial reporting entity.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control
to prevent and detect fraud.

5. Significant assumptions we used in making accounting estimates, including estimates of fair value, are
reasonable.

6. Related-party relationships and transactions, including revenues, expenditures/expenses, loans,
transfers, leasing arrangements, and guarantees, and amounts receivable from or payable to related
parties have been appropriately accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP.
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10.

11.

Adjustments or disclosures have been made for all events, including instances of noncompliance,
subsequent to the date of the financial statements that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
financial statements or in the schedule of findings and questioned costs.

We take responsibility for the adjusting journal entries we have proposed and they were posted as audit
adjustments. We have reviewed and approved of them and they have been posted to the County’s
accounts. There are no uncorrected misstatements or omitted disclosures.

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation and claims and they have been
accounted for and disclosed in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The County is currently involved in certain
legal matters of which the outcome is uncertain. Management does not feel that a material unfavorable
outcome related to any legal matter under current evaluation is probable at this time.

Guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the County is contingently liable, if any, have been
properly recorded or disclosed.

Significant estimates that may be subject to a material change in the near term have been properly
disclosed in the financial statements. We understand that “near term” means the period within one year
of the date of the financial statements. In addition, we have no knowledge of concentrations existing
at the date of the financial statements that make the County vulnerable to the risk of severe impact that
have not been properly disclosed in the financial statements.

Information Provided

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information, of which we are aware, that is relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, and other matters and all
audit or relevant monitoring reports, if any, received from funding sources.

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit.

c. Unrestricted access to persons within the County from whom you determined it necessary to obtain
audit evidence.

d. Minutes of the meetings of the County or summaries of actions of recent meetings for which
minutes have not yet been prepared.

All material transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the financial
statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial statements may be
materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the County involving:
(1) Management,
(2) Employees who have significant roles in internal control,
(3) Service organizations used by the County, or
(4) Others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the County’s financial
statements received in communications from employees, former employees, regulators, or others.

We have no knowledge of instances of noncompliance or suspected noncompliance with laws,
regulations, contracts, or grant agreements, or waste, or abuse, whose effects should be considered
when preparing the financial statements.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31,

We have disclosed to you all known actual or possible litigation, claims, and assessments whose effects
should be considered when preparing the financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the identity of the entity’s related parties and all the related party relationships
and transactions of which we are aware. Further, Bolton Partners, Inc. and Cavanaugh Macdonald
Consulting, LLC, who performed our OPEB and VRS valuations, are not related to the County.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies concerning noncompliance with, or
deficiencies in, financial reporting practices.

We have taken timely and appropriate steps to remedy fraud, noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, or abuse that you have reported to us.

We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.

We have identified to you any previous audits, attestation engagements, and other studies related to the
audit objectives and whether related recommendations have been implemented.

The County has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the carrying value or classification of
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balance or net
position.

We are responsible for compliance with the laws, regulations, and provisions of contracts and grant
agreements applicable to us, including tax or debt limits and debt contracts, and legal and contractual
provisions for reporting specific activities in separate funds.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
of fraud and noncompliance with provisions of laws and regulations that we believe have a material
effect on the financial statements or other financial data significant to the audit objectives, and any
other instances that warrant the attention of those charged with governance.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances, which have occurred or are likely to have
occurred, of noncompliance with provisions of contracts and grant agreements that we believe have a
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts or other financial data significant
to the audit objectives.

We have identified and disclosed to you all instances that have occurred or are likely to have occurred,
of abuse that could be quantitatively or qualitatively material to the financial statements or other
financial data significant to the audit objectives.

There are no violations or possible violations of budget ordinances, laws and regulations (including
those pertaining to adopting, approving, and amending budgets), provisions of contracts and grant
agreements, tax or debt limits, and any related debt covenants whose effects should be considered for
disclosure in the financial statements, or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, or for reporting on
noncompliance.

The County has satisfactory title to all owned assets and there are no liens or encumbrances on such
assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral.

The County has complied with all aspects of contractual agreements that would have a material effect
on the financial statements in the event of noncompliance.
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32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43.

44,

The financial statements include all component units, appropriately present majority equity interests in
legally separate organizations and joint ventures with an equity interest, and properly disclose all other
joint ventures and other related organizations.

The financial statements properly classify all funds and activities in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 34 , as amended.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASBS Nos. 34 and 37 for presentation as major are
identified and presented as such and all other funds that are presented as major are particularly
important to financial statement users.

Components of net position (net investment in capital assets; restricted; and unrestricted) and
classifications of fund balance (nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and unassigned)
amounts are properly classified and, if applicable, approved.

Provision for uncollectible receivables have been properly identified and recorded.

Expenses have been appropriately classified in or allocated to functions and programs in the statements
of activities, and allocations have been made on a reasonable basis.

Revenues are appropriately classified in the statement of activities with program revenues or general
revenues.

Interfund, internal, and intra-entity activity and balances have been appropriately classified and
reported.

Deposits and investment securities and derivative instruments are properly classified as to risk and are
properly disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure and intangible assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and, if
applicable, depreciated.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure pension and OPEB liabilities
and costs for financial accounting purposes are appropriate in the circumstances.

We have not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting new
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (GASBS) that are not yet effective, as
discussed in the notes to the financial statements. The County therefore is unable to disclose the impact
that adopting these Statements will have on its financial position and the results of its operations when
the Statements are adopted.

We agree with the findings of specialists in evaluating the landfill liability estimate for closure and
post-closure costs, the actuaries in determining pension and other post-employment benefits liabilities
and disclosures, and the third party administrators in determining the incurred but not reported
liabilities, and have adequately considered the qualifications of the specialists in determining the
amounts and disclosures used in the financial statements and underlying accounting records.

We did not give or cause any instructions to be given to specialists with respect to the values or amounts
derived in an attempt to bias their work, and we are not otherwise aware of any matters that have had
an impact on the independence or objectivity of the specialists.
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45,

46.

47.

48.

49.

We have appropriately disclosed the County’s policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or
unrestricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted net position is available and have determined that net position is properly recognized under
the policy.

We are following our established accounting policy regarding which resources (that is, restricted,
committed, assigned, or unassigned) are considered to be spent first for expenditures for which more
than one resource classification is available. That policy determines the fund balance classifications for
financial reporting purposes.

We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the required supplementary information (RSI). The
RSI is measured and presented within prescribed guidelines and the methods of measurement and
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period. We have disclosed to you any
significant assumptions and interpretations underlying the measurement and presentation of the RSI.

With respect to the supplementary information on which an in-relation-to opinion is issued:

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the supplementary information in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and we believe the
supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. The methods of
measurement and presentation of the supplementary information have not changed from those used
in the prior period, and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement and presentation of the supplementary information.

With respect to federal award programs:

a. We are responsible for understanding and complying with and have complied with the requirements
of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), including
requirements relating to preparation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

b. We acknowledge our responsibility for presenting the schedule of expenditures of federal awards
(SEFA) and related disclosures in accordance with the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, and
we believe the SEFA, including its form and content, is fairly presented in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance. The methods of measurement or presentation of the SEFA have not changed
from those used in the prior period and we have disclosed to you any significant assumptions and
interpretations underlying the measurement or presentation of the SEFA.

c. We have identified and disclosed to you all of our government programs and related activities
subject to the Uniform Guidance compliance audit, and have included in the SEFA, expenditures
made during the audit period for all awards provided by federal agencies in the form of federal
awards, federal cost-reimbursement contracts, loans, loan guarantees, property (including donated
surplus property), cooperative agreements, interest subsidies, insurance, food commodities, direct
appropriations, and other direct assistance.

d. We are responsible for understanding and complying with, and have complied with, the
requirements of federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards related
to each of our federal programs and have identified and disclosed to you the requirements of federal
statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal awards that are considered to have a
direct and material effect on each major program.
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Edwards & Company, L.L.P.

We are responsible for establishing and maintaining, and have established and maintained, effective
internal control over compliance for federal programs that provides reasonable assurance that we
are managing our federal awards in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of federal awards that could have a material effect on our federal programs. We believe
the internal control system is adequate and is functioning as intended.

We have made available to you all federal awards (including amendments, if any) and any other
correspondence with federal agencies or pass-through entities relevant to federal programs and
related activities.

We have received no requests from a federal agency to audit one or more specific programs as a
major program.

We have complied with the direct and material compliance requirements, including when
applicable, those set forth in the OMB Compliance Supplement, relating to federal awards and have
identified and disclosed to you all amounts questioned and all known noncompliance with the
requirements of federal awards, if any.

We have disclosed any communications from federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities
concerning possible noncompliance with the direct and material compliance requirements,
including communications received from the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to
the date of the auditor’s report.

We have disclosed to you the findings received and related corrective actions taken for previous
audits, attestation engagements, and internal or external monitoring that directly relate to the
objectives of the compliance audit, including findings received and corrective actions taken from
the end of the period covered by the compliance audit to the date of the auditor’s report.

Amounts claimed or used for matching were determined in accordance with relevant guidelines in
OMB'*s Uniform Guidance (2 CFR part 200, subpart E) and OMB Circular A-87, Cost Principles
for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, if applicable.

We have disclosed to you our interpretation of compliance requirements that may have varying
interpretations.

With respect to the Coronavirus Relief Funds, we have communicated and made available to you
the details of all specific compliance requirements and we are not aware of any additional
compliance requirements that would be directly related to your compliance testing or your
assessment of direct and material compliance requirements.

We have made available to you all documentation related to compliance with the direct material
compliance requirements, including information related to federal program financial reports and
claims for advances and reimbursements.

We have disclosed to you the nature of any subsequent events that provide additional evidence
about conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period affecting noncompliance during the
reporting period.

There are no such known instances of noncompliance with direct and material compliance
requirements that occurred subsequent to the period covered by the auditors’ report.

No changes have been made in internal control over compliance or other factors that might
significantly affect internal control, including any corrective action we have taken regarding
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in internal control over compliance, subsequent to
the period covered by the auditor’s report.

Federal program financial reports and claims for advances and reimbursements are supported by
the books and records from which the financial statements have been prepared.

The copies of federal program financial reports provided to you are true copies of the reports
submitted, or electronically transmitted, to the respective federal agency or pass-through entity, as
applicable.

We have monitored subrecipients, as necessary, to determine that they have expended subawards
in compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of the subaward and
have met the requirements of the Uniform Guidance, if applicable.

We have considered the results of subrecipient audits and have made any necessary adjustments to
our books and records, if applicable.
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We have charged costs to federal awards in accordance with applicable cost principles.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the summary schedule of prior audit findings
to include all findings required to be included by the Uniform Guidance and we have provided you
with all information on the status of the follow-up on prior audit findings by federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities, including all management decisions.

We are responsible for and have ensured the reporting package does not contain protected
personally identifiable information.

We are responsible for and have accurately prepared the auditee section of the Data Collection
Form as required by the Uniform Guidance.

We are responsible for taking corrective action on each audit finding of the compliance audit and
have developed a corrective action plan that meets the requirements of the Uniform Guidance.

50. In regards to the assistance with submission of the data collection form service performed by you, we
have:

a.
b.

C.
d.
e.

Assumed all management responsibilities.

Overseen the service, by designating an individual, within senior management, who possesses
suitable skill, knowledge, or experience.

Evaluated the adequacy and results of the services performed.

Accepted responsibility for the results of the services.

Evaluated and maintained internal controls, including ongoing monitoring activities.

51. To the best of our knowledge and belief, no events have occurred subsequent to June 30, 2020, and
through the date this letter is signed that would require adjustment to or disclosure in the
aforementioned financial statements (except as follows):

a.

To the extent our normal procedures and controls related to our financial close process at any of
our locations were adversely impacted by the COVID-19 outbreak, we took appropriate actions
and safeguards to reasonably ensure the fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other than as disclosed in Note 18 to the financial statements, no other impacts from the COVID-
19 outbreak are necessary to be reflected in those financial statements.

Disclosures included in the financial statements regarding the relevant significant business,
financial, and reporting impacts of the COVID-19 outbreak accurately reflect management’s full
consideration of such impacts.

52. We reaffirm the representations made to you in our letter dated November 27, 2019, regarding your
audit for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.

We have evaluated subsequent events through the date of this letter, which is the date the financial
statements were available to be issued. All events, including instances of noncompliance, that have occurred
subsequent to the balance sheet date and through the date of this letter that would require adjustment to or
disclosure in the aforementioned financial statements have been disclosed properly.
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December 8, 2020

The Members of the Board of Supervisors and the Citizens of James City County:

We are pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of James City County, Virginia
(the County), for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, as required by the Code of Virginia. The Department of
Financial and Management Services has prepared this report in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), the standards of financial reporting prescribed by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and specifications of the Auditor of Public Accounts of the
Commonwealth of Virginia. Section 15.1-67 of the Code of Virginia (1950, as amended) requires the County to have
an annual audit of the books of account, financial records, and the transactions of the County. Brown, Edwards &
Company L.L.P. was selected to perform the required audit. The unmodified report of Brown, Edwards & Company
L.L.P., the highest possible result of the audit process, accompanies the financial statements in this report.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the fairness of the presentation, including all
disclosures, rests with the County. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management
of the County has established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the
County’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the
County’s financial statements. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the County’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute
assurance, that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. We believe the data, as presented,
is accurate in all material respects; that it is presented in a manner designed to fairly set forth the financial position
and the results of operations of the various funds of the County; and that all disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain maximum understanding of the County’s financial activity have been included.

The County government is required to undergo an annual single audit as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Information related to this single audit, including the schedule of expenditures
of federal awards, the schedule of findings and questioned costs, and the auditors’ reports on internal control and
compliance with applicable laws and regulations, are included in the compliance section of this report.

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The County’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors on pages 4-9 of this report.

Profile of the Government

The County is located in southeastern Virginia and patrtially surrounds the City of Williamsburg. Although much of
the County’s 144 square miles consists of developed suburban areas, it has retained a considerable amount of
undeveloped agricultural and forest land. There are no incorporated towns within the County. The County is
empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal properties located within its boundaries.



The County is organized under the County Administrator form of government (as defined under Virginia Law). Under
this form of government, the Board of Supervisors appoints a County Administrator to serve as the Chief Executive
Officer of the County. The Administrator serves at the pleasure of the Board of Supervisors, implements its policies,
appoints division directors, and directs business and administrative procedures.

The Board of Supervisors is a five-member body; one member from each of the five districts, elected for a four-year
staggered term by the voters of the district in which the member resides. The Chairman of the Board is elected
annually by its members. This body enacts ordinances, appropriates funds, sets tax rates, and establishes policies
for the administration of the County’s public services.

The County provides a full range of services, including law enforcement, fire protection, and recreational activities.
Water and sewer services are provided through the legally separate James City Service Authority (JCSA). The
Board of Supervisors of James City County serves as the Board of Directors of the JCSA, and the County’s Strategic
Plan serves as basis for the budgetary and operational initiatives of both entities. The County is also financially
accountable for the legally separate Williamsburg-James City County (WJCC) School Board and the legally
separate James City County Economic Development Authority. All three of these entities are reported separately
as discretely presented component units within the County’s financial statements. Additional information on each
of these legally separate entities can be found in Note 1 to the basic financial statements.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the County’s financial planning and control. In the spring of each
year, departments and agencies of the County are required to submit requests for appropriation to the County
Administrator. The County Administrator then submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed operating and capital
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget and capital budget include
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are conducted to obtain citizen comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution. The Appropriations
Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the fund and function level. The appropriation for each fund
and function can be revised only by the Board of Supervisors; however, the County Administrator may amend the
budget within functions. Budget to actual comparisons are provided in this report for each individual governmental
fund for which an appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the general fund, this comparison is presented
on pages 82-85 as part of the required supplementary information other than management’s discussion and
analysis. For governmental funds, other than the general fund, with appropriated budgets, these comparisons are
presented in the other supplementary information subsection of this report which starts on page 100.

COVID-19

During fiscal year 2020, the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) impacted the operational and financial activities
of the County. COVID-19 was the name given by the World Health Organization (WHO) on February 11, 2020 for
the disease caused by the novel coronavirus SARS-CoV-2. The first positive case of a James City County resident
was reported on March 12, 2020. Since that time, federal, state, and local governments have been working to
prevent the spread of this disease by educating our citizens, encouraging social distancing, restricting or closing
non-essential businesses, cancelling large gatherings, and finally, developing a statewide plan for a phased
reopening. The impact on our region, which is heavily dependent on tourism, and the loss of revenue to the County
remains difficult to forecast. Footnote 18 contains more details regarding COVID-19 and its impacts on the County.

Economic Condition and Outlook

James City County has experienced a gradual decrease in economic activity due to the effects from COVID-19.
Overall, General Fund revenues increased 0.51% from last year. The majority of the increase was in property taxes
due to real estate growth. Revenues are expected to decrease by approximately 7.4% in fiscal year 2021, primarily
in tourism-related sources such as sales, meals and lodging taxes as a result of the impacts from COVID-19 to our
area. The General Fund’'s expenditures were reduced accordingly in order to balance the budget.

In November 2019, Standard & Poor’'s and Moody'’s Investors Service reaffirmed the County’s AAA bond rating,
which is the highest possible rating. This bond rating is based on analysts’ recommendations after a review of
economic and fiscal performance, strong liquidity, fiscal policies and practices, evidence of financial planning to
meet future capital needs. This rating is excellent for a community the size of James City County and gives the
County additional leverage in the bond market for potential bond buyers and investors.
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Major Initiatives

For its fiscal year 2020 budget, the County was awarded the Government Finance Officers’ Association of the
United States and Canada’s Distinguished Budget Presentation for the third consecutive year. Also during fiscal
year 2020, the County continued the implementation of the results of a compensation study performed in fiscal year
2018. These results were phased in over a two year period, fiscal years 2019 and 2020.

In addition, the County transitioned to a fee for service based curbside recycling program in fiscal year 2020 as a
result of changes in the international trade market on recyclables which increased contractors’ net costs to provide
pick up services.

Economic Development

In fiscal year 2020, business expansion interests in James City County were very active. In February 2020, the
condensing technology company Navien, Inc. announced plans to buy an existing 300,000 square foot facility and
triple its existing size to establish their first North American manufacturing facility. Their commitment to invest $77.5
million and create 180 high quality jobs over the next five years helped make fiscal year 2020 one of the best years
for new or expanding businesses investment in James City County in over 20 years. Despite COVID-19’s impact,
Navien and other businesses have continued to move their projects forward and establish themselves within our
community.

Launchpad, the Greater Williamsburg Business Incubator and the Greater Williamsburg Partnership continue to
support regional economic development. Entrepreneurship remains a regional focus as well with unique events
geared towards startup businesses and home-based businesses.

Capital Improvement Program

Capital outlay expenditures (including County and school projects) totaled $11,824,193 in fiscal year 2020. The
largest capital expenditures were related to capital maintenance projects whose purpose is to improve and extend
the useful life of County or School buildings and to replace major pieces of equipment. In fiscal year 2020, major
projects included a land purchase, the replacement of fire apparatus, and stormwater projects. Significant school
expenditures included a roof replacement at Lafayette High School, and HVAC replacements at Jamestown High
School and Laurel Lane Elementary School.

James City County will continue to face challenges over the next several years. A steady growth in population has
produced demands for public services and facilities. The five-year Capital Improvement Program totals
$120,809,000 and focuses on a wide variety of needs. In fiscal year 2021 and due to the unknown impacts of
COVID-19, major capital projects were delayed a year; funding is included for the following maintenance and
replacements: stormwater projects, building maintenance, HVAC replacement at the library, and fire apparatus
replacements. Future planning includes a new pre-school, drainage projects, fire equipment and vehicle
replacements, and other building maintenance projects.

An indication of anticipated impacts are included in the adopted budget and capital improvements program for the
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2020.

Awards of Achievement

The Government Finance Officers’ Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to James City County, Virginia for its Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. This was the 35" consecutive year that the County has
achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the County must publish an
easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. This report must satisfy both
generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive
annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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“ EDWARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Supervisors
County of James City, Virginia
Williamsburg, Virginia

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate
discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of
the County of James City, Virginia as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities, and Towns
issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Your Success is Our Focus

701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 « Newport News VA 23606 « 757-873-1033 « Fax 757-873-1106 » www.BEcpas.com



Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of James City,
Virginia, as of June 30, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information, as listed in the table of contents,
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers
them to be essential parts of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context and disclosing additional plan information. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the County’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, supplementary information,
and statistical section, as listed in the table of contents, are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and is also not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The supplementary information and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information and schedule of expenditures of federal awards
are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
December 8, 2020, on our consideration of the County’s internal control over financial reporting and on
our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements
and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the County’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Newport News, Virginia
December 8, 2020



County of James City, Virginia
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

As management of James City County (County), we offer readers of the County’s financial statements this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the County for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. We encourage
readers to consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information in our letter of
transmittal at the front of this report and the County’s financial statements, which follow this analysis.

Financial Highlights

e The County’s total net position increased by approximately $24.9 million over the course of this year’s operations,
which represents an 8.3% increase from fiscal year 2019.

e The County’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
as of June 30, 2020 by approximately $323.4 million. Of this amount, approximately $223.5 million, or 69.1% is
the net investment in capital assets.

e General Fund revenues were $3.3 million or 1.6% lower than the final budget. The decrease primarily related to
the economic impact of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19) on the County’s revenues. Additional information on
the impacts of COVID-19 on the County’s financial and operational activities can be found in Note 18 to the
financial statements.

e For fiscal year 2020, the James City Service Authority (the Authority) is reported as a discretely presented
component unit. In prior years, the Authority was reported as a blended component unit. As a result of this
change, the financial analysis in this section no longer includes the Authority’s financial information as part of
the primary government. Additional information on this change in the reporting entity can be found in Note 1 to
the financial statements.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report consists of four sections: introductory, financial, statistical, and
compliance. The financial section consists of three primary components - government-wide financial statements,
fund financial statements, and notes to the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements report information about the County as a whole using accounting
methods similar to those used by private-sector companies. The statement of net position includes all of the
government’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The current
year’'s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the statement of activities regardless of when cash is received
or paid.

The two government-wide financial statements report the County’s net position and how it has changed. Net position
- the difference between the County’s (1) assets and deferred outflows of resources and (2) liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources, is one way to measure the County’s financial health, or position.

Over time, increases or decreases in the County’s net position serve as an indicator of whether its financial health
is improving or deteriorating, respectively. To assess the overall health of the County, additional nonfinancial factors
should be considered, such as changes in the County’s property tax base.

The government-wide financial statements of the County are divided into two categories:

e Governmental activities: Most of the County’s basic services are included here, such as the police, fire,
parks and recreation, and general administration. Property taxes and state and federal funding finance most
of these activities.

e Component units: The County includes three other entities in its report, the James City Service Authority,
the Public Schools, and the Economic Development Authority. Although legally separate, these “component
units” are important because of the County’s financial accountability or financial integration with these
entities.



County of James City, Virginia
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the County’s most significant funds, not the
County as a whole. Funds are accounting devices that the County uses to keep track of specific sources of funding
and spending for particular purposes. Some funds are required by state law and by bond covenants.

Other funds are established to control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that the County is
properly using certain taxes and grants.

The County has two kinds of funds:

¢ Governmental funds: Most of the County’s basic services are included in governmental funds, which focus on
(1) how cash and other financial assets can be readily converted to cash flow in and out and (2) the balances
remaining at year end that are available for spending. Consequently, the governmental funds statements provide
a detailed short-term view that helps in determining whether there are more or fewer financial resources that
can be spent in the near future to finance the County’s programs. Because this information does not encompass
the additional long-term focus of the government-wide statements, further details are provided at the bottom of
the governmental funds statement or on the subsequent page that explain the relationship (or differences)
between them.

e Fiduciary funds: The County is responsible for assets of various agency funds. It is responsible for ensuring that
the assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the County’s fiduciary activities
are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in fiduciary net position.
These activities are excluded from the County’s government-wide financial statements because the County
cannot use their assets to finance its operations.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required
supplementary information concerning the County’s General Fund budget and the County’s obligation to provide
pension and other post-employment benefits to its employees. The combining statements for nonmajor
governmental funds are presented immediately following the required supplementary information.

Financial Analysis

Statements of Net Position

Primary Government

6/30/2020 6/30/2019
Current and other assets $ 134,118,282 $ 118,493,520
Capital assets, net 354,847,660 359,401,209
Total assets 488,965,942 477,894,729
Deferred outflows of resources 10,264,790 4,506,177

Total assets and deferred outflows $ 499,230,732 $ 482,400,906

Long-term liabilities $ 164,618,730 $ 173,138,580
Other liabilities 7,139,244 6,160,142
Total liabilities 171,757,974 179,298,722
Deferred inflows of resources 4,064,944 4,586,681
Net investment in capital assets 223,523,519 210,357,610
Restricted net position 3,349,486 11,388,517
Unrestricted net position, as restated 96,534,809 76,769,376
Total net position 323,407,814 298,515,503
Total liabilities, deferred inflows
and net position $ 499,230,732 $ 482,400,906




County of James City, Virginia
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
June 30, 2020

The County’s net position was $323,407,814 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. The largest portion of the
County’s net position at June 30, 2020 (69.1%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less any related debt used
to acquire those assets that are still outstanding. The County uses these capital assets to provide services to
citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the County’s investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must
be provided from other sources, given that the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The restricted net position (1.0%) is restricted for specific
purposes. The unrestricted portion of net position (29.9%)
may be used to meet the County’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. At the end of the current fiscal year,
the County was able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position.

Net Position

B Net Invmt. in Cap.
Assets
B Restricted

B Unrestricted

The County’s overall net position increased 8.3% from last
year. The reasons for the overall increase are discussed
in the following sections.

Statement of Activities

Condensed Statement of Activities

Governmental activities

6/30/2020 6/30/2019

Program revenues:
Charges for services $ 17,824,271 $ 18,522,375
Operating grants and

contributions 41,795,253 33,465,872
Capital grants and

contributions 180,635 1,125,513
General revenues:

Property taxes 138,698,177 134,846,403

Other taxes 25,981,646 29,324,049
Interest and investment earnings 966,252 795,865
Miscellaneous 1,493,215 2,779,596

Total revenues 226,939,449 220,859,673
Expenses:
General government admin. 15,165,784 11,011,081
Judicial admin. 6,339,331 6,153,636
Public safety 34,366,944 34,180,592
Public works 9,918,359 9,128,572
Health and welfare 9,523,747 8,482,617
Education 101,088,169 100,445,268
Parks, rec. and cultural 12,629,914 12,909,059
Community development 9,095,405 9,481,249
Interest on long-term debt 3,919,485 5,647,370

Total expenses 202,047,138 197,439,444

Change in net position 24,892,311 23,420,229
Net position, beginning of year (as restated) 298,515,503 275,095,274
Net position, end of year $ 323,407,814 $ 298515503

Governmental Activities

As of June 30, 2020, net position for governmental activities was $323,407,814 which represents an increase of
$24,892,311 from last year.
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While the County experienced overall growth in property tax revenues during fiscal year 2020, the impact of COVID-
19 on the local economy resulted in decreases in other tax revenues and charges for services. On the expenditure
side, the County worked to offset anticipated losses related to COVID-19 by implementing restrictions on spending
and a hiring freeze. Those efforts resulted in personnel and operating expense savings; however, total expenses
increased for fiscal year 2020 as a result of costs incurred that were necessary to address and mitigate the spread
of COVID-19.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, revenues from governmental activities totaled $226,939,449. Of this
amount, $62,259,626, or 27.4%, is received from sources other than local tax revenue.

Real estate tax revenues, the County's largest single revenue source, totaled $101,429,335. The County’s
assessed real property tax base for fiscal year 2020 was $12,241,257,556, which was an increase of 1.3% from
fiscal year 2019.

In fiscal year 2020, the County reported current year collections of $25,981,643 in personal property taxes, and
received reimbursement from the Commonwealth of Virginia of $9,770,137. Under the provisions of the Personal
Property Tax Relief Act (PPTRA), the state’s share of local personal property tax was approximately 39.1% of most
taxpayer’s payments.

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, expenses for governmental activities totaled $202,047,138, including
$101,088,169 for Education expenses for the public school system. Total expenses had a net increase of 2.3%
over fiscal year 2019, primarily due to the increased general government administration expenditures.

Financial Analysis of the County’'s Governmental Funds

General Fund: The County’s General Fund is the chief operating fund of the County. At the end of fiscal year 2020,
the General Fund had an overall increase in fund balance of $12,691,074. This was primarily due to expenditure
savings as a result restrictions on non-essential spending put into place due to the uncertain economic effects of
COVID-19. The portion of the unassigned fund balance for fiscal liquidity totaled $42,058,054, which was 17.3% of
the total general governmental expenditures (from Table 11 in the Statistical section), including the County’s share
of the Public Schools’ operating expenditures. The County’s goal is to maintain a fund balance for fiscal liquidity
between 10% and 12% of total general governmental expenditures.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used by the County to account for the financing sources used
to acquire and construct major capital projects for the general government. At the end of fiscal year 2020, the Capital
Projects Fund’s fund balance decreased by $974,969, primarily due to the planned expenditures of ongoing
projects. A major source of funding for the capital projects is transfers from the General Fund, which was $9,190,047
for fiscal year 2020. During the year, capital project expenditures of $11,824,193 included a land purchase, the
replacement of fire apparatus, and stormwater projects. Significant school expenditures included the roof
replacement at Lafayette High School, and HVAC replacements at Jamestown High School and Laurel Lane
Elementary School.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used by the County to account for the accumulation of resources
for the repayment of long-term debt of the governmental funds. The primary source of funding is transfers from the
General Fund.

Non-major Governmental Funds: The County maintains six non-major governmental funds. Information is
presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures and changes in fund balances for all funds, which can be found on pages 106-109. The non-major
governmental funds had an increase in fund balance of $2,899,872 in fiscal year 2020.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

General Fund revenues were 1.6% or $3,292,009 lower than the final budget but were 0.5% or $1,069,736 higher
than fiscal year 2019.
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The largest decrease in revenues from fiscal year 2019 to 2020 occurred in local meals taxes as the economic
impacts of COVID-19 affected the last three months of the fiscal year. The local meals tax collections decreased by
$1,460,728 from fiscal year 2019. The County’s largest revenue source, real estate tax revenues, increased by
$629,618. Personal property taxes, another large source of local tax funding, had combined collections from the
state and local taxpayers of $35,751,780. State revenues, excluding the personal property tax reimbursement, were
$249,065 more than budgeted and increased by $1,166,281 from 2019. The significant factor in the increase was
State sales tax for education.

General Fund budgeted expenditures were 9.3% below the final budget, or $16,606,433, which was primarily due
to reduced departmental spending due to the uncertainty of the effects of COVID-19 on the economy. Of this
amount, $834,391 is for encumbrances and is included in Assigned Fund Balance.

As a result of revenues above budget and underspending, the fund balance increased to $59,580,371. This was an
increase of $12,691,074 or 27.1% from 2019.

Capital Assets

At the end of fiscal year 2020, the County’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities totaled
$354,847,660 (net of accumulated depreciation). This total includes land and land improvements, construction in
progress, intangibles, buildings and improvements, infrastructure, equipment, and vehicles. The County does not
own its roads, and therefore they are not included in capital assets. In addition, the Public Schools own all school
buildings and the related debt is County debt. The value associated with the purchase and/or construction of the
Public Schools’ buildings is reported as capital assets in the governmental activities of the County to properly match
with the associated debt, as allowed by Virginia state law. In fiscal year 2020, the net value of school buildings and
related construction reflected in the governmental activities of the County equals $215,403,563, and the associated
current year’s depreciation expense of $6,346,055 is reflected in Education expense in the County’s governmental
activities in the statement of net position.

Summary of Capital Assets, Net

6/30/2020 6/30/2019
Governmental
activities
Non-depreciable, as restated $ 52,499,607 $ 55,307,630
Depreciable 302,348,053 304,093,579
Total $ 354,847,660 $ 359,401,209

Additional information about the County’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 to the financial statements.
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Long-Term Debt

Below is a summary of the County’s long-term debt as of June 30, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Summary of Long-Term Debt

6/30/2020 6/30/2019
Governmental
activities

General obligation bonds, net

unamortized premium $ 29,479,003 $ 33,966,163
Revenue bonds, net

unamortized premium 102,028,321 112,183,815
Capital leases 1,086,117 2,146,958
Pension 19,504,820 12,492,414
OPEB 8,175,670 8,412,877
Compensated absences 4,162,759 3,757,356
Landfill 182,040 178,997

Total $ 164,618,730 $ 173,138,580

Additional information about the County’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 to the financial statements.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget and Tax Rates

The County has a two-year budget cycle. The first year of a two-year cycle is adopted and appropriated and the
second year is adopted for planning purposes. Fiscal year 2020 was the second year of the current two-year cycle.
The fiscal year 2020 approved budget for the General Fund was $211,825,000 (Note: for financial reporting
purposes, the General Fund budget also includes $310,000 for landfill user fees, for a total of $212,135,000).

Fiscal year 2021 is the first year of the next two-year cycle. The fiscal year 2021 approved budget for the General
Fund is $196,238,400. This budget was adopted on June 9, 2020, and reflects a $15,586,600, or a (7.4%), decrease
over the fiscal year 2020 budget. The decrease is primarily due to anticipated reductions in other local taxes and
State revenue as a result of the economic impacts of COVID-19.

Expenditures decreased as a result of the economic impacts of COVID-19. The County’s general fund contribution
to the Williamsburg-James City County School Board will be $107,520,422, which is a 2.7% or $3,025,614 decrease
from fiscal year 2020.

Contacting the County’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a
general overview of the County’s finances and to demonstrate the County’s accountability for the money it receives.
Questions concerning this report or requests for additional information should be directed to the Department of
Financial and Management Services, 101-F Mounts Bay Road, P.O. Box 8784, Williamsburg, Virginia 23187-8784.

* k k k%



County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Net Position
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Exhibit 1

Primary Discretely presented
government component units
James City Economic
Governmental Service Public Development
activities Authority schools Authority
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 70,079,711 $ 3,088,624 $ 19,964,161 $ 584,397
Investments (note 2) 14,748,428 49,828,908 - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 2) 4,956,986 9,401,879 - -
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectibles:
Taxes, including penalties 27,779,842 - - -
Accounts - 2,413,620 17,712 360
Interest 79,821 293,410 - -
Loans (note 3) 525,804 - - -
Notes - 1,090 - 20,638
Rent - - - 26,531
Miscellaneous (note 3) 3,604,727 - - 2,973
Due from primary government, net (note 7) - - - 53,339
Due from component units, net (note 7) 3,775,545 - - -
Due from other governments, net (note 5) 8,246,032 - 2,344,364 -
Inventory 232,235 1,109,615 75,671 -
Other assets 89,151 - - -
Net pension asset (note 11) - - 1,738,743 -
Net OPEB health insurance credit asset (note 12) - - 18,173 -
Capital assets, net (note 6):
Non-depreciable 52,499,607 6,111,331 9,425,841 911,505
Depreciable 302,348,053 146,471,081 48,027,452 642,771
Net capital assets 354,847,660 152,582,412 57,453,293 1,554,276
Total assets 488,965,942 218,719,558 81,612,117 2,242,514
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refundings, net - 1,510,736 - -
Deferred pensions (note 11) 9,256,193 815,631 24,750,684 -
Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare (note 12) 181,521 13,062 14,942 -
Deferred OPEB group life insurance (note 12) 684,741 77,029 1,408,751 -
Deferred OPEB health insurance credit (note 12) 142,335 11,901 1,329,641 -
Deferred OPEB Virginia local disability program (note 12) - - 104,256 -
Total deferred outflows of resources 10,264,790 2,428,359 27,608,274 -
Total assets and deferred
outflow of resources $ 499,230,732 $ 221,147,917 $ 109,220,391 $ 2,242,514
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 4,145,770 $ 428,901 $ 1,299,039 $ 53,339
Accrued liabilities 470,024 352,149 14,397,781 -
Liabilities payable from restricted assets 1,626,177 - - -
Due to primary government, net (note 7) - 494,045 3,334,839 -
Due to other governments - - 185,852 -
Advances for construction (note 16) - 32,902 - -
Amounts held for others - 830,721 - -
Unearned revenue (note 8) 897,273 - 1,774,017 -
Long-term liabilities (notes 9, 10, 11 and 12):
Due within one year 17,570,717 1,694,336 610,859 -
Due in more than one year 147,048,013 31,173,797 137,243,738 -
Total liabilities 171,757,974 35,006,851 158,846,125 53,339
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refundings, net 760,953 - - -
Deferred pensions (note 11) 2,191,393 262,425 12,333,636 -
Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare (note 12) 812,800 76,605 813,977 -
Deferred OPEB group life insurance (note 12) 284,477 25,058 528,632 -
Deferred OPEB health insurance credit (note 12) 15,321 12,267 347,471 -
Deferred OPEB Virginia local disability program (note 12) - - 3,870 -
Total deferred inflows of resources 4,064,944 376,355 14,027,586 -
Net Position
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 223,523,519 132,512,264 57,453,293 1,554,276
Restricted net position:
Debt service 2,030,253 660,282 - -
Capital projects - 8,741,597 - -
Net pension and OPEB asset - - 1,756,916 -
Other 1,319,233 - 556,189 -
Unrestricted 96,534,809 43,850,568 (123,419,718) 634,899
Total net position 323,407,814 185,764,711 (63,653,320) 2,189,175
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position $ 499,230,732 $ 221,147,917 $ 109,220,391 $ 2,242,514

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements
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County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Activities
Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit 2

Net (expenses) revenues and changes in net assets

Primary Discretely presented
Program revenues Government component units

Operating Capital James City Economic

Charges for grants and grants and Governmental Service Public Development
Functions/programs Expenses services contributions contributions activities Authority schools Authority

Primary government:
Governmental activities:
General government administration $ 15,165,784 $ 7,864,966 $ 12,953,994 $ - $ 5,653,176 $ - $ - $ -
Judicial administration 6,339,331 2,409,617 1,237,570 - (2,692,144) - - -
Public safety 34,366,944 2,854,882 5,790,394 64,095 (25,657,573) - - -
Public works 9,918,359 1,519,402 10,998 - (8,387,959) - - -
Health and human services 9,523,747 - 5,186,904 116,540 (4,220,303) - - -
Education (including School system) 101,088,169 - 14,818,558 - (86,269,611) - - -
Parks, recreation and cultural 12,629,914 2,844,953 6,900 - (9,778,061) - - -
Community development 9,095,405 330,451 1,789,935 - (6,975,019) - - -
Interest on long-term debt 3,919,485 - - - (3,919,485) - - -
Total governmental activities 202,047,138 17,824,271 41,795,253 180,635 (142,246,979) - - -
Total primary government $ 202,047,138 $ 17,824,271 $ 41,795253 $ 180,635 _$ (142,246,979) $ - $ - $ -
Component units:

Economic Development Authority $ 110,297 $ 104,601 $ 5,223 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ (473)
James City Service Authority 21,334,454 20,079,504 - 17,325 - (1,237,625) - -
Public Schools 151,174,272 1,716,798 20,127,645 - - - (129,329,829) -

Total component units $ 172,619,023 $ 21,900,903 $ 20,132,868 $ 17,325 $ - $ (1,237,625 $ (129,329,829) $ (473)

General revenues:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes  $ 138,698,177 $ - $ - $ -
Local sales and use taxes 14,660,594 - - -
Franchise license tax 484,998 - - -
Taxes on recordation and wills 1,532,445 - - -
Hotel and motel room taxes 2,768,935 - - -
Restaurant food taxes 6,049,097 - - -
Deeds of conveyance 412,922 - - -
Penalties and interest 72,655 - - -
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs - - 126,423,862 -

Interest and investment earnings 966,252 2,033,417 140,109 4,219

Miscellaneous 1,493,215 502,710 187,980 (95,933)

Total general revenues and transfers 167,139,290 2,536,127 126,751,951 (91,714)

Change in net position 24,892,311 1,298,502 (2,577,879) (92,187)

Net position, beginning 298,515,503 184,466,209 (61,075,441) 2,281,362

Net position, ending

$ 323,407,814 $ 185,764,711 $ (63,653,320) _$ 2,189,175

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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Assets

Cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Investments (note 2)
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 2)
Receivables, net of allowance:

Taxes

Interest

Loans, net (note 3)

Miscellaneous (note 3)
Due from other funds (note 4)
Due from component units (note 7)
Due from other governments, net (note 5)
Inventory

Total assets

Liabilities
Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Payables from restricted assets
Due to other funds (note 4)
Due to component units (note 7)
Unearned revenue (note 8)

Total liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue (note 8)

Fund Balances
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory
Restricted
Debt service - bond proceeds held in escrow
Other governmental funds
Assigned:
General
Capital projects/reserve
Other governmental funds
Unassigned
Total fund balances
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

County of James City, Virginia

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Exhibit 3

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt governmental governmental

General projects service funds funds
$ 41,865,493 $ 17,338,045 $ 10,876,173 $ 70,079,711
- 14,748,428 - 14,748,428
1,244,757 2,380,453 1,331,776 4,956,986
27,744,051 593 - 35,198 27,779,842
- 79,821 - - 79,821
- - - 525,804 525,804
3,526,199 - - 78,528 3,604,727
- - - 769,827 769,827
6,056,772 - - - 6,056,772
7,101,625 - - 1,144,407 8,246,032
232,235 - - - 232,235
$ 87,771,132 $ 34,547,340 - $ 14,761,713 $ 137,080,185
$ 3,444,261 $ 408,391 - $ 293,118 $ 4,145,770
214,996 - - 15,957 230,953
1,234,757 350,200 - 41,220 1,626,177
769,827 - - - 769,827
1,720,853 438,536 - 121,838 2,281,227
702,618 55,563 - 139,092 897,273
8,087,312 1,252,690 - 611,225 9,951,227
20,103,449 593 - 456,134 20,560,176
232,235 - - - 232,235
- 2,030,253 - - 2,030,253
- - - 1,319,233 1,319,233
9,436,272 - - - 9,436,272
7,853,810 31,263,804 - - 39,117,614
- - - 12,375,121 12,375,121
42,058,054 - - - 42,058,054
59,580,371 33,294,057 - 13,694,354 106,568,782
$ 87,771,132 $ 34,547,340 - $ 14,761,713 $ 137,080,185

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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Exhibit 3
County of James City, Virginia
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of the balance sheet for governmental funds to the government-wide
statement of net position:

Ending fund balance, governmental funds $ 106,568,782

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the balance sheet are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds. 354,847,660
Land held for resale and future development used in governmental activities are not
financial resources and therefore are not reported in the funds. 89,151

Some receivables are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and
therefore are unavailable revenue in the funds. 20,560,176

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position applying to
future periods and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Deferred pension $ 9,256,193

Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare 181,521

Deferred OPEB group life insurance 684,741

Deferred OPEB health insurance credit 142,335 10,264,790
Unmatured interest payable reported in governmental activities will not be paid with
current financial resources and therefore is not reported in the funds. (239,071)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

General obligation bonds (27,220,000)
Lease revenue bonds (92,484,000)
Unamortized bond premiums, net (11,803,324)
Capital leases (1,086,117)
Net pension liability (19,504,820)
Net OPEB liability (8,175,670)
Compensated absences (4,162,759)
Landfill postclosure care cost (182,040) (164,618,730)

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that is
applicable to a future reporting period and therefore, is not reported in the
governmental funds.

Deferred charge on refundings (760,953)

Deferred pension (2,191,393)

Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare (812,800)

Deferred OPEB GLI (284,477)

Deferred OPEB HIC (15,321) (4,064,944)
Net position, governmental activities $ 323,407,814

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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Revenues:
General property taxes
Other local taxes
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental:
Local
Commonwealth
Federal
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public safety
Public works
Health and human services
Education
Parks, recreation and cultural
Community development
Nondepartmental
Debt service:
Principal
Interest and other fiscal charges
Capital outlay - County activities
Capital outlay - School activities
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in (note 4)
Transfers out (note 4)
Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning of year
Fund balances, end of year

County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit 4

Major Funds Nonmajor Total
Capital Debt governmental governmental
General projects service funds funds

$ 138,724,196 $ - $ - $ - $ 138,724,196
25,371,283 - - 610,363 25,981,646
8,878,568 - - - 8,878,568
231,608 - - - 231,608
198,996 706,842 60,414 - 966,252
6,291,204 - - - 6,291,204
221,688 771,280 39,929 460,318 1,493,215
- - - 566,599 566,599
28,905,026 - - 3,795,275 32,700,301
93,428 - - 10,977,977 11,071,405
$ 208,915,997 $ 1,478,122 $ 100,343 $ 16,410,532 $ 226,904,994
$ 11,712,490 $ - $ - $ 1,192,750 $ 12,905,240
4,455,718 - - 1,499,157 5,954,875
26,892,393 - - 4,209,892 31,102,285
8,635,840 - - 16,998 8,652,838
2,470,939 - - 6,912,221 9,383,160
90,536,751 - - 1,749,959 92,286,710
10,743,874 - - 7,544 10,751,418
5,951,281 - 44,139 3,686,630 9,682,050
16,128 - - - 16,128
- - 14,282,841 - 14,282,841
- - 5,447,279 - 5,447,279
- 5,499,387 - - 5,499,387
- 6,324,806 - - 6,324,806
161,415,414 11,824,193 19,774,259 19,275,151 212,289,017
47,500,583 (10,346,071) (19,673,916) (2,864,619) 14,615,977
102,833 9,908,147 19,673,916 6,548,379 36,233,275
(34,912,342) (537,045) - (783,888) (36,233,275)

(34,809,509) 9,371,102 19,673,916 5,764,491 -
12,691,074 (974,969) - 2,899,872 14,615,977
46,889,297 34,269,026 - 10,794,482 91,952,805
$ 59,580,371 $ 33,294,057 $ - $ 13,694,354 $ 106,568,782

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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Exhibit 4
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2020

Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balances of governmental funds to the statement of activities:
Net change in fund balances, governmental funds $ 14,615,977

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:
Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This amount
represents the difference between depreciation expense and capital outlay
expenditures. The details of this difference are as follows:

Depreciation expense $ (15,134,670)
Capital outlay expenditures 10,678,766
Loss on disposal of capital assets (97,645) (4,553,549)

Loss on land held for resale and future development is not reported in the
governmental funds however, is reflected in the statement of activities. Other
assets decreased by this amount this year. (126,203)

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
County’s fiscal year end, they are not considered “available” revenues and are
deferred in the governmental funds. Unavailable revenue increased by this
amount this year. 34,456

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of premiums and refunding gains/losses, and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized
in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences
in the treatment of long-term debt and related accounts. The details of this
difference are as follows:

Principal payments 14,282,841
Amortization on premium 1,420,654
Amortization on deferred charge on refundings (14,290) 15,689,205

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. The details of this difference is as follows:

Compensated absences (405,403)

Landfill (3,043)

Interest payable 121,430

Net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows (522,467)

Net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows 41,908 (767,575)
Change in net position, governmental activities $ 24,892,311

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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Exhibit 5
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
June 30, 2020

Agency
funds
Assets

Cash, cash equivalents and investments (note 2) $ 9,617,567

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments (note 2)
Money market funds 289,485
Bond mutual funds 4,642,405
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units 1,925,591
Total assets $ 16,475,048

Liabilities
Liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 5,819,411
Amounts held for others 10,655,637
Total liabilities $ 16,475,048

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The County of James City (the County or the primary government) operates under the County Administrator
form of government (as defined under Virginia Law). The elected five-member Board of Supervisors appoints
a County Administrator to serve as the Chief Executive Officer of the County.

The accompanying financial statements of the County of James City, Virginia conform to U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to government units promulgated by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The County’s significant accounting and reporting policies are described
below.

The Financial Reporting Entity

As defined by U.S. GAAP established by GASB, the financial reporting entity consists of the primary
government and its component units, which are legally separate organizations for which the Board of
Supervisors of the County is financially accountable or closely related. Financial accountability is defined as
appointment of a voting majority of the component unit's board, and either (a) the ability to impose will by the
primary government, or (b) the possibility that the component unit will provide a financial benefit or impose a
financial burden on the primary government. In addition, an organization that is closely related to or financially
integrated with a primary government should be reported as a component unit if the nature and significance of
that relationship warrants the inclusion of the organization in the reporting entity.

These financial statements present the County and its component units. The component units discussed below
are included in the County's reporting entity because of the significance of the operational or financial
relationships with the County.

Discretely Presented Component Units

James City Service Authority (the Authority): The Authority was established on June 30, 1969, by resolution of
the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia and was chartered by the Commonwealth of Virginia
State Corporation Commission in July 1969 to provide water and sewer service to County residents as
permitted under the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended (the Enabling Act).

The Authority serves all the citizens and businesses of the County and is governed by a Board of Directors that
is comprised of the County’s elected Board of Supervisors. The Authority is considered to be financially
integrated with the County based on the nature and significance of its relationship with the County. The County’s
Strategic Plan includes a sustainable long-term water supply as a primary goal, which is to be achieved through
the efforts of the Authority. In addition, the Authority has adopted other Strategic Plan goals in developing its
initiatives. As a result, the County’s Strategic Plan serves as the basis for budgetary and operational decisions
of both the County and the Authority and financially integrates these entities.

In prior years, the Authority was presented as a blended component unit of the County, given that the County
Administrator had certain operational responsibility for the Authority. The Board of Directors adopted a
resolution to appoint the Authority’s General Manager as its chief executive officer in 2018, and procedures
have been implemented subsequently to remove operational responsibilities over the Authority from the
County. The Authority remains financially integrated with the County; therefore, the Authority is included as a
discretely presented component unit in the County’s financial statements for reporting purposes. Additional
information on this change is included in Note 19 to the financial statements.

The Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 may be obtained from the
Department of Financial and Management Services, 101-F Mounts Bay Road, P.O. Box 8784, Williamsburg,
Virginia 23187-8784.

Williamsburg-James City County Public Schools (the Public Schools): The Public Schools, pursuant to an
agreement dated January 14, 1954, as amended, are responsible for educating the school-age population of
the City of Williamsburg, Virginia (the City) and the County. Two members of the School Board are appointed
by the City Council of the City. Five members of the School Board represent James City County and are elected
by the citizens of James City County.

Although the Public Schools are legally separate, the County is financially accountable due to the significance
of the fiscal dependency relationship with the Public Schools.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Local costs related to operations of the Public Schools are apportioned between the participating localities in
accordance with the agreement, as amended. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the apportionment of
the Public Schools’ operating costs to the City and County was $9,606,147 (9.48%) and $91,718,186 (90.52%),
respectively. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, the contributions for the Public Schools’ capital project
costs from the City and County were $738,493 (12.7%) and $5,070,285 (87.3%), respectively.

The Public Schools’ financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 may be obtained from the
Finance Department, 117 Ironbound Road, Williamsburg, Virginia 23185.

James City County Economic Development Authority (the Development Authority): The Development Authority
is responsible for industrial and commercial development in the County. The Development Authority makes
recommendations to the James City County Board of Supervisors. The Development Authority consists of
seven members appointed by the James City County Board of Supervisors. Although the Development
Authority is a legally separate entity, the County is financially accountable due to the significance of the fiscal
dependency relationship with the Development Authority because the majority of their income is appropriated
by the County.

From time to time, the Development Authority has issued Industrial Revenue Bonds (the Bonds) to provide
financial assistance to private-sector entities for the acquisition and construction of industrial and commercial
facilities deemed to be in the public interest. The Bonds are secured by the property financed and are payable
solely from payments received on the underlying mortgage loans. Upon repayment of the Bonds, ownership of
the acquired facilities transfers to the private-sector entity served by the bond issuance. Neither the County, the
state, nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated in any manner for repayment of the Bonds. Accordingly,
the Bonds are not reported as liabilities in the accompanying financial statements. As of June 30, 2020, there
were 15 series of Industrial Revenue Bonds outstanding, with an aggregate principal amount payable of
approximately $180.5 million.

The Development Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 may be obtained
from the Director of Economic Development, 101-D Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, Virginia 23185.

Other Related Organizations and Joint Ventures

Separate financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, for all other related organizations and
joint ventures discussed below except the Colonial Community Corrections Program, Inc., the Virginia
Peninsulas Public Service Authority, and the Williamsburg Regional Library, may be obtained from the Assistant
Director of Financial and Management Services of James City County, 101-F Mounts Bay Road, P.O. Box
8784, Williamsburg, Virginia 23187-8784.

Williamsburg Area Medical Assistance Corporation (the Corporation): The Corporation was incorporated on
February 19, 1993. The Corporation provides a primary medical care clinic to economically disadvantaged
persons in the Counties of James City and York and the City of Williamsburg. The County appoints two board
members to the Corporation. The Corporation is a legally separate organization, and the County cannot impose
its will on the Corporation. The program is fiscally independent, and there is no financial benefit or burden
relationship with the County. The County is fiscal agent for the Corporation, and as a result, the Corporation’s
financial transactions are included as an agency fund in the County’s financial statements.

Colonial Community Corrections Program (the Program): The Program serves the Counties of James City, New
Kent, York and Charles City, and the City of Williamsburg. The Program is fiscally independent, and there is no
financial benefit or burden relationship with the County. The County is the fiscal and administrative agent and
the Program is included as a special revenue fund in the County’s financial statements.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Virginia Peninsulas Public Service Authority (the Public Service Authority): The Public Service Authority was
created pursuant to the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended, between the Cities of Hampton, Newport News,
Poquoson and Williamsburg, and the Counties of Essex, Gloucester, James City, King and Queen, King
William, Mathews, Middlesex and York. Each jurisdiction appoints one board member. The Public Service
Authority is a legally separate organization, and the County cannot impose its will on the Public Service
Authority. The Public Service Authority is fiscally independent, and there is no financial benefit or burden
relationship with the County; therefore, itis not included in the County’s financial statements. The Public Service
Authority’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 may be obtained from the Public Service
Authority, 475 McLaws Circle, Suite 3B, Williamsburg, Virginia 23185-5676.

Williamsburg Regional Library (the Library): The Library, pursuant to an agreement dated May 26, 1977, as
amended, provides library services to the City of Williamsburg, James City County and York County. The Library
is operated by a board of trustees. The County appoints 6 trustees, the City of Williamsburg appoints 4 trustees
and York County appoints 1 trustee. The Library is a legally separate organization, and the County cannot
impose its will on the trustees. The Library is fiscally independent, and there is no financial benefit or burden
relationship with the County; therefore, it is not included in the County’s financial statements. The Library’s
financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020 may be obtained from the Library, 7770 Croaker
Road, Williamsburg, Virginia 23188.

Virginia Peninsula Regional Jail Authority (the Jail Authority): The Jail Authority was organized and exists
pursuant to resolutions adopted in 1993 by and between the Cities of Williamsburg and Poquoson and the
Counties of James City and York. The Jail Authority is operated by a board. Each member jurisdiction appoints
one member and the sheriff from that jurisdiction. The County, as fiscal agent, appoints one additional member.
The Jail Authority is a legally separate organization, and the County cannot impose its will on the Jail Authority.
The Jail Authority is fiscally independent, and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the County.
The County is charged user fees based on inmate population in order to cover direct and indirect costs of the
Jail Authority. The County is fiscal agent for the Jail Authority, and as such, the Jail Authority’s financial
transactions are included as an agency fund in the County’s financial statements.

Middle Peninsula Juvenile Detention Commission (the Commission): The Commission was created as a
political subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia by resolutions adopted in 1993. The member jurisdictions
are as follows: Caroline County, Charles City County, Essex County, Gloucester County, Hanover County,
James City County, King and Queen County, King William County, Lancaster County, Mathews County,
Middlesex County, New Kent County, Northumberland County, City of Poquoson, Richmond County,
Westmoreland County, City of Williamsburg and York County. The Commission is operated by a board. Each
member jurisdiction appoints one member. The Commission is a legally separate organization, and the County
cannot impose its will on the Commission. The Commission is fiscally independent, and there is no financial
benefit or burden relationship with the County. The County is charged user fees based on juvenile population
in order to cover direct and indirect costs of the Commission. The County is fiscal agent for the Commission,
and as such, the Commission’s financial statements are included as an agency fund in the County’s financial
statements.

Williamsburg Area Transit Authority (the Transit Authority): The Transit Authority was created as a political
subdivision of the Commonwealth of Virginia by resolutions adopted in 2008. Members include the County, City
of Williamsburg, County of York and the Colonial Williamsburg Foundation. The Transit Authority is governed
by a board, consisting of five representatives appointed by the members. The Transit Authority is a legally
separate organization, and the County cannot impose its will on the Transit Authority. The Transit Authority is
fiscally independent from the County, and there is no financial benefit or burden relationship with the County.
The County is fiscal agent for the Transit Authority, and as such, the Transit Authority’s financial statements are
included as an agency fund in the County’s financial statements.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020
1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Basis of Presentation

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The accompanying basic financial statements include both government-wide (based on the County as a whole)
and fund financial statements. Both the government-wide and fund financial statements (within the basic
financial statements) categorize primary activities as either governmental or business type. In the government-
wide statement of net position, the governmental and business-type activities columns (a) are presented on a
consolidated basis by column, and (b) are reflected, on a full accrual basis of accounting and economic
resources measurement focus, which incorporates long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt
and obligations. The County generally first uses restricted assets for expenses incurred for which both restricted
and unrestricted assets are available. The County may defer the use of restricted assets based on a review of
the specific transaction.

The government-wide statement of activities reflects both the gross and net cost per functional category that
are otherwise being supported by general government revenues. The statement of activities reduces gross
expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants and contributions.
The program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity. Program
revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods,
services, or privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting
the operation or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly
included among program revenues are reported as general revenues. Administrative overhead charges are
allocated to the programs and included in direct expenses. The operating grants include operating-specific and
discretionary (either operating or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

In the fund financial statements, financial transactions and accounts of the County are organized on the basis
of funds. The operation of each fund is considered to be an independent fiscal and separate accounting entity,
with a self-balancing set of accounts recording cash and/or other financial resources together with all related
liabilities and residual equities or balances, and changes therein, which are segregated for the purpose of
carrying on specific activities or attaining certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions,
or limitations. The governmental fund statements are presented on a current financial resources measurement
focus and modified accrual basis of accounting. Since the governmental fund statements are presented on a
different measurement focus and basis of accounting than the government-wide statements’ governmental
activities column, a reconciliation is presented which explains the adjustments necessary to reconcile the fund
financial statements to the governmental activities column of the government-wide financial statements. The
County’s fiduciary funds are presented in the fund financial statements. Given that, by definition, these assets
are being held for the benefit of third parties and cannot be used to address activities or obligations of the
County, these funds are not incorporated into the government-wide statements.

The County reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund: The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in other funds. A significant part of the General
Fund’s revenues is contributed to the joint-school operations of the City and County or is transferred to other
funds principally to fund debt service, capital projects and social services requirements.

Capital Projects Fund: The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities.

Debt Service Fund: The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of principal, interest and related costs on long-term debt of governmental funds.

Additionally, the County reports the following fund types:

Nonmajor Governmental Funds: Nonmajor Governmental Funds include special revenue funds which account
for revenue derived from specific sources that are restricted by legal and regulatory provisions to finance
specific activities of the County. These funds consist of Virginia Public Assistance, Colonial Community
Corrections, Community Development, Donation Trust, Tourism, and Grants and Special Projects.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Nonmajor Fiduciary Funds: Nonmajor Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the County in a
trustee capacity or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governmental units and/or other
funds. The County’s Fiduciary Funds includes the Agency Funds, which consist of Special Welfare,
Williamsburg Area Medical Assistance Corporation, Regional Jail, Juvenile Detention, and Williamsburg Area
Transit Authority.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement focus. All
governmental funds are accounted for using the current financial resources measurement focus. With this
measurement focus, only current assets and current liabilities generally are included on the balance sheet in
the funds statements. Long-term assets and long-term liabilities are included in the government-wide
statements. Operating statements of the governmental funds present increases (i.e., revenues and other
financing sources) and decreases (i.e., expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets.

The accompanying fund financial statements of the governmental funds are maintained and reported on the
modified accrual basis of accounting using the current financial resources measurement focus. Under this
method of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they become measurable and available
to finance operations during the year. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within
the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the
government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 45 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures, other than interest on long-term debt, are recorded when the fund liability is incurred.
Interest on long-term debt is recorded when due.

In applying the modified accrual concept to intergovernmental revenues, the legal and contractual requirements
of the numerous individual programs are used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two types of those
revenues. In one, monies must be expended for the specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid
to the County, which is usually within 45 days; therefore, revenues are recognized based upon the expenditures
recorded. In the other, monies are virtually unrestricted as to purpose of expenditure and are usually revocable
only for failure to comply with prescribed compliance requirements. These resources are reflected as revenues
at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to accrual criteria are met.

Real estate and personal property taxes are recorded as revenues and receivables when levied and billed, net
of allowances for uncollectible amounts. Property taxes levied but not collected within 45 days after year end
are reflected as deferred revenue. Sales taxes, which are collected by the state and subsequently remitted to
the County, are recognized as revenues and receivables upon execution of the sale, which is generally
two months preceding receipt by the County.

License and permits, fines and rents are recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally
not measurable until actually received. Investment earnings are recorded at fair value as earned since they are
measurable and available.

The government-wide financial statements are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement
focus. With this measurement focus, all assets and all liabilities associated with the operation of these activities
are included on the statement of net position.

Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19)

Please refer to note 18 for information on the impact of COVID-19 on accounting and financial reporting during
fiscal year 2020.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
investments that are both (a) readily convertible to known amounts of cash, and (b) so near the maturity that
they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of changes in interest rates. Generally, the County
considers investments with original maturities of 90 days or less to be cash equivalents.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Investments

Investments are reported at fair value except for the position in Virginia's Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP) which in accordance with state law, is reported at amortized cost. The County determines fair value in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application. This statement requires
the use of valuation techniques which are appropriate under the circumstances and are either a market
approach, a cost approach, or an income approach. The statement establishes a hierarchy of inputs used to
measure fair value consisting of three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The County uses a market approach as the
valuation technique for Level 2 inputs. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, such as management’s
assumption of the default rate among underlying mortgages of a mortgage-backed security. Statement No. 72
also contains note disclosure requirements regarding the hierarchy of valuation inputs and valuation techniques
that was used for the fair value measurements.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The County calculates its allowance for uncollectible accounts using historical collection data and specific
account analysis. The allowance for uncollectible accounts relating solely to property taxes was $83,634 in the
General Fund at June 30, 2020. Additionally, the County recorded an allowance for uncollectible accounts of
$16,852 related to business, professional and occupational license taxes and $253,491 for the Advance Life
Support/Basic Life Support (ALS/BLS) fees.

Inventory

All inventories, which consist of materials and supplies, are valued at cost using the average-cost method.
Reported inventories are accounted for under the consumption method (i.e., recorded as expenditures when
used) in the governmental funds. The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items
are consumed. Quantities on hand at year end are recorded at cost on the balance sheet with an offset to
nonspendable fund balance, which indicates that they do not constitute available spendable resources.

Capital Assets

Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the governmental funds and as assets in the accompanying
government-wide financial statements to the extent the County’s capitalization threshold of $5,000 is met.
Depreciation is recorded on capital assets on a government-wide basis.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost was not available.
Contributed capital assets are valued at their acquisition value on the date donated.

Maintenance, repairs and minor equipment are charged to operations when incurred. Expenditures that
materially change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of capital assets,
the cost and related accumulated depreciation, if applicable, are eliminated from the respective accounts and
any resulting gain or loss is included in the results of operations.

Depreciation of capital assets is calculated on the straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings and improvements 10 to 50 years
Improvements other than buildings 6 to 40 years
Equipment and vehicles 3 to 20 years
Infrastructure 20 to 40 years

Compensated Absences

County employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts based on length of service. They
may accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused sick and vacation leave, and upon retirement,
termination, or death, may be compensated for certain amounts at their then current rates of pay. The
accumulated annual sick and vacation leave estimated to be payable upon separation are recorded in the
accompanying government-wide financial statements.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Property Taxes

Real property taxes are recognized as receivables when levied. Real property taxes attach as an enforceable
lien on property automatically. Taxes are levied no later than October 1 and are due by December 5 and June 5.

Property taxes levied in the current and prior year have been recorded in governmental activities as receivables
as of the date the County has the legal right to receive payments thereon. Personal property taxes create a lien
on the assessed property. The receivables collected during the fiscal year and during the first 45 days of the
succeeding fiscal year are recognized in the General Fund as revenues in the current fiscal year.

A penalty of 10% of the tax is assessed the business day after the due date on taxes outstanding as of those
dates and interest at 10% per annum is added.

Risk Management

The County is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. Property, liability and line of duty coverages
are provided through a group self-insurance risk pool. The County’s retention is through deductibles on a per-
claim basis.

There have been no reductions in insurance coverages from the prior year, and settled claims have not
exceeded the amount of insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

Deductibles and coverage limits at June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Liability
Deductibles Coverage Limits
Property insurance:
Building and contents $ 10,000 Replacement cost
Functional cost/|
Inland marine $ 1,000 actual cash value
Flood/earthquake (outside 100 year flood plain) $ 25,000 | $ 100,000,000
Business interruption/extra expense $ 3,000,000
Property in transit $ 5,000,000
Increased cost of construction/ordinance/demolition $ 20,000,000
Back-up of sewers and drains $ 10,000,000
Debris removal $ 25,000,000
Pollutant clean-up and removal $ 500,000
Utility services time element $ 5,000,000
Newly acquired locations for up to 120 days $ 25,000,000
Boiler/equipment breakdown $ 1,000 | $ 125,000,000
General liability $ 100,000 | $ 2,000,000
Public officials liability $ 100,000 | $ 1,000,000
Law enforcement liability $ 100,000 | $ 2,000,000
Automobile liability $ 100,000 | $ 2,000,000
Actual cash value/
Automobile comprehensive/collision $ 1,000 repair cost
Crime $ 250 [ $ 500,000
Cyber risk $ 100,000 | $ 2,000,000
Environmental liability $ 100,000 | $ 1,000,000
Excess liability - General; Automotive; Law enforcement $ 7,000,000
Excess liability - Public officials $ 8,000,000
Worker's compensation; Line of duty Statutory limits
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1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

Bond Premiums, Discounts and Issuance Costs

In the accompanying government-wide financial statements, bond premiums and discounts are deferred and
amortized over the terms of the related issues on a straight-line basis, which approximates the effective interest
method.

In the accompanying fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. Premiums received on debt issuances are
reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

Interfund Transactions

Interfund transactions are reflected as either loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation.
Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and
expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund transactions are treated as
transfers.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets and liabilities, the statement of net position reports separate sections for deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows represent a consumption of net position that
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until then. Deferred inflows
represent an acquisition of net position that is applicable to a future reporting period and, therefore, will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources until that time.

The County has the following items that qualify for reporting in these categories:

e Deferred gain/loss on refunding: A deferred amount on refunding is a deferred outflow/inflow which
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is
deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.

e Contributions subsequent to the measurement date for pensions and OPEB: These contributions are
always a deferred outflow, which will be applied to the net pension or OPEB liability in the next fiscal year.

e Differences between expected and actual experience for economic/demographic factors in the
measurement of the total pension or OPEB liability: This difference will be recognized in pension or
OPEB expense over the expected average remaining service life of all employees provided with benefits in
the plan and may be reported as a deferred inflow or outflow as appropriate.

o Differences resulting from a changes in proportion of the collective net pension and OPEB
liabilities: This difference will be recognized in pension and OPEB expense over the expected average
remaining service life of all employees provided with benefits in the plan and may be reported as a deferred
inflow or outflow as appropriate.

o Difference between projected and actual earnings on pension and OPEB plan investments: This
difference will be recognized in pension or OPEB expense over the closed five year period and may be
reported as a deferred outflow or inflow as appropriate.

e Differences resulting from changes in assumptions on pension plan or OPEB investments: These
differences will be recognized in pension or OPEB expense over the estimated remaining service life of
employees subject to the plan.
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1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued
Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting in which purchase orders, contracts and other commitments for the expenditure of
monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an
extension of formal budgetary integration. Outstanding encumbrances at year-end are reported in their
appropriate fund balance classification in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting
and Governmental Fund Type Definitions.

Fund Balances

Fund balance is classified as nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, and/or unassigned based
primarily on the extent to which the County is bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the
resources in the governmental funds. Fund balances are reported according to the following categories:

Nonspendable: Amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or are legally or
contractually required to be maintained intact. This classification includes inventories, prepaid amounts,
assets held for sale, and long-term receivables.

Restricted: Amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes stipulated by constitution, external
resource providers or through enabling legislation.

Committed: Amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes determined by formal action of the
Board of Supervisors by adoption of an ordinance and cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
County removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously
commit those amounts. In contrast to fund balance that is restricted by enabling legislation, committed
fund balance may be redeployed for other purposes with appropriate due process.

Assigned: Amounts that are intended to be used for specific purposes, but do not meet the criteria as
restricted or committed. In governmental funds other than the general fund, assigned fund balance
represents the remaining amount that is not restricted or committed. In the general fund, assigned
amounts represent intended uses established by the Board of Supervisors, or as delegated to the Director
of Financial and Management Services. The Board of Supervisors has, by resolution, authorized the
Director of Financial and Management Services to assign fund balance. Unlike commitments, assignments
generally only exist temporarily and an additional action is not normally required to be taken for the removal
of an assignment.

Unassigned: Includes the residual classification for the County’s general fund and includes all spendable amounts
not contained in other classifications. Only the general fund can report a positive unassigned fund balance. This
includes the County’s goal of maintaining a fiscal liquidity balance between 10%-12% of the total general
governmental expenditures.

The County’s policy is to apply expenditures against restricted resources first when either restricted or
unrestricted amounts are available. Within unrestricted fund balance, it is the County’'s policy to apply
expenditures against committed amounts first, followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts. In a
governmental fund other than the general fund, a negative unassigned fund balance could result if expenditures
incurred for a specific purpose exceeds the amounts in the fund that are restricted, committed, and assigned
for that purpose.

The use of the general fund’s unassigned fund balance may be necessary from time to time to meet unexpected
events including, but not limited to: catastrophic (emergency funds in the event of natural or man-made
disasters); financial opportunity (to enhance the well-being of James City County or other such global purpose
to protect its long-term fiscal security); operational (provide additional funds for limited unexpected needs); and
revenue shortfalls (to provide limited funds to smooth fluctuations caused by changes in economic conditions).
It is the County’s policy that if the use of the general fund’s unassigned fund balance causes the balance to fall
below the minimum fiscal liquidity balance of 10%, the Board of Supervisors will adopt a plan and a timeline for
replenishing the balance to its minimum 10% level.
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1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies, Continued

The constraints placed on fund balance for the major governmental funds and non-major governmental funds
in the aggregate at June 30, 2020 were as follows:

Nonmajor
governmental
General Capital Projects Funds
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 232,235 $ - $ -
Restricted:
Debt service - bond proceeds held in escrow - 2,030,253 -
Housing and neighborhood development - - 838,151
Fire and emergency management - - 129,366
Health initiative - - 33,611
Encumbrances - - 318,105
Total restricted - 2,030,253 1,319,233
Assigned:
General government - 4,592,823 383,343
Judicial administration - 58,700 689,970
Public safety - 1,309,565 74,274
Public works - 4,039,759 -
Health and welfare - - 2,237,991
Education - 5,042,216 769,827
Parks, recreation and cultural - 4,515,784 21,931
Community development - 9,780,022 7,726,803
Other - 190,293 -
Encumbrances 834,391 1,734,642 470,982
Health insurance reserve 4,091,481 - -
Potential insurance losses 300,000 - -
Capital reserve (debt reserve fund) 7,853,810 - -
School operations 1,810,400 - -
Subsequent year's budget - capital projects 2,400,000 - -
Total assigned 17,290,082 31,263,804 12,375,121
Unassigned 42,058,054 - -
Total fund balance $ 59,580,371 $ 33,294,057 $ 13,694,354
Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates and
assumptions.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the prior year financial presentations in the management’s discussion and analysis and
statistical sections have been reclassified for comparative purposes to conform to the current year presentation.
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2) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Primary Government

The primary government’s cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2020, consisted of the following:

Bank deposits $ 40,627,599
Petty cash 7,000
Amounts held for others 178
Money market 38,506,060
Investments 25,193,745
Total $ 104,334,582
Per Exhibit 1:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 70,079,711
Investments 14,748,428
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 4,956,986
Per Exhibit 5:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments 9,617,567
Restricted cash and investments 4,931,890
Total $ 104,334,582

The totals above include Agency Funds in the amount of $14,549,457 from Exhibit 5, which are not a part of
the government-wide financial statements.

Deposits with banks are fully covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia.

The primary government’s restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2020 are detailed as

follows:
Fund Purpose Amount Total
Major governmental funds
General Subdivision escrow $ 1,244,757
Capital projects Unspent bond proceeds 2,030,253
Developer escrow 350,200 2,380,453

Nonmajor governmental funds
Housing and neighborhood

development Community rehabilitation 850,694
Grants and special projects Grants and special projects 481,082 1,331,776
Total $ 4,956,986

Fair Value Hierarchy

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, establishes a hierarchy of valuation
techniques based on inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs. The County uses a market approach as the valuation technique for Level 2 inputs.

27



County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020
2) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

As of June 30, 2020, the primary government’s investments were as follows:

Investment Type Cost Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
U.S. Treasury securities $ 4092111 $ 4175032 $ - % 4175032 %
Federal agency notes and bonds 3,060,253 3,101,398 - 3,101,398
Corporate notes and bonds 1,605,842 1,647,266 - 1,647,266
Commercial paper 2,083,905 2,097,675 - 2,097,675
Certificates of deposit 1,700,457 1,715,987 - 1,715,987
Municipal notes and bonds 653,373 663,167 - 663,167
Federal agency collateralized
mortgage obligation 812,840 828,412 828,412
Supra-National agency bond/note 514,416 519,491 519,491
Total $ 14523197 $ 14748428 $ $ 14748428 $
Investment maturity (in years)
Fair value Less than 1 1-2 2-7
U.S. Treasury securities $ 4,175,032 $ 355,414 $ 3,160,948 $ 658,670
Federal agency notes and bonds 3,101,398 - 1,183,942 1,917,456
Corporate notes and bonds 1,647,266 - 649,563 997,703
Commercial paper 2,097,675 2,097,675 - -
Certificates of deposit 1,715,987 1,406,876 - 309,111
Municipal notes and bonds 663,167 178,040 215,351 269,776
Federal agency collateralized
mortgage obligation 828,412 47,213 233,895 547,304
Supra-National agency bond/note 519,491 - 276,637 242,854
Total $ 14,748,428 $ 4,085,218 $ 5,720,336 $ 4,942,874

Investment Policy

In accordance with the Code of Virginia and other applicable law, including regulations, the County’s Investment
Policy (the Policy) permits investments in U.S. government obligations, municipal obligations, prime quality
commercial paper, and certain corporate notes, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, negotiable
certificates of deposit, bank deposit notes, mutual funds, and the State Treasurer's Local Government
Investment Pool (the Virginia LGIP, which measures its investments at amortized cost). The Treasury Board of
the Commonwealth of Virginia has regulatory oversight of the LGIP.

The Policy establishes limitations on the holdings of non-U.S. government obligations. The maximum
percentage of the portfolio (book value at the date of acquisition) permitted in each security is as follows:

U.S. Treasury obligations

Federal Agency obligations

Registered money market mutual funds
Commonwealth of Virginia LGIP

Bank deposits

Repurchase agreements

Bankers’ acceptances

Commercial paper

Negotiable certificates of deposit/bank notes
Municipal obligations

Corporate notes
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100% maximum
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100% maximum
50% maximum
40% maximum
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County of James City, Virginia
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June 30, 2020

2) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued
Credit Risk

As required by state statute, the Policy requires that commercial paper have a short-term debt rating of no less
than “A-1" (or its equivalent) from at least two of the following; Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor’s,
Fitch Investor’s Service, and Duff and Phelps. Corporate notes must have a minimum of “Aa” long-term debt
rating by Moody’s Investors Service and a minimum of “AA” long-term debt rating by Standard & Poor’s.
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit and bank deposit notes maturing in less than one year must have a short-
term debt rating of at least “A-1" by Standard & Poor’s and “P-1" by Moody'’s Investors Service. Notes having a
maturity of greater than one year must be rated “AA” by Standard & Poor’s and “Aa” by Moody’s Investors
Service. Although state statute does not impose credit standards on repurchase agreement counterparties,
bankers’ acceptances or money market mutual funds, the County has established stringent credit standards for
these investments to minimize portfolio risk.

The County’s investments and cash equivalents as of June 30, 2020 were rated by Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s
and Fitch and/or an equivalent national rating organization, and the ratings are as follows:

Unrated AAA AA+ AA AA- A-1+ Al A+

Federal agency notes and bonds - - 3,101,398
Corporate notes and bonds - - 248,069 664,338 580,322 - - 154,537
Commercial paper - - - - - 299,304 1,798,371
Certificates of deposit - - - - 309,111 - 1,406,876
Municipal notes and bonds 123,094 75,000 85,493 121,896 257,684
Federal agency collateralized
mortgage obligation - - 828,412
Supra-National agency bond and notes - 519,491 -
US Treasury securities - 4,175,032
LGIP - 36,339,036
Money market 2,030,253 136,770

Total $ 2,153,347 $37,070,297 $ 8438404 $ 786,234 § 1,147,117 $ 299,304 $ 3,205247 $ 154,537

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Policy establishes limitations on portfolio composition by issuer in order to control concentration of credit
risk. No more than 5% of the County’s portfolio will be invested in the securities of any single issuer with the
following exceptions:

U.S. Treasury 100% maximum
Commonwealth of Virginia LGIP 100% maximum
Each bank deposit institution 100% maximum
Each money market mutual fund 50% maximum
Each federal agency 35% maximum
Each repurchase agreement counterparty 25% maximum

As of June 30, 2020, the portions of the County’s portfolio, excluding U.S. Treasury securities, which exceed
5% of the total portfolio are as follows:

Issuer % of portfolio
Freddie MAC 12.60%
Federal Home Loan Banks 7.30%
Fannie MAE 6.40%

Interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, the County’s Policy limits
the investment of short-term operating funds to an average weighted maturity of no more than 180 days, with
a portion of the portfolio continuously invested in readily available funds. The operating fund core portfolio will
be invested in permitted investments with a stated maturity of no more than five years from the date of purchase.

29



County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
June 30, 2020

2) Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments, Continued

3)

To control the volatility of the core portfolio, the Treasurer will determine a duration target, not to exceed
three years. Proceeds from the sale of bonds must be invested in compliance with the specific requirements of
the bond covenants and may be invested in securities with longer maturities, so long as the maturity does not
exceed the expected disbursement date of those funds.

Custodial Credit Risk

The Policy requires that all investment securities purchased by the County or held as collateral on deposits or
investments shall be held by the County or by a third-party custodial agent who may not otherwise be a
counterparty to the investment transaction. As of June 30, 2020, all of the County’s investments are held in a
bank’s trust department in the name of James City County.

Component Units

The James City Service Authority’s (Authority), Public School’s, and the Economic Development Authority’s
(EDA) cash, cash equivalents and investments at June 30, 2020, consisted of the following:

Component Unit

Authority Public Schools EDA
Bank deposits $ 1,057,657 $ 11,015,285 $ 342,306
Petty cash 503 - -
Money market 11,432,343 - -
Investments 49,828,908 10,284,629 242,091
Total cash, cash equivalents
and investments $ 62,319,411 $ 21,299,914 $ 584,397

The Public Schools’ total includes Agency Funds of $1,335,753 which are not part of the government-wide
financial statements.

Deposits with banks are fully covered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or collateralized in
accordance with the Virginia Security for Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia.

Receivables

Amounts due from miscellaneous sources at June 30, 2020 are detailed as follows:

Nonmajor
Governmental
General Fund Funds

Sales tax $ 1,481,728 $ -
Historic 1% sales tax 508,617 -
Emergency medical services 450,650 -
Meals tax 358,040 -
Health insurance 176,926 -
Recordation tax 167,905 -
Business license 167,734 -
Charges for services 114,411 -
Deeds of conveyance 40,916 -
Utility consumption fee 27,658 -
Motor vehicle licenses 17,672 -
Fines and forfeitures 8,514 -
Other 5,428 78,528
Total $ 3,526,199 $ 78,528
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Receivables, Continued

The Housing and Neighborhood Development Fund provides loans related to certain programs. The balance
receivable on these loans as of June 30, 2020 is presented on the balance sheet net of an allowance for forgiven
and deferred loans, as shown below:

Gross loan balances outstanding $ 2,170,112
Less: Allowance (1,644,308)
Loans receivable, net $ 525,804

Interfund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

Interfund receivable and payable balances are considered short-term in nature. All other balances resulted from
the time-lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are provided or reimbursable expenditures
occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3) payments between funds are made.

At June 30, 2020, the balances were as follows:

Due from other funds

Nonmajor
Capital governmental
General Projects funds Total
Due to other funds:
General $ - $ - $ 769,827 $ 769,827

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the
fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from the funds
collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3) use unrestricted
revenues collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance
with budgetary authorizations.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020, consisted of the following:

Transfers Transfers
In Out
General fund $ 102,833 $ (34,912,342)
Capital projects 9,908,147 (537,045)
Debt service 19,673,916 -
Nonmajor governmental 6,548,379 (783,888)
Total $ 36,233,275 $ (36,233,275)

The transfer from the nonmajor governmental funds of $65,788 to the General Fund was funding for a tourism-
related position. The transfer from the Capital Projects Fund of $37,045 to the General Fund was for the creation
of a new position created in the General Fund for a part of FY2020.

Transfers from the General Fund of $9,190,047 to the Capital Projects Fund represent the County’s pay-as-
you-go project funding. Transfers from the General Fund of $19,673,916 to the Debt Service Fund were for the
principal and interest on outstanding debt as the payments became due.

Transfers from the General Fund of $6,048,379 to various nonmajor governmental funds represent the
movement of funds collected in the General Fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in
accordance with budgetary authorizations.

Transfers from the nonmajor governmental funds of $718,100 to the Capital Projects Fund represent the
movement of funds collected in various funds to finance capital projects related to tourism and other special
projects.

Transfers from the Capital Projects Fund of $500,000 to nonmajor governmental funds were to provide funding
to assist with the economic impacts of COVID-19.
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5) Due from Other Governments

Details of net amounts due from other governments as of June 30, 2020 are as follows:

Nonmajor
Primary Government General Governmental Total
Local:
Wmbg. Regional Library $ 68,563 $ - $ 68,563
Other (7,482) 107,400 99,918
City of Williamsburg 61,564 61,564
WJCC Schools - Comprehensive Svcs. Act - 6,178 6,178
Commonwealth of Virginia:
Car rental tax 2,478 - 2,478
Communications sales and use tax 231,836 - 231,836
Compensation Board 203,384 - 203,384
Personal property tax relief 4,836,856 - 4,836,856
Comprehensive Services Act - 364,269 364,269
E911 Wireless Board 19,715 - 19,715
Other 9,744 69,462 79,206
Rolling stock tax 9,948 - 9,948
Sales tax 1,648,478 - 1,648,478
Virginia Dept. of Aviation - 89,600 89,600
Virginia Dept. of Social Services - 126,790 126,790
Virginia Dept. of Criminal Justice Services 9,373 9,373
Virginia Dept. of Transportation 11,113 3,699 14,812
Federal:
Dept. of Criminal Justice Services - 13,615 13,615
Dept. of Homeland Security - 74,437 74,437
Dept. of Housing & Community Development - 300 300
Dept. of Justice - 58,258 58,258
Dept. of Revenue 5,428 - 5,428
Dept. of Social Services - 221,026 221,026
Total $ 7,101,625 $ 1,144,407 $ 8,246,032

Component Unit - Public Schools

Federal government $ 1,611,534
Commonwealth of Virginia 506,911
Fiduciary fund 225,919
Total $ 2,344,364
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
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6) Capital Assets

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020:

Balances Balances
Governmental activities: July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land and land improvements $ 30,276,667  $ 1475878  $ - $ 31,752,545
Construction in progress 16,204,614 9,072,597 13,356,498 11,920,713
Intangible assets - easements 8,826,349 - - 8,826,349
Total capital assets not being depreciated 55,307,630 10,548,475 13,356,498 52,499,607
Capital assets being depreciated:
Depreciable land improvements 5,099,303 525,381 - 5,624,684
Intangible assets, as reclassified 4,714,399 217,576 - 4,931,975
Buildings 370,268,523 4,343,548 - 374,612,071
Improvements other than buildings 37,272,225 2,993,595 20,668 40,245,152
Infrastructure 11,878,595 330,815 - 12,209,410
Equipment and vehicles, as reclassified 49,400,791 5,075,874 822,433 53,654,232
Total capital assets being depreciated 478,633,836 13,486,789 843,101 491,277,524
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Depreciable land improvements 68,328 315,426 - 383,754
Intangible assets, as reclassified 3,667,979 400,752 - 4,068,731
Buildings 115,394,562 8,301,879 - 123,696,441
Improvements other than buildings 15,838,777 1,804,876 14,398 17,629,255
Infrastructure 5,087,682 430,938 - 5,518,620
Equipment and vehicles, as reclassified 34,482,929 3,880,799 731,058 37,632,670
Total accumulated depreciation 174,540,257 15,134,670 745,456 188,929,471
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 304,093,579 (1,647,881) 97,645 302,348,053
Total $ 359,401,209 $ 8,900,594 $ 13,454,143 $ 354,847,660

Depreciation was charged to governmental functions as follows:

General government administration $ 962,100
Judicial administration 386,622
Public safety 3,913,763
Public works 701,168
Parks, recreation and cultural 2,095,330
Community development 486,575
Education 6,346,055
Health and welfare 243,057

Total $ 15,134,670

There was a reclassification of July 1, 2019 asset and accumulated depreciation balances based on a
reclassification of certain assets. The impact of the restatement was as follows:

6/30/2019 7/1/2019
Previously As
Reported Reclassification Reclassified
Capital assets being depreciated:
Intangible assets $ 817,721 $ 3,896,678 $ 4,714,399
Equipment and vehicles $ 53,297,469 $ (3,896,678) $ 49,400,791
Accumumlated depreciation for:
Intangible assets $ 141,964 $ 3,526,015 $ 3,667,979
Equipment and vehicles $ 38,008,944 $ (3,526,015) $ 34,482,929
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Basic Financial Statements

June 30, 2020

Balances Balances
Component Unit - Authority: July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,741,991 $ - $ - $ 1,741,991
Land - utility plant 955,995 - - 955,995
Land improvements 13,183 - - 13,183
Construction in progress 3,464,970 5,843,839 5,913,217 3,395,592
Intangible assets - easements 4,570 - - 4,570
Total capital assets not being depreciated 6,180,709 5,843,839 5,913,217 6,111,331
Capital assets being depreciated:
Water and sewer systems - utility plant 264,309,916 3,365,816 - 267,675,732
Land improvements (depreciable) 8,930 - - 8,930
Buildings and improvements 4,435,895 798,941 49,425 5,185,411
Office fixtures and equipment 2,379,905 1,776,153 22,764 4,133,294
Automotive equipment 3,018,468 155,882 122,583 3,051,767
Intangible assets - water rights 25,000,000 - - 25,000,000
Software - 10,562 - 10,562
Infrastructure 91,798 - - 91,798
Total capital assets being depreciated 299,244,912 6,107,354 194,772 305,157,494
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water and sewer systems - utility plant 139,083,418 6,888,955 - 145,972,373
Land improvements 223 446 - 669
Buildings and improvements 1,286,420 128,687 30,067 1,385,040
Office fixtures and equipment 1,534,952 217,247 22,764 1,729,435
Automotive equipment 2,549,256 263,732 122,583 2,690,405
Intangible assets - water rights 6,288,344 613,497 - 6,901,841
Infrastructure 3,590 3,060 - 6,650
Total accumulated depreciation 150,746,203 8,115,624 175,414 158,686,413
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 148,498,709 (2,008,270) 19,358 146,471,081
Total $ 154,679,418 $ 3,835,569 $ 5932575 $ 152,582,412
Depreciation was charged to the Authority’s operations as follows:
Water $ 5,119,420
Sewer 2,996,204
Total $ 8,115,624
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Capital Assets, Continued
Balances Balances
Component Unit - Public Schools July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land improvements $ 8,435,126 $ - $ - $ 8,435,126
Construction in progress 1,368,357 1,939,376 2,317,018 990,715
Total capital assets not being depreciated 9,803,483 1,939,376 2,317,018 9,425,841
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 66,852,811 2,577,510 - 69,430,321
Furniture and equipment 28,715,184 469,310 - 29,184,494
Total capital assets being depreciated 95,567,995 3,046,820 - 98,614,815
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 26,756,987 2,704,589 - 29,461,576
Furniture and equipment 19,619,904 1,505,883 - 21,125,787
Total accumulated depreciation 46,376,891 4,210,472 - 50,587,363
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 49,191,104 (1,163,652) - 48,027,452
Total $ 58,994,587 $ 775,723 $ 2,317,018 $ 57,453,293
Depreciation of $4,210,472 was charged to the Public Schools’ governmental functions.
The total construction in progress for the Public Schools was $8,028,799 at June 30, 2020. Capital outlay
expenditures totaling $7,038,084 are presented in the County’s construction in progress balance in order to
match the corresponding debt.
Balances Balances
Component Unit - EDA July 1, 2019 Increases Decreases June 30, 2020
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,037,951 $ - $ 327,156 $ 710,795
Land improvements 34,200 - - 34,200
Construction in progress 166,510 - - 166,510
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,238,661 - 327,156 911,505
Capital assets being depreciated:
Land improvements 237,988 - - 237,988
Buildings and improvements 290,095 - - 290,095
Infrastructure 182,379 - - 182,379
Total capital assets being depreciated 710,462 - - 710,462
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 12,087 7,252 - 19,339
Land improvements 19,832 11,899 - 31,731
Infrastructure 10,388 6,233 - 16,621
Total accumulated depreciation 42,307 25,384 - 67,691
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 668,155 (25,384) - 642,771
Total $ 1,906,816 $ (25,384) % 327,156 $ 1,554,276
Due From and To Component Units

The Authority owed the County $494,045 at June 30, 2020, which primarily represented payroll expenses and
purchase card expenses paid by the County on behalf of the Authority.

The County funds its construction costs for schools through the Capital Projects Fund for the component unit -
Public Schools. In addition, the County receives sales tax for education payments from the State that are
remitted directly to the Public Schools through the General Fund. At June 30, 2020, the County owed the Public
Schools $2,227,888, primarily for the sales tax for education payments related to fiscal year 2020, but received
by the County from the State after year-end. For fiscal year 2020, the Public Schools owed the County
$5,562,727, primarily for local schools funds unexpended at year-end that are contractually required to be
returned to the County. The net due from component unit — Public Schools was $3,334,839 at June 30, 2020.

The County owed the Economic Development Authority $53,339 for its contribution to fund enterprise zone
grants and an incentive to a business under a performance based agreement.
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8) Unavailable Revenue and Unearned Revenue

Unavailable revenue represents amounts that have been earned but are not available. Unavailable revenue
consists of the following as of June 30, 2020:

Other
General Capital governmental
fund projects funds Total
Medic fees $ 273,758 $ - $ - $ 273,758
Grants not collected within
availability period - - 456,134 456,134
Property taxes not collected within
availability period 19,829,691 593 - 19,830,284
$ 20,103,449 $ 593 $ 456,134 $ 20,560,176
Unearned revenue represents amounts for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for whi
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. Details of unearned revenue as of June 30, 2020 were
follows:
Other
General Capital governmental
Primary government fund projects funds Total
Prepaid property taxes and fees $ 702,618  $ - $ - $ 702,618
CARES Act Relief - - 114,672 114,672
Insurance reimbursement - 55,563 - 55,563
Grants received in advance - 24,420 24,420

$ 702,618 % 55563  $ 139,092  $ 897,273

Component Unit - Public Schools

James City County Cares Act $ 1,749,959
Behavioral intervention grant 17,404
Outdoor science grant 4,301
Math grant 2,353
8 1774017

9) Long-Term Liabilities

Primary Government

ch
as

A summary of the County’s long-term liability activity for governmental activities for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2020, is presented below:

Balance Balance Due within
Governmental activities July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 one year
General obligation bonds $ 31,415,000 $ - $ 4,195000 $ 27,220,000 $ 2,710,000
Lease revenue/refunding bonds 101,511,000 - 9,027,000 92,484,000 9,172,000
Bond premiums, net 13,223,978 - 1,420,654 11,803,324 1,415,851
Capital leases 2,146,958 - 1,060,841 1,086,117 1,086,117
Landfill post-closure care 178,997 66,709 63,666 182,040 64,680
Compensated absences 3,757,356 4,369,449 3,964,046 4,162,759 3,122,069
Net pension liability 12,492,414 7,012,406 - 19,504,820 -
Net OPEB retiree healthcare liability 4,571,936 - 474,372 4,097,564 -
Net OPEB group life insurance liability 3,241,000 148,107 - 3,389,107 -
Net OPEB health insurance credit liability 599,941 89,058 - 688,999 -
Total $ 173,138580 $ 11,685,729 $ 20,205579 $ 164,618,730 $ 17,570,717

The General Fund or the Special Revenue Fund where the employees’ salaries are charged generally liquidat
compensated absences and the pension and OPEB liabilities.
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9) Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

Arbitrage

Arbitrage is the difference between the yield on an issuer’'s tax-exempt bonds and the investment income
earned on the proceeds. Arbitrage restrictions imposed by the federal government prohibit an issuer from
retaining arbitrage profits when investing bond proceeds at a yield that exceeds the yield on the bonds. Any
excess arbitrage must be rebated to the U.S. Treasury. As of June 30, 2020, there was no rebate liability.

Details of long-term bond indebtedness at June 30, 2020 for governmental activities were as follows:

Sale Orginial Interest Final Balance

General obligation bonds date borrowing rates maturity June 30, 2020
Virginia Public School Authority bonds (Series A) 2011 1,000,000 4.25% 2031 $ 600,000
General obligation refunding bonds 2014 21,610,000 2.00-5.00% 2028 15,460,000
General obligation refunding bonds (Series A) 2015 11,280,000 2.50-5.00% 2030 11,160,000

Total $ 27,220,000
Lease revenue/refunding bonds
Lease revenue bonds 2011 6,672,000 2.18% 2022 1,334,000
Lease revenue bonds 2012 26,380,000 3.00-5.00% 2033 14,050,000
Lease revenue refunding bonds 2014 12,575,000 3.00-4.00% 2026 7,510,000
Lease revenue refunding bonds 2015 49,815,000 4.00-5.00% 2026 26,675,000
Lease revenue bonds 2016 26,750,000 2.00-5.00% 2036 22,825,000
Lease revenue refunding bonds 2018 21,015,000 4.00-5.00% 2039 20,090,000

Total $ 92,484,000
Capital leases
Capital lease 2010 1,312,522 3.725% 2021 $ 156,538
Capital lease 2017 4,736,044 2.160% 2021 929,579

Total $ 1,086,117

The debt service requirements for the governmental activities’ bond obligations are as follows:

Year ending General obligation bonds Lease revenue/refunding bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest
2021 $ 2,710,000 $ 1,062,788 $ 9,172,000 $ 3,814,511
2022 2,790,000 928,037 9,347,000 3,386,070
2023 2,885,000 789,038 8,855,000 2,956,650
2024 2,985,000 645,287 9,020,000 2,558,950
2025 3,055,000 516,813 9,205,000 2,090,700
2026-2030 12,740,000 1,241,013 25,245,000 6,078,614
2031-2035 55,000 21,250 15,980,000 2,539,237
2036-2039 - - 5,660,000 449,450

$ 27,220,000 $ 5,204,226 $ 92,484,000 $ 23,874,182

In November 2010, the County executed a regional lease purchase agreement with York County to purchase
enhanced 911 equipment to service each respective jurisdiction’s Dispatch Center and to be compatible with
current technology and telephone systems. The amount included in capital assets at June 30, 2020 was
$1,008,200 and depreciation expense of $100,820 was incurred during fiscal year 2020. Accumulated
depreciation was $974,593 as of June 30, 2020.

In July 2016, the County entered into a Memorandum of Understanding with York County to upgrade the joint
public safety/public services radio communication system. The County’s portion was $4,736,044 and is included
in capital assets. Depreciation expense of $947,209 was incurred during fiscal year 2020, and accumulated
depreciation was $3,788,835 as of June 30, 2020.
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9) Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

The present value of future minimum capital lease payments of the County as of June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Year ending June 30:

2021

Total minimum lease payments

Less amount representing interest

Present value of minimum
capital lease payments

Component Unit - Authority

1,112,027
1,112,027
(25,910)

$ 1,086,117

A summary of the Authority’s long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is presented

below:
Balance Balance Due within
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 one year
Revenue refunding bonds $ 20,575,000 $ - $ 655000 $ 19,920,000 $ 690,000
Revenue bonds - 9,135,000 - 9,135,000 584,000
Premium, net 1,331,388 - 63,907 1,267,481 63,907
Pension liability 523,170 742,158 - 1,265,328 -
Net retiree healthcare OPEB liability 432,969 - 51,533 381,436 -
Net group life insurance OPEB liability 340,000 29,227 - 369,227 -
Net health insurance credit OPEB liability 54,373 48 - 54,421 -
Compensated absences 416,497 502,416 443,673 475,240 356,429
Total $ 23,673,397 $ 10,408,849 $ 1,214,113 $ 32,868,133 $ 1,694,336
Details of long-term bond indebtedness at June 30, 2020 for the Authority were as follows:
Sale Orginial Interest Final Balance
Revenue refunding bonds date borrowing rates maturity June 30, 2020
Water and sewer system revenue refunding bonds 2016 $ 22,595,000 3.00-5.00% 2040 $ 19,920,000
Water and sewer system revenue bonds 2020 9,135,000 2.26% 2035 9,135,000

The debt service requirements for the Authority’s debt obligations are as follows:

Revenue refunding and

Year ending revenue bonds

June 30, Principal Interest
2021 $ 1,274,000 $ 802,305
2022 1,246,000 826,394
2023 1,283,000 792,886
2024 1,335,000 743,456
2025 1,382,000 691,754

2026-2030 7,609,000 2,762,408

2031-2035 8,716,000 1,654,658

2036-2040 6,210,000 569,700
Total $ 29,055,000 $ 8,843,561
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9) Long-Term Liabilities, Continued

Component Unit - Public Schools

A summary of the Public Schools’ long-term liability activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is presented

below:
Balance Balance Due within
Component unit - Public Schools July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020 one year
Net pension liability $ 99,893,000 $ 13,578,736 $ - $ 113,471,736 $ -
Other postemployment benefits 21,862,726 1,162,670 - 23,025,396 -
Compensated absences 1,075,038 1,120,353 837,926 1,357,465 610,859
Total $ 122,830,764 $ 15,861,759 $ 837,926 $ 137,854,597 $ 610,859

10) Landfill Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

The County closed its landfill during fiscal year 1994 and contracted with a third party to provide solid waste
disposal services to its residents. This third party operates the site, collects fees based upon the source of the
waste, and pays the associated expenditures. The County was responsible for construction of the transfer
station and all major maintenance and repairs to it. State and federal laws and regulations require the County
to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 10 to 30 years after closure.

The $182,040 reported as landfill postclosure liability at June 30, 2020, represents the amount estimated to
monitor the landfill for an average monitoring period of 25 years, and is based on what it would cost to perform
all closure and postclosure care in 2020. The increase of $3,043 from prior year is due to an inflation factor of
1.017, required by the Department of Environment Quality. Actual costs may be higher due to inflation,
technology changes, or regulation changes. The County intends to fund these costs from the net revenues
collected from the above contract and from any funds accumulated for this purpose in the County's General
Fund.

11) Pension Plan

The County, Authority, and Public Schools’ non-professional employees participate in a multi-employer, agent
defined benefit pension plan (Political Subdivision Retirement Plan) administered by the Virginia Retirement
System (VRS). The Public Schools’ professional employees participate in a multi-employer, cost sharing
defined benefit pension plan (Teacher Retirement Plan) administered by VRS. The VRS establishes a separate
annual contribution requirement for the Public Schools’ professional employees who participate in the VRS
statewide teacher cost-sharing pool.

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
retirement plans and the additions to/deductions from the retirement plans’ net fiduciary position have been
determined on the same basis as they were reported by the VRS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Plan Description

All full-time, salaried regular employees of the County, Authority, and Public Schools (professional and non-
professional) are automatically covered by VRS upon employment. These plans are administered by the VRS
(the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Members earn one
month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer pay
contributions to VRS. Members are eligible to purchase prior service, based on specific criteria as defined in
the Code of Virginia, as amended. Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes prior public service,
active military service, certain periods of leave and previously refunded service.

The System administers three different benefit structures for covered employees - Plan 1, Plan 2 and Hybrid.

Each of these benefit structures has a different eligibility criteria. The specific information for each plan and the
eligibility for covered groups within each plan are set out below.
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RETIREMENT PLAN PROVISIONS

PLAN 1

PLAN 2

HYBRID RETIREMENT PLAN

About Plan 1

Plan 1 is a defined benefit plan. The
retirement benefit is based on a
member’'s age, service credit and
average final compensation at
retirement using a formula.

About Plan 2

Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan. The
retirement benefit is based on a
member’'s age, service credit and
average final compensation at
retirement using a formula.

About the Hybrid Retirement Plan

The Hybrid Retirement Plan
combines the features of a defined
benefit plan and a defined

contribution plan.

The defined benefit is based on
a member’'s age, service credit
and average final compensation
at retirement using a formula.
The benefit from the defined
contribution component of the
plan depends on the member
and employer contributions
made to the plan and the
investment  performance  of
those contributions.

In addition to the monthly benefit
payment payable from the
defined benefit  plan at
retirement, a member may start
receiving distributions from the
balance in the defined
contribution account, reflecting

the contributions, investment
gains or losses, and any
required fees.

Eligible Members Eligible Members Eligible Members

Employees are in Plan 1 if their | Employees are in Plan 2 if their | Employees are in the Hybrid

membership date is before July 1,
2010, and they were vested as of
January 1, 2013, and they have not
taken a refund.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

VRS non-hazardous duty-covered
Plan 1 members were allowed to
make an irrevocable decision to opt
into the Hybrid Retirement Plan
during a special election window
held January 1 through April 30,
2014. The Hybrid Retirement Plan’s
effective date for eligible Plan 1
members who opted in was July 1,
2014.

If eligible deferred members
returned to work during the election
window, they were also eligible to opt
into the Hybrid Retirement Plan.

membership date is on or after July
1, 2010, or their membership date is
before July 1, 2010, and they were
not vested as of January 1, 2013.

Hybrid Opt-In Election

Eligible Plan 2 members were
allowed to make an irrevocable
decision to opt into the Hybrid
Retirement Plan during a special
election window held January 1
through April 30, 2014. The Hybrid
Retirement Plan’s effective date for
eligible Plan 2 members who opted
in was July 1, 2014.

If eligible deferred members
returned to work during the election
window, they were also eligible to
opt into the Hybrid Retirement Plan.

Retirement Plan if their membership
date is on or after January 1, 2014.
This includes:

Political subdivision employees*
Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who
elected to opt into the plan
during the election window held
January 1-April 30, 2014; the
plan’s effective date for opt-in
members was July 1, 2014

*Non-Eligible Members

Some employees are not eligible to
participate in the Hybrid Retirement
Plan. They include:

Political subdivision employees
who are covered by enhanced
benefits for hazardous duty
employees
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Members who were eligible for an
optional retirement plan (ORP) and
had prior service under Plan 1 were
not eligible to elect the Hybrid
Retirement Plan and remain as Plan
1 or ORP.

Members who were eligible for an
optional retirement plan (ORP) and
have prior service under Plan 2 were
not eligible to elect the Hybrid
Retirement Plan and remain as Plan
2 or ORP.

Those employees eligible for an
optional retirement plan (ORP) must
elect the ORP plan or the Hybrid
Retirement Plan. If these members
have prior service under Plan 1 or
Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect
the Hybrid Retirement Plan and
must select Plan 1 or Plan 2 (as
applicable) or ORP.

Retirement Contributions
Employees contribute 5% of their
compensation each month to their
member contribution account
through a pre-tax salary reduction.
Member contributions are tax-
deferred until they are withdrawn as
part of a retirement benefit or as a
refund. The employer makes a
separate actuarially determined
contribution to VRS for all covered
employees. VRS invests both
member and employer contributions
to provide funding for the future
benefit payment.

Retirement Contributions
Same as Plan 1.

Retirement Contributions

A member’s retirement benefit is
funded through mandatory and
voluntary contributions made by the
member and the employer to both
the defined benefit and the defined
contribution components of the plan.
Mandatory contributions are based
on a percentage of the employee’s
creditable compensation and are
required from both the member and
the employer. Additionally, members
may choose to make voluntary
contributions to the  defined
contribution component of the plan,
and the employer is required to
match those voluntary contributions
according to specified percentages.

Service Credit

Service credit includes active
service. Members earn service credit
for each month they are employed in
a covered position. It also may
include credit for prior service the
member has purchased or additional
service credit the member was
granted. A member’s total service
credit is one of the factors used to
determine  their  eligibility  for
retirement and to calculate their
retirement benefit. It also may count
toward eligibility for the health
insurance credit in retirement, if the
employer offers the health insurance
credit.

Service Credit
Same as Plan 1.

Service Credit

Defined Benefit Component:

Under the defined benefit
component of the plan, service credit
includes active_service. Members
earn service credit for each month
they are employed in a covered
position. It also may include credit
for prior service the member has
purchased or additional service
credit the member was granted. A
member’s total service credit is one
of the factors used to determine their
eligibility for retirement and to
calculate their retirement benefit. It
also may count toward eligibility for
the health insurance credit in
retirement, if the employer offers the
health insurance credit.

Defined Contributions Component:
Under the defined contribution
component, service credit is used to
determine vesting for the employer
contribution portion of the plan.
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Vesting

Vesting is the minimum length of
service a member needs to qualify for
a future retirement benefit. Members
become vested when they have at
least five years (60 months) of
service credit.

Vesting means members are eligible
to qualify for retirement if they meet
the age and service requirements for
their plan. Members also must be
vested to receive a full refund of their
member contribution account
balance if they leave employment
and request a refund.

Members are always 100% vested in
the contributions that they make.

Vesting
Same as Plan 1.

Vesting

Defined Benefit Component:

Defined benefit vesting is the
minimum length of service a member
needs to qualify for a future
retirement benefit.

Members are vested under the
defined benefit component of the
Hybrid Retirement Plan when they
reach five years (60 months) of
service credit. Plan 1 or Plan 2
members with at least five years (60
months) of service credit who opted
into the Hybrid Retirement Plan
remain vested in the defined benefit
component.

Defined Contributions Component:
Defined contribution vesting refers to
the minimum length of service a
member needs to be eligible to
withdraw the employer contributions
from the defined contribution
component of the plan.

Members are always 100% vested in
the contributions that they make.

Upon retirement or leaving covered
employment, a member is eligible to
withdraw a percentage of employer
contributions to the  defined
contribution component of the plan,
based on service.

o After two years, amember is 50%
vested and may withdraw 50% of
employer contributions.

o After three years, a member is
75% vested and may withdraw
75% of employer contributions.

e After four or more years, a
member is 100% vested and may
withdraw 100% of employer
contributions.

Distributions not required, except as

governed by law.
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Calculating the Benefit

The basic benefit is determined
using the average final
compensation, service credit and
plan multiplier. An early retirement
reduction is applied to this amount if
the member is retiring with a reduced
benefit. In cases where the member
has elected an optional form of
retirement payment, an option factor
specific to the option chosen is then
applied.

Calculating the Benefit
See definition under Plan 1.

Calculating the Benefit
Defined Benefit Component:
See definition under Plan 1.

Defined Contributions Component:
The benefit is based on contributions
made by the member and any
matching contributions made by the
employer, plus net investment
earnings on those contributions.

Average Final Compensation

A member’s average final
compensation is the average of the
36 consecutive months of highest

Average Final Compensation

A member’s average final
compensation is the average of their
60 consecutive months of highest

Average Final Compensation
Same as Plan 2. It is used in the
retirement formula for the defined
benefit component of the plan.

VRS: The retirement multiplier is a
factor used in the formula to
determine a final retirement benefit.
The retirement multiplier for non-
hazardous duty members is 1.70%.

Sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents: The retirement
multiplier for sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents is 1.85%.

Political subdivision hazardous
duty employees: The retirement
multiplier  of  eligible  political
subdivision hazardous duty
employees other than sheriffs and
regional jail superintendents is
1.70% or 1.85% as elected by the
employer.

VRS: Same as Plan 1 for service
earned, purchased or granted prior
to January 1, 2013. For non-
hazardous duty members the
retirement multiplier is 1.65% for
service credit earned, purchased or
granted on or after January 1, 2013.

Sheriffs  and regional jail
superintendents: Same as Plan 1.

Political subdivision hazardous
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

compensation as a covered | compensation as a covered
employee. employee.
Service Retirement Multiplier | Service Retirement Multiplier | Service Retirement  Multiplier

Defined Benefit Component:

VRS: The retirement multiplier for
the defined benefit component is
1.00%.

For members who opted into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan from Plan 1
or Plan 2, the applicable multipliers
for those plans will be used to
calculate the retirement benefit for
service credited in those plans.

Sheriffs and regional jail
superintendents: Not applicable.

Political subdivision hazardous
duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contributions Component:
Not applicable.

Normal Retirement Age
VRS: Age 65.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Age 60.

Normal Retirement Age
VRS: Normal Social
retirement age.

Security

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

Normal Retirement Age
Defined Benefit Component:
VRS: Same as Plan 2.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contributions Component:

Members are eligible to receive
distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.
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Earliest Unreduced Retirement
Eligibility

VRS: Age 65 with at least five years
(60 months) of service credit or at
age 50 with at least 30 years of

service credit.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Age 60 with at
least five years of service credit or
age 50 with at least 25 years of
service credit.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement
Eligibility
VRS: Normal Social Security

retirement age with at least five
years (60 months) of service credit
or when their age plus service credit
equals 90.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

Earliest Unreduced Retirement
Eligibility

Defined Benefit Component:

VRS: Normal Social Security
retirement age and have at least five
years (60 months) of service credit
or when their age plus service credit
equals 90.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contributions Component:
Members are eligible to receive
distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Earliest Reduced Retirement
Eligibility

VRS: Age 55 with at least five years
(60 months) of service credit or age
50 with at least 10 years of service

credit.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Age 50 with at
least five years of service credit.

Earliest Reduced Retirement
Eligibility

VRS: Age 60 with at least five years
(60 months) of service credit.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Same as Plan 1.

Earliest Reduced Retirement
Eligibility

Defined Benefit Component:

VRS: Age 60 with at least five years

(60 months) of service credit.

Political subdivisions hazardous
duty employees: Not applicable.

Defined Contributions Component:

Members are eligible to receive
distributions upon leaving
employment, subject to restrictions.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment
(COLA) in Retirement

The  Cost-of-Living  Adjustment
(COLA) matches the first 3%
increase in the Consumer Price
Index for all Urban Consumers (CPI-
U) and half of any additional increase
(up to 4%) up to a maximum COLA
of 5%.

Eligibility:

For members who retire with an
unreduced benefit or with a reduced
benefit with at least 20 years of
service credit, the COLA will go into
effect on July 1 after one full
calendar year from the retirement
date.

For members who retire with a
reduced benefit and who have less
than 20 years of service credit, the
COLA will go into effect on July 1
after one calendar year following the
unreduced retirement eligibility date.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment
(COLA) in Retirement

The  Cost-of-Living  Adjustment
(COLA) matches the first 2%
increase in the CPI-U and half of any
additional increase (up to 2%), for a
maximum COLA of 3%.

Eligibility:
Same as Plan 1.

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
Same as Plan 1.

Cost-of-Living Adjustment
(COLA) in Retirement
Defined Benefit Component:
Same as Plan 2.

Defined Contributions Component:
Not applicable.

Eligibility:

Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.

Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
Same as Plan 1 and Plan 2.
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Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:
The COLA is effective July 1
following one full calendar year
(January 1 to December 31) under
any of the following circumstances:

e The member is within five years
of qualifying for an unreduced
retirement benefit as of January
1, 2013.

e The member retires on disability.

e The member retires directly from
short-term or long-term disability.

e The member is involuntarily
separated from employment for
causes other than job
performance or misconduct and
is eligible to retire under the
Workforce Transition Act or the
Transitional Benefits Program.

e The member dies in service and
the member's survivor or
beneficiary is eligible for a
monthly death-in-service benefit.
The COLA will go into effect on
July 1 following one full calendar
year (January 1 to December 31)
from the date the monthly benefit
begins.

Disability Coverage

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability retirement
and retire on disability, the retirement
multiplier is 1.7% on all service,
regardless of when it was earned,
purchased or granted.

Disability Coverage

Members who are eligible to be
considered for disability retirement
and retire on disability, the
retirement multiplier is 1.65% on all
service, regardless of when it was
earned, purchased or granted.

Disability Coverage

Employees of political subdivisions
(including Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins)
participate in the Virginia Local
Disability Program (VLDP) unless
their local governing body provides
and employer-paid comparable
program for its members.

Hybrid members (including Plan 1
and Plan 2 opt-ins) covered under
VLDP are subject to a one-year
waiting period before becoming
eligible for non-work-related
disability benefits.

Purchase of Prior Service
Members may be eligible to
purchase service from previous
public employment, active duty
military service, an eligible period of
leave or VRS refunded service as
service credit in their plan. Prior
service credit counts toward vesting,
eligibility for retirement and the
health insurance credit.

Purchase of Prior Service
Same as Plan 1.

Purchase of Prior Service

Defined Benefit Component:

Same as Plan 1, with the following

exceptions:

e Hybrid Retirement
members are ineligible
ported service.

Plan
for

Defined Contributions Component:
Not applicable.
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Only active members are eligible to
purchase prior service. Members
also may be eligible to purchase
periods of leave without pay.

Agent Multiple-Employer Political Subdivision Retirement Plan

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the

pension plan:
Component unit-
Governmental Component unit- Public Schools
Activities Authority (non-professional)
Number Number Number
Inactive members or their beneficiaries 473 53 105
currently receiving benefits
Inactive members:
Vested 160 17 30
Non-vested 221 19 99
Long-term disability - - 2
Active elsewhere in VRS 277 26 51
Total inactive members 658 62 182
Active members 815 83 219
Total 1,946 198 506

Contributions

The contributions requirement for active employees is governed by 851.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the Virginia
General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5% of their compensation toward their retirement.

The County’s, Authority’s and Public Schools’ contractually required contribution rates for the year ended June
30, 2020 were 10.11%, 5.67% and 3.54%, respectively, of covered employee compensation. These rates were
based on actuarially determined rates from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2017.

These rates, when combined with employee contributions, were expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Total
contributions to the pension plan from the County were $4,085,863 and $3,816,392, the Authority were
$265,027 and $250,534, and the Public Schools were $172,427 and $173,657 for years ended June 30, 2020
and 2019, respectively.

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each employer and represents that particular
employer’s total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 68, less that employer’s
fiduciary net position. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2019. The total pension liability
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2018 rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Actuarial Assumptions - General Employees

The total pension liability for general employees in the County’s retirement plan was based on an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2019:
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Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases, including inflation 3.5% — 5.35%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate
for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more
conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit
payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension
liabilities.

Mortality rates:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service-related

Pre-Retirement:
RP-2014 employee rates to age 80, healthy annuitant rates at age 81 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates.

Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 employee rates to age 49, healthy annuitant rates at ages 50 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years; females 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70
to 90.

Post-Disablement:
RP-2014 disability mortality rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years,
110% of rates; females 125% of rates.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) — Non-Hazardous Duty:

- Updated mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and disabled) to a more current
mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

- Lowered retirement rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75

- Adjusted withdrawal rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of
service

- Lowered disability rates

- No change in salary scale

- Increase rate of line of duty disability from 14% to 15%

- Decreased discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Actuarial Assumptions - Public Safety Employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits

The total pension liability for Public Safety employees with Hazardous Duty Benefits in the County’s Retirement
Plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method
and the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2019:
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Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases, including inflation 3.50% — 4.75%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment return rate
for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more
conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit
payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension
liabilities.

Mortality rates:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous duty: 15% of deaths are assumed to be service-related
Pre-Retirement:
RP-2014 employee rates to age 80, healthy annuitant rates at age 81 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year.

Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 employee rates to age 49, healthy annuitant rates at ages 50 and older projected with
scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year, 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90;
females set forward 3 years.

Post-Disablement:
RP-2014 disability mortality rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years;
unisex using 100% male.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

All Others (Non-10 Largest) — Non-Hazardous Duty:

- Updated mortality rates (pre-retirement, post-retirement healthy, and disabled) to a more current
mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

- Increased retirement rates at age 50 and lowered rates at older ages

- Adjusted withdrawal rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of
service

- Adjusted disability rates to better fit experience

- No change in salary scale

- Decrease rate of line of duty disability from 60% to 45%

- Decreased discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a lognormal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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The target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Weighted
Arithmetic Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return*
Public equity 34.00% 5.61% 1.91%
Fixed income 15.00% 0.88% 0.13%
Credit strategies 14.00% 5.13% 0.72%
Real assets 14.00% 5.27% 0.74%
Private equity 14.00% 8.77% 1.23%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.52% 0.21%
PIP- Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.29% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 5.13%
Inflation 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.63%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility
present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are
employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various
time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected
a long-term rate of 6.75%, which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset
allocation.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes
and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the
member rate. Consistent with the phased-in funding provided by the General Assembly for state and teacher
employer contributions; political subdivisions were also provided with an opportunity to use an alternate
employer contribution rate. For the year ended June 30, 2019, the alternate rate was the employer contribution
rate used in FY 2012 or 100% of the actuarially determined employer contribution rate from the June 30, 2017,
actuarial valuations, whichever was greater. From July 1, 2019, on, participating employers are assumed to
continue to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

Governmental activities

June 30, 2020

Increase (decrease)

Total pension

Plan fiduciary

Net pension

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Change of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Netinvestmentincome
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

Component Unit - Authority

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Change of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Netinvestmentincome
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

Component unit - Public Schools (non-professional)

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Netinvestmentincome
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

liability (&) net pension (b) liability (asset) (a) - (b)
$ 184,103,185 $ 171,610,771 $ 12,492,414
4,329,341 - 4,329,341
12,600,514 - 12,600,514
5,993,876 - 5,993,876
1,286,792 - 1,286,792
- 3,773,524 (3,773,524)
- 2,117,076 (2,117,076)
- 11,427,215 (11,427,215)

(8,191,674) (8,191,674) -
- (112,489) 112,489
- (7,209) 7,209
16,018,849 9,006,443 7,012,406
$ 200,122,034 $ 180,617,214 $ 19,504,820
$ 17,437,059 $ 16,913,889 $ 523,170
378,585 - 378,585
1,198,755 - 1,198,755
546,875 - 546,875
182,506 - 182,506
- 235,463 (235,463)
- 212,351 (212,351)
- 1,128,516 (1,128,516)

(623,967) (623,967) -
- (11,054) 11,054
- (713) 713
1,682,754 940,596 742,158
$ 19,119,813 $ 17,854,485 $ 1,265,328
$ 18,987,586 $ 20,806,703 $ (1,819,117)
485,858 - 485,858
1,297,224 - 1,297,224
528,041 - 528,041
(426,300) - (426,300)
- 173,657 (173,657)
- 268,278 (268,278)
- 1,377,110 (1,377,110)

(911,625) (911,625) -
- (13,730) 13,730
- (866) 866
973,198 892,824 80,374
$ 19,960,784 $ 21,699,527 $ (1,738,743)
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one
percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)

Governmental activities
Net pension liability (asset) $ 46,734,426 $ 19,504,820 $ (2,161,492)
Component unit - Authority
Net pension liability (asset) $ 3,723,268 $ 1,265,328 $ (702,029)
Component unit - Public Schools
(non-professional)
Net pension liability (asset) $ 576,264 $ (1,738,743) $ (3,606,780)

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County, Authority, and Public Schools (non-professional) recognized
pension expense (recovery) of $4,565,462, $358,709 and ($87,255), respectively. At June 30, 2020, deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources were

reported:
Deferred outflows  Deferred inflows
of resources of resources

Governmental activities
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 913,809 $ 425,583
Changes of assumptions 4,256,521 242,497
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 1,523,313
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 4,085,863 -
Total $ 9,256,193 $ 2,191,393
Component unit - Authority
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ 169,449 $ 42,704
Changes of assumptions 381,155 67,086
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 152,635
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 265,027 -
Total $ 815,631 $ 262,425
Component unit - Public Schools
(non-professional)
Differences between expected and
actual experience $ - $ 402,916
Changes of assumptions 339,455 18,227
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments - 187,831
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 172,427 -
Total $ 511,882 $ 608,974
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The County, Authority, and Public Schools reported deferred outflows of resources of $4,085,863, $265,027
and $172,427, respectively, related to pensions resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement
date, which will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2021. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will
be recognized in pension expense (recovery) as follows:

Component unit -

Year Governmental Component unit - Public Schools
ended Activities Authority (non-professional)
2021 $ 1,445,984 $ 137,859 $ (104,918)
2022 518,370 77,944 (172,777)
2023 914,423 62,601 (4,305)
2024 100,160 9,775 12,481
$ 2,978,937 $ 288,179 $ (269,519)

Pension Plan Data

Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plans is also available in the separately issued VRS
2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of that report may be downloaded from the VRS
website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2019-annual-report.pdf or by writing to VRS’ Chief Financial
Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan - Teacher Retirement Plan (Professional Plan)

Contributions

The contribution requirement for active employees is governed by 851.1-145 of the Code of Virginia, as
amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to school divisions by the Virginia General
Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5% of their compensation toward their retirement. The Public
Schools’ contractually required contribution rate for the year ended June 30, 2020 was 15.68% of covered
employee compensation. This rate was based on an actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2017. The actuarial determined rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected
to finance the costs of benefits earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability. Contributions to the pension plan from the Public Schools were $11,431,558 and
$11,047,560 for the years ended June 30, 2020 and June 30, 2019, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows for
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Public Schools’ reported a liability of $113,471,736 for its proportionate share of the
Net Pension Liability of the Teacher Retirement Plan. The Net Pension Liability was measured as of June
30, 2019 and the total pension liability used to calculate the Net Pension Liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2018, and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30,
2019.

The Public Schools’ proportion of the Net Pension Liability was based on the Public Schools’ actuarially
determined employer contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to the total
of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all participating employers. At June 30, 2019, the
Public Schools’ proportion was 0.86221% as compared to 0.84943% at June 30, 2018.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Public Schools recognized pension expense of $12,023,046.
Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the pension
expense was related to deferred amounts from changes in proportion and from differences between employer
contributions and the proportionate share of employer contributions.
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At June 30, 2020, the Public Schools reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources for the Teacher Retirement Plan:

Deferred outflows  Deferred inflows
of resources of resources

Component unit - Public Schools

(professional plan)

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ - $ 7,266,074
Change in assumptions 11,236,362 -
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate share of

contributions 1,570,882 1,967,018
Differences between expected and actual investment

earnings on pension plan investments - 2,491,570
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 11,431,558
Total $ 24,238,802 $ 11,724,662

Deferred outflows of resources report in the amount of $11,431,558 related to pensions resulting from the Public
Schools’ contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the Net
Pension Liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense in future reporting

periods as follows:
Component unit -

Year Public Schools
ended (professional plan)
2021 $ (216,256)
2022 (2,540,965)
2023 810,097
2024 1,991,545
2025 1,038,161
$ 1,082,582

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the VRS Teacher Retirement Plan was based on an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and the following assumptions, applied to all
periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2019.

Inflation: 2.5%

Salary increases, including inflation: 3.5% - 5.95%

Investment rate of return: 6.75%, net of pension plan investment expenses, including inflation*

*Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found
to be approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed
investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 6.75%. However, since the
difference was minimal, and a more conservative 6.75% investment return assumption provided a projected
plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-term expected rate of return on
investments was assumed to be 6.75% to simplify preparation of pension liabilities.
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Mortality rates

Pre Retirement:
RP-2014 White Collar Employee Rates to age 80, White Collar Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and
older projected with scale BB to 2020.

Post-Retirement:
RP-2014 White Collar Employee Rates at age 49, White Collar Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older
projected with scale BB to 2020; males 1% increase compounded from ages 70 to 90; females set back 3
years with 1.5% increase compounded from ages 65 to 70 and 2.0% increase compounded from ages 75 to
90.

Post-Disablement:
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with Scale BB to 2020; 115% of rates for males and females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the four-year period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the
discount rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019.

Changes to the actuarial assumptions as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-|Updated to a more current mortality table —
retirement healthy, and disabled) RP-2014 projected to 2020

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and

Retirement Rates changed final retirement age from 70 to 75

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at
Withdrawal Rates each year age and senvice year through 9
years of senice

Disability Rates Adjusted rates to better match experience
Salary Scale No change
Discount Rate Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability (NPL) is calculated separately for each system and represents that particular system’s
total pension liability determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 67, less that system’s fiduciary net
position. As of June 30, 2019, NPL amounts for the VRS Teacher Employee Retirement Plan is as follows
(amounts expressed in thousands):

Teacher

Employee
Retirement Plan
Total Pension Liability $ 49,683,336
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 36,522,769
Employers' Net Pension Liability (Asset) $ 13,160,567

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a

% of the Total Pension Liability 73.51%
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The total pension liability is calculated by the System’s actuary, and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported
in the System’s financial statements. The net pension liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements
of GASB Statement No. 67 in the System’s notes to the financial statements and required supplementary
information.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension System investments was determined using a log-normal
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net
of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges
are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation
and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following

table:

Weighted

Arithmetic Average

Long-Term Long-Term

Target Expected Expected

Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return

Public Equity 34.00% 5.61% 1.91%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.88% 0.13%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.13% 0.72%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.27% 0.74%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.77% 1.23%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.52% 0.21%
PIP - Private Investment Partnership 3.00% 6.29% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 5.13%
Inflation _ 2.50%
*Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.63%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into account
the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system,
stochastic projections are employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results
provide a range of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including
expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40t
percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset allocation.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS Statutes and the
employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the difference
between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the member rate.

Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by the school division for the VRS Teacher
Retirement Plan will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia
General Assembly which was 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rate. From July 1, 2019 on, school
divisions are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future
benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the Public Schools’ Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following presents the school division’s proportionate share of the net pension liability using the discount
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Public Schools’ proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point higher
(7.75%) than the current rate:
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1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Component unit - Public Schools
(professional plan)
Net pension liability $ 170,824,258 $ 113,471,736 $ 66,051,822

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the VRS Teacher Retirement Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the
separately issued VRS 2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR
may be requested from the System’s Chief Financial Officer in writing at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA 23218-
2500 or by downloading a copy from the VRS website at: https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2019-annual-
report.pdf.

12) Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB)

| Multiple Employer Cost-Sharing Plan - Retiree Healthcare

The County, Authority and Public Schools provide post-employment health care benefits for qualifying retired
employees who are not yet eligible for Medicare through a cost-sharing, multiple-employer (County and
Authority) and a single-employer (for the Public Schools) defined benefit plan. The plans are administered by
the County and Schools, respectively, and the benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and employer
contributions are governed by the County and Public Schools and can be amended through their personnel
manuals.

Valuation reports were prepared for the County, Authority and Schools by Bolton Partners. The County and
Authority reports may be obtained from the James City County Department of Financial and Management
Services, 101-F Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, Virginia 23187-8784. The Public Schools’ report may be
obtained from the Finance Department, 117 lronbound Road, Williamsburg, Virginia 23185.

Plan Description

Participants must be eligible to retire under VRS and must be full-time active employees who retire directly from
the County or Authority and are at least 55 years of age with 15 years of service. Each year, retirees participating
in the County or Authority’s sponsored plans will be given the opportunity to change plans or drop coverage
during an open enrollment period. For fiscal year 2020, the pre-Medicare retirees have a choice of two plans
offered by Cigna. Dental plans are available at the retiree’s cost and therefore, have no employer obligation.
There is no coverage for post-Medicare retirees.

The Public Schools provides a single-employer medical plan and a retiree health insurance premium
contribution plan that covers retirees until they reach 65 years of age. There is no coverage for retirees or their
spouses once they reach the age of 65 and are eligible for Medicare. Both plans were established under the
authority of the Williamsburg-James City County School Board and any amendments to the plans must be
approved by the School Board. The Public Schools’ single-employer medical plan allows retirees under the age
of 65 to remain in the same medical and dental plan as active employees if they have at least five years of
service with the Public Schools and are a covered member under the plan at retirement and for at least 24
months prior to retiring. Retirees pay 100% of the premium, minus any applicable $62.50 monthly contribution.
The Public Schools’ plan allows eligible retirees to receive a $750 annual contribution toward their health
insurance premium if they have a minimum of twelve continuous years of service. The Public Schools’ current
membership is 27.
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Funding Policy

Retirees contribute towards their health insurance premiums based on a blended rate and therefore, the County
and Authority have an implicit obligation. Retirees pay 100% of the published rates for individual and dependent
coverage until age 65. The estimated contributions are based on the implicit rate subsidy payments made during
the year by the retirees. The County, Authority and Public Schools do not intend to establish a trust to pre-fund
their obligations. The anticipated growth in the net retiree healthcare OPEB liability is based on contributions to
the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go cost basis. The data has been projected into the future based on the
assumption the current active population remains constant.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

As of the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of the
Public Schools’ retiree healthcare OPEB plan:

Component unit -
Public Schools

Number
Active employees 1,384
Retirees 27
Total 1,411

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

For the actuarial valuation at January 1, 2020 (measurement date of June 30, 2019), the entry age normal
funding method was used. The goal of this method is that the annual accrual (or normal cost) be a level percent
of pay throughout an employee’s career. This method requires a salary increase assumption. The normal cost
percentage is equal to the present value of benefits divided by the present value of future salary determined
when the employee was hired. The actuarial accrued liability is equal to the present value of benefits minus the
normal cost percentage times the present value of future salaries at the valuation date.

The actuarial assumptions included calculations based on a discount rate of 3.13% for the unfunded liability.
Benefits are discounted based on an index rate for 20-year tax exempt general obligation (GO) municipal bonds
with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher.

The medical trend assumption for the County and Authority were changed from the previous valuation to an
assumption developed using the Society of Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model baseline
assumptions. The SOA Model was released in October 2010 and revised in September 2019. The following
assumptions were used as input variables into this model:

Inflation 2.50%
Rate of growth in real income/ GDP per capita 1.50%
Extra trend due to technology and other factors 1.10%
Expected health share of GDP in 2029 20.00%
Health share of GDP resistance point 25.00%
Year for limiting cost growth to GDP growth 2075

The medical trend assumption for the Public Schools was developed using the Society of Actuaries (SOA)
Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model baseline assumptions. The SOA Model was released in October 2010
and updated in September 2019. The following assumptions were used as input variables into this model:

Inflation 2.50%
Rate of growth in real income/ GDP per capita 1.50%
Extra trend due to technology and other factors 1.10%
Expected Health Share of GDP in 2019 20.00%
Health share of GDP resistance point 25.00%
Year for limiting cost growth to GDP growth 2075
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The SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model and its baseline projection are based on an econometric analysis
of historical U.S. medical expenditures and the judgments of experts in the field. The long-run baseline
projection, tolerance ranges and input variables have been developed under the guidance of an SOA Project
Oversight Group.

The actuarial assumptions for the County and Authority included calculations based on salary increases of
3.15%-1.30% (general) and 2.55%-1.30% (public safety) based on years of service. The valuation assumed
that 40% of participants currently with coverage will elect coverage upon retirement, and that 30% of participants
electing coverage at retirement will elect coverage for their spouse.

Mortality decrements used in the January 1, 2020, valuation:
- Pre-Retirement
- General: Pub-2010 General Employees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale
- LEOS: Pub-2010 Public Safety Employees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale
- Post-Retirement
- General: Pub-2010 General Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale
- LEOS: Pub-2010 Public Safety Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale
- Disabled:
- General: Pub-2010 General Disabled Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale
- LEOS: Pub-2010 Public Safety Disabled Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale

The actuarial assumptions for the Public Schools included calculations based on a net of 2.5% inflation
assumption. The valuation assumed that 25% of participants currently with coverage will elect coverage upon
retirement.

Mortality decrements:

- Healthy Pre-Retirement: Pub-2010 Teachers Employees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with
Fully Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale

- Healthy Post-Employment: Pub-2010 Teachers Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with
Fully Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale

- Healthy Surviving Spouses: Pub-2010 Teachers Contingent Survivors Headcount-Weighted Mortality
Projected with Fully Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale

- Disabled: Pub-2010 Teachers Disable Retirees Headcount-Weighted Mortality Projected with Fully
Generational MP2019 Mortality Improvement Scale

Changes in Assumptions Since Prior Valuation for the County and the Authority

- Discount rate was updated to 3.15% (the latest 20-year municipal GO AA Index as of June 30, 2019).
- Mortality assumptions were updated to the latest SOA public sector experience study rates.
- Medical trend was updated based on SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model.

Changes in Assumptions Since Prior Valuation for the Public Schools

- Discount rate was updated as required under the GASB 75 standard.

- Decrement assumptions were updated to the latest SOA public sector experience study rates.

- The medical trend was updated using the Society of Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model
baseline assumptions.
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Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability for the County and the Authority

At June 30, 2020, the County reported a retiree healthcare OPEB liability of $4,097,564 for its proportionate
share of the County’s retiree healthcare OPEB liability, and the Authority reported a retiree healthcare OPEB
liability of $381,436 for its proportionate share of the County’s retiree healthcare OPEB liability. The County’s
and the Authority’s June 30, 2020, retiree healthcare OPEB liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019, and
were determined by an actuarial valuation performed January 1, 2020. The County’'s and the Authority’s
proportion of the County’s retiree healthcare OPEB liability was based on each entity’s projected long-term
contribution effort to the OPEB plan as compared to the total projected long-term contribution effort of all
contributing entities to determine each entity’s proportion. At June 30, 2020, the County’s proportion of the
County’s retiree healthcare OPEB liability was 78.42%, and the Authority’s proportion of the County’s retiree
healthcare OPEB liability was 7.30%.

Changes in Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability for the Public Schools

Increase (decrease)

Total OPEB Plan fiduciary Net OPEB
liability (a) net position (b) liability (a) - (b)
Component unit - Public Schools
Balances at June 30, 2018 $ 5,093,726 $ - $ 5,093,726
Changes for the year:
Senvice cost 448,112 - 448,112
Interest 180,316 - 180,316
Experience losses 487,307) - 487,307)
ER contribution - 9,510 (9,510)
Changes in assumptions (61,871) - (61,871)
Benefit payments (9,510) (9,510) -
Administrative expenses - - -
Net changes 69,740 - 69,740
Balances at June 30, 2019 $ 5,163,466 $ - $ 5,163,466

Sensitivity of the Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the retiree healthcare OPEB liability using the discount rate of 3.13%, as well as what
the retiree healthcare OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage
point lower (2.13%) or one percentage point higher (4.13%) than the current rate:

1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(2.13%) Rate (3.13%) (4.13%)

Governmental activities
Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability $ 4,490,954 $ 4,097,564 $ 3,736,167
Component unit - Authority
Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability $ 418,056 $ 381,436 $ 347,794
Component unit - Public Schools
Total and Net OPEB liability $ 5,498,102 $ 5,163,466 $ 4,840,498

Sensitivity of the Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate —
the County and the Authority

The following presents the retiree healthcare OPEB liability using the health care cost trend rate of 4.00%, as
well as what the retiree healthcare OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health cost trend rate
that is one percentage point lower (3.00%) or one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the current rate:
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1% Ultimate 1%
Decrease Trend Rate Increase
(3.00%) (4.00%) (5.00%)
Governmental activities
Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability $ 3,618,417 $ 4,097,564 $ 4,662,536
Component unit - Authority
Retiree Healthcare OPEB liability $ 336,833 $ 381,436 $ 434,028

Sensitivity of the Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate —
Public Schools

The following presents the retiree healthcare OPEB liability using the health care cost trend rate of 4.00%, as
well as what the retiree healthcare OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a health cost trend rate
that is one percentage point lower (3.00%) or one percentage point higher (5.00%) than the current rate:

1% Ultimate 1%
Decrease Trend Increase
(3.00%) Rate (4.00%) (5.00%)
Component unit - Public Schools
Total and Net OPEB liability $ 4,612,958 $ 5,163,466 $ 5,810,982

Retiree Healthcare OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the County, Authority, and Public Schools recognized retiree healthcare
OPEB expense of $311,245, $28,017, and $474,330, respectively. At June 30, 2020, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retiree healthcare OPEB from the following sources were
reported:

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
of resources of resources

Governmental activities

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 139,672 $ 437,519
Change of assumptions - 370,724
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments - -
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date -

Change in proportion 41,849 4,557
Total $ 181,521 $ 812,800

Component unit - Authority

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 13,002 $ 40,728
Change of assumptions - 34,509
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments - -
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date - -
Change in proportion 60 1,368
Total $ 13,062 $ 76,605

Component unit - Public Schools

Differences between expected and

actual experience $ - $ 611,197
Change of assumptions - 202,780
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments - -
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 14,942 -
Total $ 14,942 $ 813,977
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retiree
healthcare OPEB will be recognized in retiree healthcare OPEB expense (recovery) as follows:

Year Governmental  Component unit - Component unit -
ended Activities Authority Public Schools
2021 $ (135,504) $ (13,571) % (154,098)
2022 (135,504) (13,571) (154,098)
2023 (135,504) (13,571) (154,098)
2024 (135,502) (13,572 (154,099)
2025 (89,258) 9, 262) (119,130)
Thereafter (7) (78,454)
Total $ (631,279) $ (63,543) $ (813,977)

Virginia Retirement System Plans

In addition to their participation in the pension plans offered through the Virginia Retirement System (VRS), the
County, Authority, and Public Schools also participate in various cost-sharing and agent multi-employer other
postemployment benefit plans, described as follows.

Plan Description

General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of participating political subdivisions are automatically covered
by the VRS Political Subdivision Health Insurance Credit Program (HIC) upon employment. Members earn
one month of service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and for which their
employer pays contributions to VRS. The health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount
set by the General Assembly for each year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums
retirees pay for single coverage, excluding any portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit
cannot exceed the amount of the premiums and ends upon the retiree’s death. This plan is a multi-employer
agent plan.

As of the June 30, 2018 actuarial valuation, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms of
the General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program:

Component unit-

Governmental Component unit- Public Schools
Activities Authority (non-professional)
Number Number Number
Inactive members or their beneficiaries
currently receiving benefits 167 14 38
Inactive members:
Vested - - -
Non-vested - - -
Active elsewhere in VRS - - -
Total inactive members 167 14 38
Active members 717 83 219
Total 884 97 257

Specific information about HIC is available at
https://www.varetire.org/retirees/insurance/healthinscredit/index.asp
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Group Life Insurance Program

All full-time, salaried permanent employees of the state agencies, teachers and employees of participating
political subdivisions are automatically covered by the VRS Group Life Insurance (GLI) Program upon
employment.

In addition to the Basic Group Life Insurance benefit, members are also eligible to elect additional coverage
for themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional Group Life Insurance
Program. For members who elect the optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills employers
directly for the premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and pay the
premiums to the insurer. Since this is a separate and fully insured program, it is not included as part of the
Group Life Insurance Program OPEB.

The specific information for the GLI is available at https:/www.varetire.ora/members/benefits/life-
insurance/basic-group-life-insurance.asp

Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program

All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees of public school divisions are automatically
covered by the VRS Teacher Employee Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Program. Members earn one month
of service credit toward the benefit for each month they are employed and for which their employer pays
contributions to VRS. The health insurance credit is a tax-free reimbursement in an amount set by the
General Assembly for each year of service credit against qualified health insurance premiums retirees pay
for single coverage, excluding any portion covering the spouse or dependents. The credit cannot exceed
the amount of the premiums and ends upon the retiree’s death.

Specific information about the Teacher HIC is available at
https://www.varetire.org/retirees/insurance/healthinscredit/index.asp

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan

All full-time, salaried general employees; including local law enforcement officers, firefighters, or
emergency medical technicians of political subdivisions who do not provide enhanced hazardous duty
benefits; who are in the VRS Hybrid Retirement Plan benefit structure and whose employer has not elected
to opt out of the VRS-sponsored program are automatically covered by the VRS Political Subdivision
Employee Virginia Local Disability Program. Political subdivisions are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of
Virginia, as amended to provide short-term and long- term disability benefits for their Hybrid employees
either through a local plan or through the Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP).

Specific information about VLDP is available at
https://www.varetirement.org/hybrid/benefits/disability/virginia-local-disability-program.html

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan

All full-time, salaried permanent (professional) employees of public school divisions who are in the VRS
Hybrid Retirement Plan benefit structure and whose employer has not elected to opt out of the VRS-
sponsored program are automatically covered by the VRS Teacher Employee Virginia Local Disability
Program. School divisions are required by Title 51.1 of the Code of Virginia, as amended to provide short-
term and long-term disability benefits for their Hybrid employees either through a local plan or through the
Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP).

Specific information about VLDP is available at
https://www.varetirement.org/hybrid/benefits/disability/virginia-local-disability-program.html
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The GLI, Teacher HIC, VLDP non-professional, and Teacher VLDP are administered by the VRS along
with pensions and other OPEB plans, for public employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. All of
these plans are considered multiple employer, cost sharing plans.

Contributions

Contributions to the VRS OPEB programs were based on actuarially determined rates from actuarial valuations
as of June 30, 2017. The actuarially determined rates were expected to finance the cost of benefits earned by
employees during the year, with an additional amount to fund any unfunded accrued liability. Specific details
related to the contributions for the VRS OPEB programs are as follows:

General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program

Component

unit - Public
Governmental Component unit - Schools (non-
Activities Authority professional)

Code of Virginia 51.1-1401(E) and may be impacted
Governed by as a result of funding provided to governmental
agencies by the Virginia General Assembly

Total rate of employee compensation 0.21% 0.18% 0.16%
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 74,360 | $ 8,413 | $ 9,712
June 30, 2019 Contribution $ 74,871 | $ 8,467 | $ 9,226

Group Life Insurance Program

Component
unit - Public
Governmental Component unit - Schools (non-

Activities Authority professional)
Code of Virginia 51.1-506 and 51.1-508 and may be
Governed by impacted as a re_sult of fundmg _p_rowded to
governmental agencies by the Virginia General
Assembly
Total rate of employee compensation* 1.31%
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 211,767 | $ 24,492 | $ 429,752
June 30, 2019 Contribution $ 213,323 | $ 21,000 | $ 407,768

*Rate is allocated 60/40; 0.79% employee and 0.52% employer. Employers may elect to pay all
or part of the employee contribution.
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Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program

Component unit - Public
Schools (professional)

Code of Virginia 51.1-1401(E)
and may be impacted as a
Gowerned by result of funding provided to
school divisions by the Virginia
General Assembly.

Total rate of employee compensation 1.20%
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 905,688
June 30, 2019 Contribution $ 864,798

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan

Component unit - Public
Schools (non-professional)

Code of Virginia 51.1-1178(C)
and may be impacted as a
Gowerned by result of funding provided to
political subdivisions by the
Virginia General Assembly.

Total rate of employee compensation 0.72%
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 17,451
June 30, 2019 Contribution $ 15,074

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan

Component unit - Public
Schools (professional)

Code of Virginia 51.1-1178(C)
and may be impacted as a
Gowverned by result of funding provided to
school divisions by the Virginia
General Assembly.

Total rate of employee compensation 0.41%
June 30, 2020 Contribution $ 76,043
June 30, 2019 Contribution $ 64,096
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VRS OPEB Liabilities, VRS OPEB Expense and Deferred Inflows and Outflows of Resources Related

to VRS OPEB

The net VRS OPEB liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2019 and the total VRS OPEB liabilities used to
calculate the net VRS OPEB liabilities were determined by actuarial valuations as of that date.

General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program

Changes in net OPEB liability of the General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program were as follows:

Governmental activities

Increase (decrease)

Total OPEB - HIC

Plan fiduciary

Net OPEB - HIC

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Changes of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

Component unit - Authority

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Service cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Changes of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

Component unit - Public Schools (non-professional)

Balances at June 30, 2018

Changes for the year:
Senvice cost
Interest
Changes in benefit terms
Changes of assumptions
Difference between expected
and actual experience
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expenses
Other changes

Net changes

Balances at June 30, 2019

liability (a) net position (b) liability (asset) (a) - (b)
$ 1,322,893 $ 722,952 $ 599,941
31,239 - 31,239
89,705 - 89,705
36,394 - 36,394
32,810 - 32,810
- 74,871 (74,871)
- 46,337 (46,337)
(82,782) (82,782) -
- (1,004) 1,004
- (19,114) 19,114
107,366 18,308 89,058
$ 1,430,259 $ 741,260 $ 688,999
$ 162,155 $ 107,782 $ 54,373
3,579 - 3,579
11,031 - 11,031
4,095 - 4,095
(3,892) - (3,892)
- 8,002 (8,002)
- 6,922 (6,922)
(9,131) (9,131) -
- (151) 151
- ® 8
5,682 5,634 48
$ 167,837 $ 113,416 $ 54,421
$ 316,613 $ 339,112 $ (22,499)
7,967 - 7,967
21,557 - 21,557
7,656 - 7,656
(2,594) - (2,594)
- 9,260 (9,260)
- 21,491 (21,491)
(17,320) (17,320) -
- (466) 466
- (25) 25
17,266 12,940 4,326
$ 333,879 $ 352,052 $ (18,173)
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The covered employer’s proportion of the net OPEB liabilities were based on the covered employer’s actuarially
determined employer contributions for the year ended June 30, 2019 relative to the total of the actuarially
determined employer contributions for all participating employers.

Group Life Insurance Program

Component

Component unit - unit - Public

Governmental Component unit- Public Schools Schools (non-
Activities Authority (professional) professional)
Jgng . 30, 2020 proportionate share of $ 3,389,000 | $ 360227 | $ 6,531,846
Liability
June 30, 2019 proportion 0.20827% 0.02269% 0.37153% 0.02987%
June 30, 2018 proportion 0.21342% 0.02234% 0.36332% 0.02817%
June 30, 2020 expense $ 73,968 | $ 8976 [ $ 149,814

Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program

Component unit - Public
Schools (professional)

June 30, 2020 proportionate share of Liability $ 11,297,117

June 30, 2019 proportion 0.86297%
June 30, 2018 proportion 0.85004%
June 30, 2020 expense $ 916,556

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan

Component unit - Public
Schools (non-professional)

June 30, 2020 proportionate share of Liability $ 13,843
June 30, 2019 proportion 0.68330%
June 30, 2018 proportion 0.67880%
June 30, 2020 expense $ 16,276

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan

Given that there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the VRS OPEB

Component unit - Public
Schools (professional)

June 30, 2020 proportionate share of Liability $ 19,124
June 30, 2019 proportion 3.28952%
June 30, 2018 proportion 3.37801%
June 30, 2020 expense $ 57,753

expense above was related to deferred amount from changes in proportion.

At June 30, 2020 the County, Authority, and Public Schools reported deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources related to VRS OPEB from the following sources.
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General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program

Governmental activities

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Component unit - Authority

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Component unit - Public Schools (non-professional)

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Group Life Insurance Program

Governmental activities

$ 36,933 $ -
31,042 6,150
- 9,171

74,360 -
$ 142,335  $ 15,321
$ - $ 8,797
3,488 2,267
- 1,203

8,413 -
$ 11,901 $ 12,267
$ - $ 12,685
6,230 5,401
- 4,067

9,712 -
$ 15,942 $ 22,153

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Changes in proportionate share

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Component unit - Authority

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Changes in proportionate share

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

Component unit - Public Schools

Differences between expected and

actual experience

Change of assumptions

Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on OPEB plan investments
Changes in proportionate share

Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

$ 225,396 $ 43,960
213,968 102,196
- 69,615
33,610 68,706

211,767 -
$ 684,741 $ 284,477
$ 24,556 $ 4,789
23,311 11,134
- 7,584
4,670 1,551

24,492 -
$ 77,029 $ 25,058
$ 434,407 $ 84,724
412,382 196,964
- 134,169
132,210 112,775

429,752 -
$ 1,408,751 $ 528,632
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Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Component Unit - Public Schools (professional)
Differences between expected and

actual experience $ - $ 63,988
Change of assumptions 262,936 78,499
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 713 -
Changes in proportionate share 144,362 182,831
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 905,688 -
Total $ 1,313,699 $ 325,318

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Component Unit - Public Schools non-professional
Differences between expected and

actual experience $ 6,943 $ 425
Change of assumptions 397 530
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 47 -
Changes in proportionate share 36 -
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 17,451 -
Total $ 24,874 $ 955

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan

Deferred outflows
of resources

Deferred inflows
of resources

Component Unit - Public Schools professional
Differences between expected and

actual experience $ - $ 2,308
Change of assumptions 3,265 -
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments 74 -
Changes in proportionate share - 607
Employer contributions subsequent to the

measurement date 76,043 -
Total $ 79,382 $ 2,915

The deferred outflows of resources related to VRS OPEB resulting from the County’s, Authority’s and Public
School’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net VRS
OPERB liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to VRS OPEB will be recognized in VRS OPEB expense (recovery) as
follows on the next page:
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General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program

Component unit -

Year Governmental Component unit - Public Schools
ended Activities Authority (non-professional)
2021 $ 5323 % (2,349) $ (6,377)
2022 5,321 (2,350) (6,375)
2023 10,905 (1,550) (3,185)
2024 11,114 (1,530) (333)
2025 11,849 (1,023) 347
Thereafter 8,142 23 -
Total $ 52,654 $ (8,779) $ (15,923)
Group Life Insurance Program
Year Governmental Component unit - Component unit -
ended Activities Authority Public Schools
2021 $ 7,640 % 1,750 % 21,980
2022 7,643 1,750 21,986
2023 37,128 4,962 78,811
2024 62,182 8,139 131,908
2025 58,748 8,473 150,093
Thereafter 15,156 2,405 45,589
Total $ 188,497 $ 27,479 $ 450,367

Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program

Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan

Component unit -

Year Public Schools

ended (professional)
2021 $ (2,506)
2022 (2,518)
2023 2,433
2024 776
2025 10,960
Thereafter 73,548
Total $ 82,693

Component unit -

Year Public Schools
ended (non-professional)
2021 $ 1,343
2022 1,334
2023 1,327
2024 1,341
2025 1,282
Thereafter (159)
Total $ 6,468
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Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan

Component unit -

Year Public Schools

ended (professional)
2021 $ 24
2022 24
2023 (25)
2024 (58)
2025 27)
Thereafter 486
Total $ 424

Actuarial Assumptions

The total VRS OPEB liability was determined using the following assumptions based on an actuarial valuation
date of June 30, 2018, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2019:

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases, including inflation:
Locality - general employees 3.5% - 5.35%
Locality - hazardous duty employees 3.5% - 4.75%
Teachers 3.5% - 5.95%
Investment rate of return 6.75%, net of investment
expenses, including
inflation*

* Administrative expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experience study were found to be
approximately 0.06% of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide an assumed investment rate for
GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed percent above. However, since the difference was minimal, and a more
conservative investment return assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit
payments, the long-term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be the percent noted above to simplify
preparation of OPEB liabilities.

Mortality rates used for the various VRS OPEB plans are the same as those used for the actuarial valuations
of the VRS pension plans. The mortality rates are discussed in detail at Note 11.

Net VRS OPEB Liabilities

The net VRS OPEB liabilities represent each program’s total OPEB liability determined in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated fiduciary net position. As of the measurement date of June 30,
2019, net OPEB liability amounts for the various VRS OPEB programs are as follows (amounts expressed in
thousands):

VLDP - Public VLDP - Public
Group Life Public Schools Schools Non- Schools
Insurance Professional HIC Professional Professional
OPEB Program OPEB Plan Plan Plan
Total OPEB Liability $ 3,390,238 $ 1,438,114 $ 3,989 $ 2,241
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,762,972 129,016 1,962 1,661
Employers' Net OPEB Liability (Asset) $ 1,627,266 $ 1,309,098 $ 2,027 $ 580
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
% of the Total OPEB Liability 52.00% 8.97% 49.19% 74.12%
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The total liability is calculated by the VRS actuary and each plan’s fiduciary net position is reported in the VRS
financial statements. The net OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance with the requirements of GASB
Statement No. 74 in the VRS notes to the financial statements and required supplementary information.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on VRS investments was determined using a log-normal distribution
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of OPEB
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target
asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset allocation and best estimate of
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Weighted
Arithmetic Average
Long-Term Long-Term
Target Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) Allocation Rate of Return Rate of Return*
Public Equity 34.00% 5.61% 1.91%
Fixed Income 15.00% 0.88% 0.13%
Credit Strategies 14.00% 5.13% 0.72%
Real Assets 14.00% 5.27% 0.74%
Private Equity 14.00% 8.77% 1.23%
MAPS - Multi-Asset Public Strategies 6.00% 3.52% 0.21%
PIP - Private Onvestment Partnership 3.00% 6.29% 0.19%
Total 100.00% 5.13%
Inflation 2.50%
* Expected arithmetic nominal return 7.63%

*The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.63%. However, one-year returns do not take into account the volatility
present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for the system, stochastic projections are
employed to model future returns under various economic conditions. The results provide a range of returns over various
time periods that ultimately provide a median return of 7.11%, including expected inflation of 2.50%. The VRS Board elected
a long-term rate of 6.75% which is roughly at the 40th percentile of expected long-term results of the VRS fund asset
allocation.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total VRS OPEB liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash flows used
to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the VRS Guidance
and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates equal to the
difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of Trustees and the
member rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by the employer for the OPEB
liabilities will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General
Assembly. From July 1, 2019 on, participating employers are assumed to contribute 100% of the actuarially
determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plans’ fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive
employees. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Sensitivity of the Net VRS OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the employer’'s proportionate share of the net VRS OPEB liability using the discount
rate of 6.75%, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net VRS OPEB liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%) or one percentage point
higher (7.75%) than the current rate:
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General Employee Health Insurance Credit Program
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1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Governmental activities
Net OPEB liability $ 850,783 $ 688,999 $ 551,891
Component unit - Authority
Net OPEB liability $ 72,530 $ 54,421 $ 38,954
Component unit - Public Schools (non-professional)
Net OPEB liability (Asset) $ 15515 $ (18,173) $ (47,171)
Group Life Insurance Program
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)
Governmental activities
Net OPEB liability $ 4,452,349 $ 3,389,107 $ 2,526,848
Component unit - Authority
Net OPEB liability $ 485,062 $ 369,227 $ 275,288
Component unit - Public Schools
Net OPEB liability $ 8,581,038 $ 6,531,846 $ 4,870,008
Public Schools Professional Plan Health Insurance Credit Program
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Component unit - Public Schools
(professional)
Net OPEB liability $ 12,643,394 $ 11,297,117 $ 10,153,455
Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Non-Professional Plan
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Component unit - Public Schools
(non-professional)
Net OPEB liability $ 15,919 $ 13,843 $ 12,027
Virginia Local Disability Program — Public Schools Professional Plan
1% Current 1%
Decrease Discount Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Component unit - Public Schools
(professional)
Net OPEB liability $ 28,093 $ 19,124 $ 11,377
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OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Information about the various VRS OPEB plan fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued VRS
2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2019 VRS CAFR may be downloaded
from the VRS website at https://www.varetire.org/pdf/publications/2019-annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the
System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.

Payables to the OPEB Plan

At June 30, 2020, the following amounts were payable to the Virginia Retirement System for the legally required
contributions related to June 2020 payroll:

Public Schools Group Life Insurance Program: $6,975
Public Schools Non-professional HIC Program: $848
Public Schools (Professional) Teacher VLDP Plan: $1,602

OPEB Expense — Aggregate Information

The total amount of expense recognized by the County, the Authority, and the Public Schools for their OPEB
plans is summarized below for fiscal year 2020:

Governmental Public
activities Authority Schools
Retiree healthcare $ 311,245 $ 28,017 $ 474,330
Group life insurance 73,968 8,976 149,814
General employee health insurance credit program 96,759 4,920 199
Public Schools professional plan health insurance credit program - - 916,556
Public Schools non-professional Virginia local disability program - - 16,276
Public Schools professional Virginia local disability program - - 57,753
Total $ 481,972 $ 41913 $ 1,614,928

13) Deferred Compensation Plan

The County offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code (IRC) Section 457. The plan, available to permanent part-time and full-time County and Authority
employees, permits them to defer 25% of their gross income up to the maximum allowable by the IRC ($19,500
in 2020). The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or an
unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts,
and all income attributable to those amounts, property, or rights are held in trust for the participants. The County
acts as trustee for the plan with the choice of investment options being made by the participants. The activity
of the plan is accounted for in the Deferred Compensation trust fund in the accompanying basic financial
statements.

14) Related-Party Transactions

Certain financial management, accounting, and other services are provided to the Authority by the County. The
charges for these services amounted to $810,170 for the year ended June 30, 2020. In addition, the County
leases space in Authority’s buildings under long-term operating leases. The County paid the Authority $85,680
for the year ended June 30, 2020.

In September 2009, the County entered into an agreement with the Schools for maintenance and custodial
services. The County paid the Schools $125,958 for fiscal year 2020 for these services. The agreement ended
as of June 30, 2020.
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In April 2013, the County entered into a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Schools to provide risk
management services. The MOU had an initial term of one year with the option of renewal for four additional
one year terms and is currently on a monthly basis.

15) Risk Management

The County reports all of its risk management expenditures in the General Fund. There were no settlements in
excess of the insurance coverage in any of the three prior fiscal years.

The County maintains surety coverage for principal officials through the Virginia Association of Counties Self
Insurance Risk Pool. Surety coverage is provided under the general liability coverage with a limit of $9,000,000.
All elected officials, appointed officials, members of all appointed governing bodies, employees and volunteers
are covered while acting within the scope of their duties with the County.

The County is subject to certain claims that arise in the ordinary course of operations. Many of these claims
are in the early stages of the evaluation process. Accordingly, it is not possible at the present time to estimate
the ultimate legal and financial liability, if any, with respect to certain lawsuits or other proceedings. In the
opinion of management, after consultation with counsel, the eventual outcome of such claims has not yet been
determined probable to have a material adverse effect on the County’s operations or financial position.

16) Commitments and Contingencies

Construction in Progress

At June 30, 2020, the County and Authority had several major projects under construction which are presented
in the accompanying financial statements as construction in progress. Below are the financial details.

Expenditures Balance of Budget

Project Budget to date contract balance
Primary government -
Governmental activities
General government admin. $ 6,518,130 $ 486,173 $ 69,445 $ 5,962,512
Public safety 2,154,809 709,443 135,801 1,309,565
Public works 4,806,917 416,607 163,930 4,226,380
Judicial administration 58,700 - - 58,700
Health & welfare 2,882 - - 2,882
Community development 12,929,645 2,529,202 1,315,963 9,084,480
Parks, recreation and cultural 5,812,530 741,204 49,503 5,021,823
Total $ 32,283,613 $ 4,882,629 $ 1,734,642 $ 25,666,342
Component unit - Authority
Sewer improvements $ 3498831 $ 11,303 $ 401,145 $ 3,086,383
Water supply 8,872,492 1,955,072 729,325 6,188,095
Water distribution 3,348,507 563,672 248,152 2,536,683
Water transmission 1,252,725 656,559 7,806 588,360
Water storage 185,620 - - 185,620
Other 2,993,026 208,986 152,161 2,631,879

$ 20,151,201 $ 3,395592 $ 15385589 $ 15,217,020

Encumbrances

As previously discussed, encumbrance accounting is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective
budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. At year end the amount
of encumbrances expected to be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year were as follows:
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General fund $ 834,391
Capital projects 1,734,642
Nonmajor governmental 789,087
Total $ 3,358,120

Advances for Construction

The Authority records advances for construction representing two separate agreement types. Funds can be
advanced by developers for the construction of specific facilities. These agreements call for rebates, up to the
amount advanced, and have no expiration date. Developers can also construct a facility, dedicate it to the
Authority and receive rebates up to the cost of the facility for up to 10 years. The Authority no longer enters into
these types of agreements. At June 30, 2020, the Authority had $32,902 outstanding in advances for
construction.

Operating Leases

The County leases certain land and office space under noncancelable operating lease agreements. Rental
expenditures related to these lease agreements were $246,192 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

The Public Schools lease equipment and buildings under noncancelable operating leases. Total costs for such
leases were approximately $343,611 for the year ended June 30, 2020. The future minimum lease payments
for these leases are as follows:

Primary Component
government - unit -
governmental Public

Year ending June 30: activities Schools

2021 $ 265,027 $ 271,433
2022 271,635 217,081
2023 279,013 119,688
2024 286,223 31,541
2025 294,029 -

2026-2029 526,695 -
Total $ 1,922,622 $ 639,743

Other

The County and the Public Schools participate in a number of federal awards. Amounts received or receivable
from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor agencies, principally the federal
government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the
applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be
determined at this time although the County expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

The County, the Public Schools and the Development Authority are currently not involved in any litigation in
which management deems any potential impact would be material to their respective financial statements.

17) Tax Abatements

The Development Authority negotiates tax abatements as part of the Enterprise Zone Grant Program, the
purpose of which is to bring new commercial and industrial businesses to the County. To be eligible for this
program, the business must be located in one of the two Enterprise Zones in the County and make a capital
investment of $500,000 or more in a commercial or industrial project. Depending on the investment, the taxes
abated are Real Estate or Machinery & Tools. The abatement is determined by taking the improvement value
of the tax assessment for qualified capital investments and applying the following percentages:

Real Estate Machinery & Tools
Year 1 0.45% 0.50%
Year 2 0.36% 0.40%
Year 3 0.27% 0.30%
Year 4 0.18% 0.20%
Year 5 0.09% 0.10%
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As of June 30, 2020, the County had 6 tax abatement agreements for Real Estate taxes as follows:

Tax Amount
Tax Abatement Program Abated
Enterprise Zone Grant Program - Real Estate $ 5,223

The Development Authority has a performance agreement with a business related to machinery and tools. The
business is to make additional investments in their operations, which would increase their machinery and tools
tax paid to the County. If the business meets a specified threshold of machinery and tools tax paid for five
calendar years, the Development Authority and County will refund 10% of the total machinery and tools tax
paid. Based on the terms of the agreement, no payments were made to the business for fiscal year 2020.

18) COVID-19

During fiscal year 2020, the novel coronavirus disease (COVID-19) impacted the operational and financial
activities of the County.

With regard to real estate and personal property taxes, typically deferred revenue is recorded for property taxes
levied but not collected within 45 days after year end. In an effort to encourage social distancing and assist with
pandemic-related financial hardships, the County provided citizens with an extension under which they could
pay their June 5, 2020 tax bills without penalty until August 5, 2020. The due date of subsequent supplemental
and business personal property tax bills, which related to fiscal year 2020 assessments, was also extended. As
a result of these extensions, the collection window for real estate and personal property taxes was adjusted to
60 days after year end for fiscal year 2020.

The costs of convenience fees typically charged to citizens on credit card or other electronic payments made
to the County were also waived in an effort to allow transactions to occur remotely rather than in-person and,
thereby, limit potential exposures. These costs will continue to be absorbed by the County through December
2020.

To mitigate the spread of the virus, social distancing measures were encouraged and executive orders were
issued by the Governor of Virginia that placed restrictions on how businesses could operate. As a result of
these restrictions, as well as changes in consumer behavior and financial hardships related to the pandemic,
the County experienced decreases in other local tax revenues, including sales and use taxes, hotel and motel
room taxes, and restaurant food taxes, during fiscal year 2020.

In addition, the County closed its Parks and Recreation facilities and adjusted the operations of its other
departments in order to limit social interactions and help to prevent the spread of the virus. As a result of these
changes, the County experienced decreases in fee revenue and charges for services starting in March 2020.

To offset anticipated revenue losses related to COVID-19, the County implemented restrictions on spending
and a hiring freeze. Expenditures related to travel, training, and other discretionary costs, including tuition
assistance for employees, were significantly limited or put on hold in an effort to conserve funds.

To assist with costs incurred that were necessary due to COVID-19, the County utilized relief funds to help
protect its citizens and staff during the pandemic. Given the unanticipated nature of COVID-19, these costs
were not previously included in the County’s fiscal year 2020 budget.

In June 2020, the County received an allocation from the State of $6,676,337 for its share of Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding from the federal government. These funds are to be used
for expenditures that are: (1) necessary due to COVID-19, (2) not previously included in the fiscal year 2020
budget, and (3) incurred between March 1, 2020 and December 30, 2020. As of June 30, 2020, the County had
expended $6,561,664 of these funds, which included a disbursement to the Public Schools of $1,749,959 for
qualified expenditures. As of June 30, 2020, the Public Schools had not spent these funds and, as such, they
are included in unearned revenue on the Public School’s financial statements. Revenue in the amount of
$6,561,664 was recognized in the County’s Grants and Special Projects Fund for fiscal year 2020, and the
remaining $114,673 of the funding was reported as unearned revenue as of June 30, 2020 to be recognized as
revenue when these funds are expended in fiscal year 2021.
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This CARES Act funding was the primary source of federal relief received by the County during fiscal year 2020.
Other federal relief that the County received related to COVID-19 included funding to support ambulance
services and emergency shelter operations.

In August 2020, the County received a second allocation of CARES Act funding in the amount of $6,676,337.
The County intends to expend all CARES Act funding on or before December 30, 2020.

The extent to which COVID-19 may impact the County’s operations and financial condition in subsequent fiscal
years will depend on future developments, which remain uncertain and cannot be predicted due to the evolving
nature of this situation. As a result, the County cannot reasonably estimate the future impact of COVID-19 at
this time.

19) Restatement

Prior to fiscal year 2020, the Authority was presented as a blended component unit of the County, given that
the County Administrator had certain operational responsibility for the Authority. The Board of Directors adopted
a resolution to appoint the Authority’s General Manager as its chief executive officer in 2018, and procedures
have been implemented subsequently to remove operational responsibilities over the Authority from the County.
The Authority remains financially integrated with the County; therefore, the Authority is included as a discretely
presented component unit in the County’s financial statements for reporting purposes.

In previous fiscal years, the Authority’s statement of net position and statement of activities were incorporated
in the County’s financial statements as a business-type activity that was part of the primary government. In
addition, the Authority’s statement of net position; statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position;
and statement of cash flows were presented as proprietary fund statements in the County’s financial statements.
As a result of the change to a discretely presented component unit, the Authority’s financial information is no
longer included as part of the primary government’s reporting, and proprietary fund financial statements are no
longer included in the County’s financial statements. The County’s disclosures for fiscal year 2020 have been
similarly adjusted so that the Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit, rather than a
business-type activity included in the primary government.

20) Subsequent Events

In July 2020, the County awarded a contract in the amount of $1,450,049 to Carolina Marine Structures, Inc.
for the Chickahominy Riverfront Park Living Shoreline. This project involves the stabilization of the shoreline
along the Chickahominy River and Gordon Creek through the installation of breakwaters, rock marsh sills,
beach nourishment, and marsh creation.

In August 2020, the County purchased a 119-acre parcel adjacent to the County’s Brickyard Landing Boat
Ramp. The Board's intent with this purchase is to further expand the boat ramp and increase the public’s access
to the Chickahominy River. The total amount paid a closing for this property was $1,382,083, and the County
anticipates receiving grant funds from the United States’ Land and Water Conservation Fund to reimburse up
to half of this cost.

In October 2020, the County entered into a lease-purchase agreement with Motorola Solutions for the
replacement of public safety portable radios, accessories, and programming. The contract price is $1,693,311,
and the interest rate for the agreement is 2.14%.

In addition, the County awarded a contract in the amount of $3,220,678 to Carolina Marine Structures, Inc. in
October 2020 for Stage | of the Marina Improvement Project. This project includes the replacement of bulkhead
with living shoreline, replacement of fixed boat slip piers with floating piers, installation of sidewalks and site
lighting upgrades, and other improvements.

* k% k% % %
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County of James City, Virginia
General Fund

The General Fund is the general operating fund of the County, which is used to account for all of the financial
resources, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Revenues are derived primarily from general
property taxes, other local taxes, licenses, permits and fees and intergovernmental revenues. Primary expenditures
are for public safety, public works, health and welfare, parks, recreation and culture, education and the general
administration of the County.
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Exhibit 6

Variance
Original Final positive
Fund, major and minor revenue source budget budget Actual (negative)
Revenue from local sources:
General property taxes:
Real property taxes $ 102,100,000 $ 102,100,000 $ 101,429,335 $ (670,665)
Real and personal public service
corporation property taxes 2,200,000 2,200,000 4,025,876 1,825,876
Personal property taxes 25,540,000 25,540,000 25,981,643 441,643
Machinery and tools taxes 6,100,000 6,100,000 6,358,843 258,843
Penalties 750,000 750,000 587,976 (162,024)
Interest 385,000 385,000 340,523 (44,477)
Total general property taxes 137,075,000 137,075,000 138,724,196 1,649,196
Other local taxes:
Local sales and use taxes 15,400,000 15,400,000 14,660,594 (739,406)
Franchise license taxes 700,000 700,000 484,998 (215,002)
Taxes on recordation and wills 1,150,000 1,150,000 1,532,445 382,445
Hotel and motel room taxes 2,925,000 2,925,000 2,158,572 (766,428)
Restaurant food taxes 7,590,000 7,590,000 6,049,097 (1,540,903)
Deeds of conveyance 380,000 380,000 412,922 32,922
Penalties - - 56,152 56,152
Interest - - 16,503 16,503
Total other local taxes 28,145,000 28,145,000 25,371,283 (2,773,717)
Permits, privilege fees and regulatory licenses:
Animal licenses 30,000 30,000 11,461 (18,539)
Business licenses 7,480,000 7,480,000 7,187,277 (292,723)
Motor vehicle licenses 210,000 210,000 170,761 (39,239)
Building permits 950,000 950,000 850,756 (99,244)
Permits and other licenses 757,000 757,000 658,313 (98,687)
Total permits, privilege fees and
regulatory licenses 9,427,000 9,427,000 8,878,568 (548,432)
Fines and forfeitures 240,000 240,000 231,608 (8,392)
Use of money and property 200,000 200,000 198,996 (1,004)
Charges for services:
Excess fees - Clerk of Court 155,000 155,000 175,213 20,213
Charges for Commonwealth’s attorney 7,000 7,000 5,217 (1,783)
Charges for law enforcement and traffic control 145,000 145,000 106,700 (38,300)
Charges for emergency medical services 2,300,000 2,215,006 1,925,130 (289,876)
Charges for parks and recreation 3,638,000 3,638,000 2,844,953 (793,047)
Recycling fees 1,418,000 1,418,000 804,152 (613,848)
Landfill user fees 310,000 310,000 366,068 56,068
Other fees 187,000 187,000 63,771 (123,229)
Total charges for services 8,160,000 8,075,006 6,291,204 (1,783,802)
Miscellaneous revenue:
Sale of property 137,000 137,000 77,020 (59,980)
Miscellaneous 123,000 160,045 144,668 (15,377)
Total miscellaneous revenue 260,000 297,045 221,688 (75,357)
Total revenue from local sources 183,507,000 183,459,051 179,917,543 (3,541,508)
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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General Fund
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Exhibit 6

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Variance
Original Final positive
Fund, major and minor revenue source budget budget Actual (negative)
Revenue from the Commonwealth:
Noncategorical aid:
Mobile home titling taxes $ 40,000 $ 40,000 $ 45,246 $ 5,246
Tax on deeds 400,000 400,000 291,921 (108,079)
Railroad rolling stock taxes 60,000 60,000 53,476 (6,524)
Personal property tax relief 9,770,137 9,770,137 9,770,137 -
Communications sales and use tax 1,500,000 1,500,000 1,412,986 (87,014)
Car rental tax 120,000 120,000 106,995 (13,005)
Total noncategorical aid 11,890,137 11,890,137 11,680,761 (209,376)
Categorical aid:
Shared expenses:
Commonwealth’s attorney 587,000 594,704 604,759 10,055
Sheriff 775,000 775,000 766,745 (8,255)
Commissioner of the revenue 184,168 184,168 185,102 934
Treasurer 175,000 175,000 178,304 3,304
Registrar/electoral board 70,000 70,000 102,036 32,036
Clerk of the circuit court 495,000 523,257 525,055 1,798
Total shared expenses 2,286,168 2,322,129 2,362,001 39,872
Other categorical aid:
Wireless Board 220,000 220,000 234,464 14,464
Commission of the arts 4,500 4,500 4,500 -
HB 599 payments 1,400,000 1,400,000 1,468,556 68,556
Share of state sales tax 12,744,195 12,744,195 13,068,599 324,404
DMV Satellite Office 75,000 75,000 86,145 11,145
Total other categorical aid 14,443,695 14,443,695 14,862,264 418,569
Total categorical aid 16,729,863 16,765,824 17,224,265 458,441
Total revenue from the Commonwealth 28,620,000 28,655,961 28,905,026 249,065
Revenue from the federal government:
Payments in lieu of taxes 8,000 8,000 8,433 433
CARES Act provider relief - 84,994 84,995 1
Total revenue from the federal government 8,000 92,994 93,428 434
Total revenues $ 212,135,000 $ 212,208,006 $ 208,915,997 $  (3,292,009)
(Continued)



County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual (Unaudited)

General Fund

Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit 6

Variance
Original Final positive
Fund, major and minor expenditure source budget budget Actual (negative)
General government administration:
Legislative:
Board of supervisors $ 152,992 152,992 137,841 15,151
General and financial administration:
County administrator 871,498 875,498 792,749 82,749
County attorney 470,391 470,503 461,780 8,723
Human resources 533,796 568,934 469,384 99,550
Legal services 52,500 52,500 47,284 5,216
Commissioner of the revenue 877,283 877,283 872,038 5,245
Real estate assessments 701,202 701,102 678,115 22,987
Treasurer 1,253,305 1,253,305 997,299 256,006
Financial management 1,349,231 1,367,102 1,248,328 118,774
Accounting 189,121 185,621 177,799 7,822
IT Infrastructure 1,866,711 1,876,948 1,654,911 222,037
Purchasing 290,948 290,648 279,011 11,637
IT Core Applications 1,305,278 1,322,206 1,117,131 205,075
Information technology 1,260,656 1,304,815 1,137,426 167,389
Satellite office 207,792 218,469 211,280 7,189
Fleet maintenance 1,087,820 1,087,820 995,771 92,049
Total general and financial administration 12,317,532 12,452,754 11,140,306 1,312,448
Board of elections:
Voter registration and elections 460,255 460,255 434,343 25,912
Total general government administration 12,930,779 13,066,001 11,712,490 1,353,511
Judicial administration:
Courts:
Circuit court and judicial services 615,950 615,973 599,736 16,237
General district court 39,281 39,281 23,372 15,909
Juvenile and domestic relations district court 14,508 14,860 12,277 2,583
Clerk of the circuit court 781,527 809,784 803,557 6,227
Sheriff 1,485,804 1,485,804 1,252,955 232,849
9th judicial district 6,408 22,136 18,847 3,289
Court services and juvenile detention 321,757 327,359 247,451 79,908
Courthouse 532,532 549,206 430,447 118,759
Total courts 3,797,767 3,864,403 3,388,642 475,761
Commonwealth’s attorney 1,087,072 1,094,776 1,067,076 27,700
Total judicial administration 4,884,839 4,959,179 4,455,718 503,461
Public safety:
Law enforcement and traffic control:
Police department 11,941,728 12,004,300 10,013,328 1,990,972
Emergency communications 3,379,074 3,383,074 2,518,863 864,211
Total law enforcement and traffic control 15,320,802 15,387,374 12,532,191 2,855,183
Fire and rescue services:
Fire department and emergency medical services 13,155,396 13,176,112 10,482,370 2,693,742
Correction and detention:
Regional jail 2,241,817 2,241,817 2,243,329 (1,512)
Inspections:
Building and safety permits 1,381,633 1,381,633 1,235,994 145,639
Other protection:
Animal control 188,984 188,984 136,446 52,538
Emergency management 279,522 289,422 262,063 27,359
Total other protection 468,506 478,406 398,509 79,897
Total public safety 32,568,154 32,665,342 26,892,393 5,772,949
(Continued)

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Variance
Original Final positive
Fund, major and minor expenditure source budget budget Actual (negative)
Public works:
Sanitation and waste removal:
Grounds maintenance 2,215,589 2,446,589 $ 2,018,694 $ 427,895
Solid waste and recycling 2,606,296 2,618,334 2,112,998 505,336
Total sanitation and waste removal 4,821,885 5,064,923 4,131,692 933,231
Maintenance of general buildings and grounds:
Facilities management 5,313,915 5,586,632 4,504,148 1,082,484
Total public works 10,135,800 10,651,555 8,635,840 2,015,715
Health and human services:
Local health department 781,934 781,934 738,939 42,995
Behavioral health and development services 1,732,000 1,732,000 1,732,000 -
Total health and human services 2,513,934 2,513,934 2,470,939 42,995
Education:
School board administration 95,746,036 95,746,036 90,536,751 5,209,285
Parks, recreation and cultural:
Parks and recreation:
Administration 5,379,886 5,406,668 4,952,306 454,362
Community centers 371,652 455,821 275,171 180,650
Park operations 417,676 424,012 319,092 104,920
Recreation services 420,670 420,670 263,948 156,722
Total parks and recreation 6,589,884 6,707,171 5,810,517 896,654
Library:
Regional library 4,933,357 4,933,357 4,933,357 -
Total parks, recreation and cultural 11,523,241 11,640,528 10,743,874 896,654
Community development:
Planning and community development:
Planning 1,117,353 1,562,445 1,221,752 340,693
Community Development 216,584 265,897 259,969 5,928
Zoning enforcement 357,220 356,970 339,451 17,519
Economic development 434,938 468,271 348,265 120,006
Contributions — other 1,003,941 1,003,941 950,161 53,780
Regional transportation 708,761 708,761 708,761 -
Total planning and community
development 3,838,797 4,366,285 3,828,359 537,926
Environmental management:
Stormwater & Resource protection 2,116,245 2,347,143 2,122,922 224,221
Total community development 5,955,042 6,713,428 5,951,281 762,147
Nondepartmental:
Miscellaneous 87,049 49,716 - 49,716
Health insurance - - 16,128 (16,128)
Total nondepartmental 87,049 49,716 16,128 33,588
Total expenditures 176,344,874 178,005,719 161,415,414 16,606,433
Excess of revenues over expenditures 35,790,126 34,202,287 47,500,583 13,314,424
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 70,000 107,045 102,833 (4,212)
Transfers out (35,860,126) (37,667,126) (34,912,342) 2,754,784
Total other financing sources (uses) (35,790,126) (37,560,081) (34,809,509) 2,750,572
Net change in fund balance - (3,357,794) 12,691,074 16,064,996
Fund balance at beginning of year - 3,357,794 46,889,297 43,531,503
Fund balance at end of year - - $ 59,580,371 $ 59,596,499

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Year ended June 30,*

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions
Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability, beginning
Total pension liability, ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions
Adminstrative expense
Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

Plan fiduciary net position, beginning

Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b)

Net pension liability (asset) (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability

Covered payroll

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage
of the total covered payroll

County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Governmental Activities - County

Exhibit 7

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 4,376,092 $ 4,416,137 $ 4,398,469 $ 4,344,463 $ 4,233,955 $ 4,329,341
9,996,496 10,586,624 11,164,260 11,561,915 12,034,506 12,600,514
- 252,227 (2,733,673) (554,290) (258,300) 1,286,792
- - - (1,296,832) - 5,993,876
(5,223,843) (6,660,511) (7,345,595) (6,950,943) (7,656,974) (8,191,674)
9,148,745 8,594,477 5,483,461 7,104,313 8,353,187 16,018,849
145,419,002 154,567,747 163,162,224 168,645,685 175,749,998 184,103,185

$ 154,567,747

$ 163,162,224

$ 168,645,685

$ 175,749,998

$ 184,103,185

$ 200,122,034

4,362,691 4,065,806 4,133,647 3,536,962 3,660,271 3,773,524
1,909,429 1,844,202 1,870,648 1,934,998 1,952,900 2,117,076
18,931,089 6,365,577 2,508,354 17,721,493 11,930,106 11,427,215
(5,223,843) (6,660,511) (7,345,595) (6,950,943) (7,656,974) (8,191,674)
(100,186) (86,580) (89,515) (101,649) (102,499) (112,489)

998 (1,349) (1,066) (15,816) (10,651) (7,209)
19,880,178 5,527,145 1,076,473 16,125,045 9,773,153 9,006,443
119,228,777 139,108,955 144,636,100 145,712,573 161,837,618 171,610,771
139,108,955 144,636,100 145,712,573 161,837,618 171,610,771 180,617,214

$ 15458792 $ 18,526,124 $ 22933112 $ 13912380 $ 12492414 $ 19,504,820

90.00% 88.65% 86.40% 92.08% 93.21% 90.25%
$ 37,347,889 $ 36,788,968 $ 37,681,907 $ 38,853,860 $ 40475381 $ 40,710,451
41.39% 50.36% 60.86% 35.81% 30.86% 47.91%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 68 and 71 were implemented in fiscal year 2015, and additional years will be presented as

the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 7
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Service Authority

Year ended June 30,* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Total pension liability
Service cost $ 417,066 $ 430,269 $ 404,294 $ 411,137 $ 379,365 $ 378,585
Interest 913,818 978,647 1,032,165 1,104,651 1,132,686 1,198,755

Changes of benefit terms - - - - - -
Differences between expected and

actual experience - (146,331) 128,139 (213,521) 62,537 182,506
Changes in assumptions - - - (335,427) - 546,875
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions (376,365) (433,146) (562,945) (495,181) (637,522) (623,967)

Net change in total pension liability 954,519 829,439 1,001,653 471,659 937,066 1,682,754
Total pension liability, beginning 13,242,723 14,197,242 15,026,681 16,028,334 16,499,993 17,437,059
Total pension liability, ending (a) $ 14,197,242 $ 15,026,681 $ 16,028,334 $ 16,499,993 $ 17,437,059 $ 19,119,813
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer 308,820 329,381 336,720 288,588 297,525 235,463
Contributions - employee 197,188 193,349 197,261 210,624 204,311 212,351
Net investment income 1,802,418 612,704 245,617 1,734,000 1,174,317 1,128,516
Benefit payments, including refunds of
employee contributions (376,365) (433,146) (562,945) (495,181) (637,522) (623,967)
Adminstrative expense (9,511) (8,173) (8,604) (9,804) (10,045) (11,054)
Other 95 (130) (104) (1,553) (1,050) (713)
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 1,922,645 693,985 207,945 1,726,674 1,027,536 940,596
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning 11,335,104 13,257,749 13,951,734 14,159,679 15,886,353 16,913,889
Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b) 13,257,749 13,951,734 14,159,679 15,886,353 16,913,889 17,854,485
Net pension liability (asset) (a) - (b) $ 939,493 $ 1,074,947 $ 1,868,655 $ 613,640 $ 523,170 $ 1,265,328
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability 93.38% 92.85% 88.34% 96.28% 97.00% 93.38%
Covered payroll $ 3,943,666 $ 3,897,762 $ 4,026,779 $ 4,083,082 $ 4,230,543 $ 4,445,820
Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage 23.82% 27.58% 46.41% 15.03% 12.37% 28.46%

of the total covered payroll

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 68 and 71 were implemented in fiscal year 2015, and additional years will be presented as
the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Year ended June 30,*

Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms

Differences between expected and

actual experience
Changes in assumptions

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions

Net change in total pension liability

Total pension liability, beginning
Total pension liability, ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income

Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contributions
Adminstrative expense
Other

Net change in plan fiduciary net position
Plan fiduciary net position, beginning
Plan fiduciary net position, ending (b)

Net pension liability (asset) (a) - (b)

County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Exhibit 7

Component Unit - Public Schools' Non-Professional

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total pension liability

Covered payroll

Net pension liability (asset) as a percentage

of the total covered payroll

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 507972 $ 526136 $ 540481 $ 523460 $ 506,887 $ 485,858
1,021,383 1,087,945 1,157,021 1,222,200 1,254,419 1,297,224
- (13,491) (122,658) (318,599) (287,441) (426,300)
- - - (236,957) - 528,041
(570,189) (586,736) (640,852) (646,577) (813,097) (911,625)
950,166 1,013,854 933,992 543,527 660,768 973,198
14,876,279 15,835,445 16,849,299 17,783,291 18,326,818 18,987,586
$ 15835445 $ 16,849299 $ 17,783,291 $ 18,326,818 $ 18,987,586 $ 19,960,784
435,519 372,141 369,942 233,501 224,276 173,657
237,728 256,454 256,786 257,483 249,325 268,278
2,265,304 764,646 309,381 2,158,117 1,451,191 1,377,110
(570,189) (586,736) (640,852) (646,577) (813,097) (911,625)
(12,002) (10,296) (10,703) (12,355) (12,546) (13,730)
120 (162) (130) (1,926) (1,291) (866)
2,356,480 796,047 284,424 1,088,243 1,097,858 892,824
14,283,651 16,640,131 17,436,178 17,720,602 19,708,845 20,806,703
16,640,131 17,436,178 17,720,602 19,708,845 20,806,703 21,699,527
$  (804,686) $  (586,879) _$ 62,689 $ (1,382,027) _$ (1,819,117) _$ (1,738,743)
105.08% 103.48% 99.65% 107.54% 109.58% 108.71%
$ 4812365 $ 5154307 $ 5123850 $ 5000257 $ 4,802,484 $ 4,905,565
-16.72% -11.39% 1.22% -27.64% -37.88% -35.44%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 68 and 71 were implemented in fiscal year 2015, and additional years will be presented as

the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net Pension Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Public Schools' Professional

Exhibit 8

Year ended June 30,* 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Employer's proportion of the net pension liability 0.85987% 0.87896% 0.87104% 0.86356% 0.84943% 0.86221%
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 103,913,000 $ 110,629,000 $ 122,069,000 $ 106,201,000 $ 99,893,000 $ 113,471,736
Employer's covered payroll $ 62,882,350 $ 65,034,559 $ 65,800,057 $ 67,052,585 $ 67,353,977 $ 70,456,378
Employer's proportionate share of the net pension liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 165.25% 170.11% 185.52% 158.38% 148.31% 161.05%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total

pension liability 70.88% 70.68% 68.28% 72.92% 74.81% 73.51%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 68 and 71 were implemented in fiscal year 2015, and additional years will be

presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer Pension Contributions
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Years ended June 30, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016 and 2015 (1)

Exhibit 9

[Primary Government - Governmental Activities - County

Contributions in

relation to Contributions

Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ 4,090,933 $ 4,091,153 $ 220 $ 36,788,968 11.12%
2016 4,190,228 4,190,244 16 37,681,907 11.12%
2017 3,640,607 3,640,677 70 38,853,860 9.37%
2018 3,792,543 3,793,308 765 40,475,381 9.37%
2019 3,814,569 3,816,392 1,823 40,710,451 9.37%
2020 4,085,815 4,085,863 48 40,413,598 10.11%

*Excess contributions are a result of an amount due for retroactive payment for prior fiscal year.

[Component Unit - JCSA

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ 330,920 $ 330,920 $ - $ 3,897,762 8.49%
2016 341,874 341,874 - 4,026,779 8.49%
2017 297,668 297,668 - 4,083,082 7.29%
2018 308,672 308,672 - 4,230,543 7.29%
2019 250,534 250,534 - 4,445,820 5.63%
2020 265,027 265,027 - 4,673,979 5.66%
[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - Non-professional
Contributions in
relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ 372,141 $ 372,141 $ - $ 5,154,307 7.22%
2016 369,942 369,942 - 5,123,850 7.22%
2017 233,512 233,512 - 5,000,257 4.67%
2018 224,276 224,276 - 4,802,484 4.67%
2019 173,657 173,657 - 4,905,565 3.54%
2020 172,427 172,427 - 4,870,819 3.54%
[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - Professional |
Contributions in
relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2015 $ 9,430,011 $ 9,430,011 $ - $ 65,034,559 14.50%
2016 9,251,488 9,251,488 65,800,057 14.06%
2017 9,829,909 9,829,909 67,052,585 14.66%
2018 10,992,169 10,992,169 67,353,977 16.32%
2019 11,047,560 11,047,560 70,456,378 15.68%
2020 11,431,558 11,431,558 72,905,344 15.68%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 68 and 71 were implemented in fiscal year 2015,

and additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.

87



Exhibit 10
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Retiree Healthcare OPEB Liability (1) (2)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Last Ten Fiscal Years* (1) (2)

Measurement date as of June 30, 2017 2018 2019
County JCSA County JCSA County JCSA

Employer's proportion of the County's Retiree Healthcare

OPEB Liability 77.59% 7.35% 77.59% 7.35% 78.42% 7.30%
Employer's proportionate share of the County's Retiree

Healthcare OPEB Liability $ 4,296,213 $ 406,742 $ 4,571,936 $ 432,969 $ 4,097,564 $ 381,436
Fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected average remaining service years of all participants 7 7 7 7 6 6

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years will be presented as the information becomes
available.

(2) This OPEB plan does not depend on salary information.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 10
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB - Retiree Healthcare (RH) Liability and Related Ratios (1) (2)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Public Schools' Non-Professional

Year ended June 30,* 2018 2019 2020
Total OPEB - RH liability
Service cost $ 457,670 $ 432,740 $ 448,112
Interest cost 126,557 165,148 180,316

Changes of benefit terms - - -
(270,907) (487,307)

Differences between expected and actual experience -

Changes in assumptions (244,756) (13,843) (61,871)

Changes in proportions - - -

Benefit payments (127,182) 64,113 (9,510)
Net change in total OPEB - RH liability 212,289 377,251 69,740
Total OPEB - RH liability, beginning 4,504,186 4,716,475 5,093,726
Total OPEB - RH liability, ending (a) $ 4,716,475 $ 5,093,726 $ 5,163,466
Plan fiduciary net position - RH

Contributions - employer 206,794 (64,113) 9,510

Net investment income - - -

Benefit payments (206,794) 64,113 (9,510)

Administrative expense - - -
Net change in plan fiduciary net position - RH - - -
Plan fiduciary net position - RH, beginning - - -
Plan fiduciary net position - RH, ending (b) - - -
OPEB - RH liability (a) - (b) $ 4716475  $ 5,093,726 $ 5,163,466
Plan fiduciary net position - RH as a percentage of the total

OPEB - RH liability 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Expected average remaining service years of all participants 7 7 7

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years
will be presented as the information becomes available.

(2) This OPEB plan does not depend on salary information.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Year ended June 30,*

Total OPEB - HIC liability
Service cost
Interest cost
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Net change in total OPEB - HIC liability
Total OPEB - HIC liability, beginning
Total OPEB - HIC liability, ending (a)

Plan fiduciary net position - HIC
Contributions - employer
Contributions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Other
Net change in plan fiduciary net position - HIC
Plan fiduciary net position - HIC, beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - HIC, ending (b)

Net OPEB - HIC liability (asset) (a) - (b)

Plan fiduciary net position - HIC as a percentage of the total
OPEB - HIC liability

Covered payroll

Net OPEB - HIC liability as a percentage of the total
covered payroll

County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB - Health Insurance Credit (HIC) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Exhibit 11

2018 2019 2020
Public Schools' Public Schools' Public Schools'
County JCSA Non-Professional County JCSA Non-Professional County JCSA Non-Professional
29,486 $ 3,682 $ 8,750 $ 29,285 $ 3,588 $ 8,619 $ 31,239 3,579 $ 7,967
84,387 10,769 21,536 86,675 11,121 21,905 89,705 11,031 21,557
- - - 12,586 (7,706) (16,514) 32,810 (3,892) (2,594)
(10,761) (3,953) (11,335) - - - 36,394 4,095 7,656
(53,124) (3,508) (6,674) (87,727) (7,440) (20,665) (82,782) (9,131) (17,320)
49,988 6,990 12,277 40,819 (437) (6,655) 107,366 5,682 17,266
1,232,086 155,602 310,991 1,282,074 162,592 323,268 1,322,893 162,155 316,613
1,282,074 $ 162,592 $ 323,268 $ 1,322,893 $ 162,155 $ 316,613 $ 1,430,259 167,837 $ 333,879
65,197 8,166 11,391 67,836 8,467 11,165 74,871 8,002 9,260
71,316 10,122 33,666 49,083 7,150 23,057 46,337 6,922 21,491
(53,124) (3,508) (6,674) (87,727) (7,440) (20,665) (82,782) (9,131) (17,320)
(1,170) (170) (552) (1,138) (170) (535) (1,004) (151) (466)
3,562 494 1,683 (3,562) (494) (1,683) (19,114) (8) (25)
85,781 15,104 39,514 24,492 7,513 11,339 18,308 5,634 12,940
612,679 85,165 288,259 698,460 100,269 327,773 722,952 107,782 339,112
698,460 100,269 327,773 722,952 107,782 339,112 741,260 113,416 352,052
583,614 $ 62,323 $ (4505) _$ 599,941 $ 54,373 $ (22,499) _$ 688,999 54,421 $ (18,173)
54.48% 61.67% 101.39% 54.65% 66.47% 107.11% 51.83% 67.58% 105.44%
38,853,860 $ 4,083,082 $ 5,000,257 $ 40,475,381 $ 4,230,543 $ 4,854,348 $ 40,710,451 4,445,820 $ 5,766,438
1.50% 1.53% -0.09% 1.48% 1.29% -0.46% 1.69% 1.22% -0.32%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 12
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Governmental Activities - County

Year ended June 30,* 2018 2019 2020
Employer's proportion of the net OPEB - GLI liability 0.21149% 0.21342% 0.20827%
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability $ 3,183,000 $ 3,241,000 $ 3,389,000
Employer's covered payroll $ 38,853,860 $ 40,475,381 % 40,710,451
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 8.19% 8.01% 8.32%
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB - GLI liability 48.86% 51.22% 52.00%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional
years will be presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 12
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Service Authority

Year ended June 30,* 2018 2019 2020
Employer's proportion of the net OPEB - GLI liability 0.02217% 0.02234% 0.02269%
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability $ 333,000 $ 340,000 $ 369,227
Employer's covered payroll $ 4,083,082 3 4,230,543 $ 4,445,820
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 8.16% 8.04% 8.31%
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB - GLI liability 48.86% 51.22% 52.00%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional
years will be presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 12
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB - Group Life Insurance (GLI) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Public Schools

Year ended June 30,* 2018 2019 2020
Non- Non- Non-
Professional Professional Professional Professional Professional Professional

Employer's proportion of the net OPEB - GLI liability 0.37116% 0.02951% 0.36332% 0.02817% 0.37153% 0.02987%
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability $ 5,585,000 $ 444000 $ 5,518,000 $ 428,000 $ 6,045,782  $ 486,064
Employer's covered payroll $ 67,052,585 $ 5,000,257 % 67,353,977 $ 4,802,484 $ 72,572,692 $ 5,844,231
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - GLI liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 8.33% 8.88% 8.19% 8.91% 8.33% 8.32%
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB - GLI liability 48.86% 48.86% 51.22% 51.22% 52.00% 52.00%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia

Schedule of Employer OPEB - Group Life Insurance Contributions (1)

Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Exhibit 13

[Primary Government - Governmental Activities - County employees

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 210,472 $ 212,091 $ (1,619) $ 40,475,381 0.52%
2019 211,694 213,323 (1,629) 40,710,451 0.52%
2020 210,151 211,767 (1,616) 40,413,598 0.52%
[Component Unit - James City Service Authority employees
Contributions in
relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 21,999 $ 22,168 $ (169) $ 4,230,543 0.52%
2019 23,118 21,000 2,118 4,445,820 0.47%
2020 23,131 24,492 (1,361) 4,673,979 0.52%
[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - non-professional
Contributions in
relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 25,165 $ 25,165 $ - $ 4,802,484 0.52%
2019 30,390 30,390 - 5,844,231 0.52%
2020 31,977 31,977 - 6,149,423 0.52%
[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - professional
Contributions in
relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 352,935 $ 352,935 $ - $ 67,353,977 0.52%
2019 377,378 377,378 - 72,572,693 0.52%
2020 397,775 397,775 - 76,495,192 0.52%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and
additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 14
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer OPEB - Health Insurance Credit Program Contributions (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

[Primary Government - Governmental Activities - County employees

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 76,903 $ 67,836 $ 9,067 $ 40,475,381 0.19%
2019 77,350 74,871 2,479 40,710,451 0.21%
2020 76,786 74,360 2,426 40,413,598 0.21%

[Component Unit - James City Service Authority employees

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 8,461 $ 8,467 $ ®) $ 4,230,543 0.20%
2019 8,002 8,467 (465) 4,445,820 0.19%
2020 8,413 8,413 - 4,673,979 0.18%

[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - non-professional

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 11,165 $ 11,165 $ - $ 4,854,348 0.23%
2019 9,226 9,226 - 5,766,438 0.16%
2020 9,712 9,712 - 6,070,000 0.16%

[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - professional

Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 851,814 $ 851,814 $ - $ 69,253,171 1.23%
2019 864,798 864,798 - 72,066,466 1.20%
2020 905,688 905,688 - 75,474,000 1.20%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and
additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.

95



Exhibit 15

County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB - Health Insurance Credit Program (HIC) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Component Unit - Public Schools' Professional

Year ended June 30,* 2018 2019 2020
Employer's proportion of the net OPEB - HIC liability 0.86281% 0.85004% 0.86297%
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - HIC liability $ 10,946,000 $ 10,793,000 $ 11,297,117
Employer's covered payroll $ 67,052,585 $ 69,253,171 $ 72,066,466
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - HIC liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 16.32% 15.58% 15.68%
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB - HIC liability 7.04% 8.08% 8.97%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years will be presented as the

information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer's Share of Net OPEB - Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP) Liability (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

Year ended June 30,* 2018

2019

Exhibit 16

2020

Public Schoaols’
Professional

Public Schoaols’
Non-Professional

Public Schoals'

Professional

Public Schoaols'
Non-Professional

Public Schoaols'
Professional

Public Schoaols'
Non-Professional

Employer's proportion of the net OPEB - VLDP liability 3.31886%
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - VLDP liability $ 20,000
Employer's covered payroll $ 67,052,585
Employer's proportionate share of the net OPEB - VLDP liability

as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.03%
Plan fiduciary net position as a % of total OPEB - VLDP liability 31.96%

*

0.75284%
4,000
5,000,257

0.08%
38.40%

$
$

3.37801%
25,000
12,595,806

0.20%
46.18%

@

0.67880%
5,000
1,648,333

0.30%
51.22%

3.28952%
$ 19,124
$ 15,633,273

0.12%
74.12%

0.68330%
$ 13,843
$ 2,093,665
0.66%
49.19%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

* The amounts presented have a measurement date of the previous fiscal year end.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit 17
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Employer OPEB - Virginia Local Disability Program Contributions (1)
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - non-professional
Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 9,890 $ 9,890 $ - $ 1,648,333 0.60%
2019 15,074 15,074 - 2,093,665 0.72%
2020 17,451 17,451 - 2,423,750 0.72%

[Component Unit - Public Schools’ - professional
Contributions in

relation to Contributions
Contractually contractually Contribution Employer's as a % of
Fiscal required required deficiency covered covered
Year contribution contribution (excess) payroll payroll
2018 $ 39,047 $ 39,047 $ - $ 12,595,806 0.31%
2019 64,096 64,096 - 15,633,273 0.41%
2020 76,043 76,043 - 18,547,073 0.41%

(1) This schedule is intended to present 10 years of information. GASB 75 was implemented in fiscal year 2018, and
additional years will be presented as the information becomes available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information and independent auditor's report.
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1)

2)

3)

County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2020

Budgeting and Budgetary Accounting

The following procedures are used by the County in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

Prior to April 1, the County Administrator submits to the Board of Supervisors a proposed operating and capital
budget for the fiscal year commencing the following July 1. The operating budget and capital budget include
proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. Public hearings are then conducted to obtain citizen
comments.

Prior to June 30, the budget is legally enacted through passage of an Appropriations Resolution. The
Appropriations Resolution places legal restrictions on expenditures at the fund and function level. The
appropriation for each fund and function can be revised only by the Board of Supervisors; however, the County
Administrator may amend the budget within functions. Supplemental appropriations in addition to the
appropriated budget were necessary during the year.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for those funds with
legally adopted annual budgets which are the General Fund, Special Revenue Fund - Virginia Public
Assistance, and Debt Service Fund, and these funds are integrated only at the level of legal adoption. Program
and project budgets are utilized in the Capital Projects; Community Development; and Grants and Special
Projects Funds where appropriations remain open and carry over to the succeeding years.

All budgets are adopted on the modified accrual basis of accounting. All appropriations lapse on June 30 for all
County funds, except the funds referenced above. All budget data presented in the accompanying basic
financial statements represents the appropriated budget as of June 30, 2020, as adopted and amended by
supplemental appropriations.

Pensions - Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the system benefit provisions since the prior actuarial
valuation.

Pensions, OPEB Health Insurance Credit and VLDP Political Subdivision Plan - Changes of
Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

All Others (Non-Largest 10) — Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final retirement age from
70t0 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and service year through 9
years of service (at each year age and service - VLDP only)

Disability Rates Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale No change

Line of Duty Disability Increased rate from 14% to 15%
Discount Rate Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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County of James City, Virginia

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

3) Pensions, OPEB Health
Assumptions, Continued

June 30, 2020

Insurance Credit and VLDP Political Subdivision Plan - Changes of

All Others (Non-Largest 10) — Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each age and service year through 9
years of service

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Decreased rate from 60% to 45%

Discount Rate

Decreased rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

4)

OPEB Group Life Insurance - Changes of Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions
as a result of the experience study are as follows:

General State Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9
years of service

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 14% to 25%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Teachers:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered rates at older ages and changed final retirement age from 70 to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9
years of service

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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County of James City, Virginia

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

June 30, 2020

4) OPEB Group Life Insurance - Changes of Assumptions, Continued

SPORS Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020 and
reduced margin for future improvement in accordance with experience

Retirement Rates

Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 60% to 85%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

VaLORS Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020 and
reduced margin for future improvement in accordance with experience

Retirement Rates

Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9
years of service

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Decreased rate from 50% to 35%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

JRS Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Decreased rates at first retirement eligibility

Withdrawal Rates No change
Disability Rates Removed disability rates
Salary Scale No change

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Largest 10 Locality Employers — General Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final retirement age from
70to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each age and service
year

Disability Rates

Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 14% to 20%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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County of James City, Virginia

Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)

June 30, 2020

4) OPEB Group Life Insurance - Changes of Assumptions, Continued

Non-Largest 10 Locality Employers

— General Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended final retirement age from
70to 75

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each age and service
year

Disability Rates

Lowered disability rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 14% to 15%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Largest 10 Locality Employers — Hazardous Duty Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Lowered retirement rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each age and senice
year

Disability Rates

Increased disability rates

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Increased rate from 60% to 70%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

Non-Largest 10 Locality Employers

— Hazardous Duty Employees:

Mortality Rates (Pre-retirement, post-
retirement healthy, and disabled)

Updated to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

Retirement Rates

Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages

Withdrawal Rates

Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience at each age and senice
year

Disability Rates

Adjusted rates to better match experience

Salary Scale

No change

Line of Duty Disability

Decreased rate from 60% to 45%

Discount Rate

Decrease rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

5)
The County, Authority, and Public

OPEB Retiree Healthcare - Trust Arrangement and Funding Policy

Schools do not intend to establish a trust to pre-fund the obligation. The

anticipated growth in the net OPEB liability is based on contributions to the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go

cost basis.
6)

OPEB Retiree Healthcare - Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the benefit provisions since the prior actuarial valuation.

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
June 30, 2020
7) OPEB Retiree Healthcare - Changes of Assumptions
The following change in actuarial assumptions were made based on the most recent actuarial valuation:

Measurement Date  Discount Rate

June 30, 2016 2.85%
June 30, 2017 3.58%
June 30, 2018 3.62%
June 30, 2019 3.13%

8) OPEB Group Life Insurance - Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the VRS benefit provisions since the prior actuarial
valuation.

9) OPEB Health Insurance Credit - Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the VRS benefit provisions since the prior actuarial
valuation.

10) OPEB Virginia Local Disability Program — Changes of Benefit Terms

There have been no actuarially material changes to the VRS benefit provisions since the prior actuarial
valuation.

11) OPEB Teacher Virginia Local Disability Program — Changes of Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018, valuation were based on the results of an actuarial
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012, through June 30, 2016, except the change in the discount
rate, which was based on VRS Board action effective as of July 1, 2019. Changes to the actuarial assumptions
as a result of the experience study and VRS Board action are as follows:

Teachers:

- Update mortality rates to a more current mortality table — RP-2014 projected to 2020

- Lowered retirement rates at older ages and changed final retirement from 70 to 75

- Adjusted withdrawal rates to better fit experience at each year age and service through 9 years of service
- Adjusted disability rates to better match experience

- Decrease discount rate from 7.00% to 6.75%

- No change in salary scale

See accompanying independent auditors’ report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Debt Service Fund

Debt Service Fund - accounts for the accumulation of resources for and the payment of principal, interest and
related costs on long-term debt of governmental funds.
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Exhibit A
County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual
Debt Service Fund
Year ended June 30, 2020

Variance
Original Final positive
Budget Budget Actual (negative)
Revenues:
Use of money and property $ - $ - $ 60,414 $ 60,414
Miscellaneous 42,500 42,500 39,929 (2,571)
Total revenues 42,500 42,500 100,343 57,843
Expenditures:
Community development 75,000 75,000 44,139 30,861
Debt service:

Principal 14,282,841 14,282,841 14,282,841 -

Interest and other fiscal charges 5,447,805 5,447,805 5,447,279 526
Total expenditures 19,805,646 19,805,646 19,774,259 31,387
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures (19,763,146) (19,763,146) (19,673,916) 89,230

Other financing sources:

Transfers in 20,500,000 20,500,000 19,673,916 826,084
Total other financing sources 20,500,000 20,500,000 19,673,916 826,084
Deficiency of revenues and other sources

under expenditures 736,854 736,854 - (736,854)
Fund balance, beginning of year (736,854) (736,854) - 736,854
Fund balance, end of year $ - $ - $ - $ -

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
The County reports the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Virginia Public Assistance Fund - accounts for funds received from the federal and state governments and
transfers from the General Fund that are utilized for Social Service programs.

Colonial Community Corrections Fund - accounts for the revenues and expenditures under the Virginia
Community Corrections Act for providing the judicial system with sentencing alternatives for certain
nonviolent offenders requiring less than institutional custody, but more than probation supervision.

Community Development Fund - accounts for the revenues that are utilized to improve targeted areas
within the County.

Donation Trust Fund - accounts for monies and donations held to celebrate historical events and various
special purposes.

Tourism Fund - accounts for revenues and expenditures that provide for tourism initiatives.

Grants and Special Projects Fund - accounts for monies held for use for grants and special projects.
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Exhibit B-1
County of James City, Virginia
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
June 30, 2020

Virginia Colonial Housing &
Public Community Neighborhood Donation Grants and
Assistance Corrections Development Trust Tourism Special
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Total
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents and investments $ 1,482,361 $ 369,141 $ 2,003,065 $ 396,973 $ 514,439 $ 6,110,194 $ 10,876,173
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted - - 850,694 - - 481,082 1,331,776
Taxes receivable - - - - 35,198 - 35,198
Loans receivable, net - - 525,804 - - - 525,804
Miscellaneous receivables - - 3,528 - 75,000 - 78,528
Due from other funds - - - - - 769,827 769,827
Due from other governments 347,816 - 63,632 - - 732,959 1,144,407
Total assets $ 1,830,177 $ 369,141 $ 3,446,723 $ 396,973 $ 624,637 $ 8,094,062 $ 14,761,713
Liabilities
Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 14,785 $ 6,103 $ 4,741 $ - $ 21,061 $ 246,428 $ 293,118
Accrued liabilities 12,608 743 - - - 2,606 15,957
Payables from restricted assets - - 41,220 - - - 41,220
Due to component unit - - - - - 121,838 121,838
Unearned revenue - - 22,420 - - 116,672 139,092
Total liabilities 27,393 6,846 68,381 - 21,061 487,544 611,225
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grants - - - - - 456,134 456,134
Fund Balances
Fund balances:
Restricted - - 838,151 - - 481,082 1,319,233
Assigned 1,802,784 362,295 2,540,191 396,973 603,576 6,669,302 12,375,121
Total fund balances 1,802,784 362,295 3,378,342 396,973 603,576 7,150,384 13,694,354
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances $ 1,830,177 $ 369,141 $ 3,446,723 $ 396,973 $ 624,637 $ 8,094,062 $ 14,761,713

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit B-2

Virginia Colonial Housing &
Public Community Neighborhood Donation Grants and
Assistance Corrections Development Trust Tourism Special
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Projects Fund Total
Revenues:
Other local taxes $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 610,363 $ - $ 610,363
Miscellaneous 22,921 33,857 254,651 146,889 - 2,000 460,318
Intergovernmental:
Local - 196,593 - - - 370,006 566,599
Commonwealth 1,105,398 811,626 322,185 - - 1,556,066 3,795,275
Federal 2,625,926 - 1,396,799 - - 6,955,252 10,977,977
Total revenues 3,754,245 1,042,076 1,973,635 146,889 610,363 8,883,324 16,410,532
Expenditures:
Current:
General government administration - - - 172 - 1,192,578 1,192,750
Judicial administration - 1,081,286 - 57,473 - 360,398 1,499,157
Public safety - - - 17,676 - 4,192,216 4,209,892
Public works - - - - - 16,998 16,998
Health and human services 5,092,989 - - - - 1,819,232 6,912,221
Education - - - - - 1,749,959 1,749,959
Parks, recreation and cultural - - - 5,144 - 2,400 7,544
Community development - - 2,256,680 1,098 1,371,202 57,650 3,686,630
Total expenditures 5,092,989 1,081,286 2,256,680 81,563 1,371,202 9,391,431 19,275,151
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (1,338,744) (39,210) (283,045) 65,326 (760,839) (508,107) (2,864,619)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 1,354,179 110,583 647,364 - 1,455,878 2,980,375 6,548,379
Transfers out - - - - (783,888) - (783,888)
Total other financing sources (uses) 1,354,179 110,583 647,364 - 671,990 2,980,375 5,764,491
Net change in fund balances 15,435 71,373 364,319 65,326 (88,849) 2,472,268 2,899,872
Fund balances, beginning of year 1,787,349 290,922 3,014,023 331,647 692,425 4,678,116 10,794,482
Fund balances, end of year $ 1,802,784 $ 362,295 $ 3,378,342 $ 396,973 $ 603,576 $ 7,150,384 $ 13,694,354

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia

Exhibit B-3

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance — Budget and Actual

Revenues:
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental:
Commonwealth
Federal
Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:
Health and human services

Deficiency of revenues under expenditures

Other financing sources:
Operating transfers in
Total other financing sources:

Virginia Public Assistance Fund
Year ended June 30, 2020

Deficiency of revenues and other sources

under expenditures
Fund balance, beginning of year
Fund balance, end of year

Variance
Original Revised positive
Budget Budget Actual (negative)
$ - $ 21,890 22,921 $ (1,031)
- - 1,105,398 1,105,398
3,924,885 4,032,031 2,625,926 (1,406,105)
3,924,885 4,053,921 3,754,245 (301,738)
5,768,360 5,897,396 5,092,989 804,407
(1,843,475) (1,843,475) (1,338,744) 804,407
1,354,179 1,354,179 1,354,179 -
1,354,179 1,354,179 1,354,179 1,005,338
(489,296) (489,296) 15,435 (504,731)
489,296 489,296 1,787,349 (1,298,053)
$ - $ - 1,802,784 $ (1,802,784)

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Agency Funds

Agency funds account for money received and held by the County in the capacity of fiscal agent for individuals,
other governmental agencies and private organizations.
The County reports the following Agency funds:

Special Welfare - accounts for the transfer of funds provided by the Virginia Public Assistance Fund for aid
to dependent children.

WAMAC - accounts for the fiscal agent funds held for the Williamsburg Area Medical Assistance
Corporation.

Regional Jail - accounts for the fiscal agency funds held for the Virginia Peninsula Regional Jail Authority.

Juvenile Detention - accounts for fiscal agency funds held for the Middle Peninsula Juvenile Detention
Commission.

Williamsburg Area Transit - accounts for the fiscal agency funds held for the Williamsburg Area Transit
Authority.
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Assets
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

County of James City, Virginia
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Agency Funds
June 30, 2020

Exhibit C-1

Williamsburg
Area
Special Regional Juvenile Transit
Welfare WAMAC Jail Detention Authority Total

$ 749 $ 466,296 4,688,064 2,528,524 $ 1,933,934 9,617,567
- 4,642,405 - 289,485 - 4,931,890
- 207,435 688,886 12,309 1,016,961 1,925,591
$ 749 $ 5,316,136 5,376,950 2,830,318 $ 2,950,895 16,475,048
$ - $ 441,118 2,992,802 1,888,263 $ 497,228 5,819,411
749 4,875,018 2,384,148 942,055 2,453,667 10,655,637
$ 749 $ 5,316,136 5,376,950 2,830,318 $ 2,950,895 16,475,048

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Agency Funds

Year ended June 30, 2020

Special Welfare Fund:
Assets:
Cash
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities
Williamsburg Area Medical Assistance Corporation Fund:
Assets:
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities
Regional Jail Fund:
Assets:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash and investments
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities
Juvenile Detention Fund:
Assets:
Cash and investments
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities
Williamsburg Area Transit Authority Fund:
Assets:
Cash and investments
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

Total:
Assets:
Cash, cash equivalents and investments
Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments
Accounts receivable and due from other governmental units
Total assets
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Amounts held for others
Total liabilities

Exhibit C-2

Balance Balance
July 1, 2019 Additions Reductions June 30, 2020
$ 1,806 $ 6,514 $ 7,571 $ 749
$ - $ 150 $ 150 -
1,806 6,514 7,571 749
$ 1,806 $ 6,664 $ 7,721 $ 749
$ 75,684 $ 3,466,095 $ 3,075,483 $ 466,296
4,695,253 1,494,835 1,547,683 4,642,405
211,025 298,982 302,572 207,435
$ 4,981,962 $ 5,259,912 $ 4,925,738 $ 5,316,136
$ 341,299 $ 2,933,044 $ 2,833,225 $ 441,118
4,640,663 4,966,839 4,732,484 4,875,018
$ 4,981,962 $ 7,899,883 $ 7,565,709 $ 5,316,136
$ 3,766,966 $ 12,551,926 $ 11,630,828 $ 4,688,064
650,371 8,574,551 8,536,036 688,886
$ 4,417,337 $ 21,126,477 $ 20,166,864 $ 5,376,950
$ 3,144,346 $ 616,460 $ 768,004 $ 2,992,802
1,272,991 17,303,668 16,192,511 2,384,148
$ 4,417,337 $ 17,920,128 $ 16,960,515 $ 5,376,950
$ 2,020,108 $ 6,254,308 $ 5,745,892 $ 2,528,524
- $ 1,031,919 742,434 289,485
65,912 3,597,952 3,651,555 12,309
$ 2,086,020 $ 10,884,179 $ 10,139,881 $ 2,830,318
$ 313,031 $ 1,741,034 $ 165,802 $ 1,888,263
1,772,989 12,127,074 12,958,008 942,055
$ 2,086,020 $ 13,868,108 $ 13,123,810 $ 2,830,318
$ 1,614,162 $ 11,481,791 $ 11,162,019 $ 1,933,934
3,891,162 4,575,597 7,449,798 1,016,961
$ 5,505,324 $ 16,057,388 $ 18,611,817 $ 2,950,895
$ 3,321,666 $ 252,526 $ 3,076,964 $ 497,228
2,183,658 30,366,732 30,096,723 2,453,667
$ 5,505,324 $ 30,619,258 $ 33,173,687 $ 2,950,895
$ 7,478,726 $ 33,760,634 $ 31,621,793 $ 9,617,567
4,695,253 1,494,835 1,547,683 4,931,890
4,818,470 17,047,082 19,939,961 1,925,591
$ 16,992,449 $ 52,302,551 $ 53,109,437 $ 16,475,048
$ 7,120,342 $ 5,543,214 $ 6,844,145 $ 5,819,411
9,872,107 64,770,827 63,987,297 10,655,637
$ 16,992,449 $ 70,314,041 $ 70,831,442 $ 16,475,048

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Discretely Presented Component Units
The County reports the following discretely presented component units:

Public Schools - responsible for educating the school-age population of the City of Williamsburg, Virginia
and the County.

Economic Development Authority - promote industrial and commercial development in the County.

James City Service Authority - provide water and sewer services inside the primary service area of the
County.
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Cash and temporary investments

Receivables

Due from fiduciary funds

Due from federal government

Due from Commonwealth of Virginia
Due from the City of Williamsburg and

Assets

James City County

Inventory

Total assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll

Accrued benefits

Due to the City of Williamsburg and

James City County
Unearned revenue
Total liabilities

Deferred Inflow of Resources
Unavailable revenue - grants

Fund balances:

Nonspendable - inventory

Restricted
Committed
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

County of James City, Virginia
Balance Sheet

June 30, 2020

Discretely Presented Component Unit — Public Schools — Governmental Funds

Exhibit D-1

Adjustments for the statement of net position:

Schools’ Total
food Capital governmental
General Grants services projects funds

$ 18,304,342 $ 435,980 $ 774,500 $ 449,340 $ 19,964,162
11,543 5,000 1,169 - 17,712
225,919 - - - 225,919
- 1,530,143 81,391 - 1,611,534
9,656 497,255 - - 506,911
2,275,312 - - 316,507 2,591,819
- - 75,671 - 75,671
$ 20,826,772 $ 2,468,378 $ 932,731 $ 765,847 $ 24,993,728
$ 951,806 $ 13,161 $ 17,565 $ 316,507 $ 1,299,039
7,625,305 313,532 163,950 - 8,102,787
5,937,150 238,488 119,356 - 6,294,994
6,112,511 - - - 6,112,511
- 1,774,017 - - 1,774,017
20,626,772 2,339,198 300,871 316,507 23,583,348
- - 75,671 - 75,671
- 129,180 556,189 - 685,369
- - - 449,340 449,340
200,000 - - - 200,000
200,000 129,180 631,860 449,340 1,410,380

$ 20,826,772 $ 2,468,378 $ 932,731 $ 765,847

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and therefore are not reported in
57,453,293

the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds.

Compensated absences

Net OPEB asset and liabilities and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources
Net pension asset and liabilities and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources

Net position of governmental activities

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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(1,357,465)
(21,843,583)

(99,315,945)

(122,516,993)

$ (63,653,320



Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
From City of Williamsburg and James City County
From Commonwealth of Virginia
From federal government
Total intergovernmental
Charges for services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total revenues
Expenditures:
General and administrative
Instruction
Attendance and health services
Pupil transportation
Operations and maintenance
Technology
Food services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures
Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning of year

Fund balances, end of year

See accompanying independent auditor's report.

County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Public Schools — Governmental Funds

Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit D-2

Schools’ Total
food Capital governmental

General Grants services projects funds
$ 101,324,333 $ - $ - $ 1,916,951 $ 103,241,284
35,278,453 933,950 60,501 - 36,272,904
164,881 3,963,395 2,160,661 - 6,288,937
136,767,667 4,897,345 2,221,162 1,916,951 145,803,125
310,511 - 1,406,287 - 1,716,798
113,932 - 26,177 - 140,109
187,980 748,382 - - 936,362
137,380,090 5,645,727 3,653,626 1,916,951 148,596,394
3,397,369 - - - 3,397,369
101,295,788 4,375,460 - - 105,671,248
4,692,447 628,457 - - 5,320,904
7,069,877 - - - 7,069,877
11,638,080 36,016 - - 11,674,096
8,543,088 483,166 - - 9,026,254
- 71,329 3,947,648 - 4,018,977
743,441 8,787 - 1,916,951 2,669,179
137,380,090 5,603,215 3,947,648 1,916,951 148,847,904
- 42,512 (294,022) - (251,510)
- 42,512 (294,022) - (251,510)
200,000 86,668 925,882 449,340 1,661,890
$ 200,000 $ 129,180 $ 631,860 $ 449,340 $ 1,410,380
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County of James City, Virginia

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Public Schools — Governmental Funds

Net change in fund balances

Adjustments for the statement of activities:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental activities report
depreciation expense to allocate those expenditures over the life of the assets. This is the

Year ended June 30, 2020

amount by which new capital assets exceeded depreciation expense in the current period:

Capital outlay
Depreciation expense

Expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial

resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.
Change in compensated absences liability
Change in net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources
Change in net pension liability and related deferred inflows and outflows of resources

Change in net position

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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2,669,179

(4,210,472)

(282,427)
(168,173)
(334,474)

Exhibit D-2

$ (251,510)

$  (1,541,293)

(785,074)
$ 2,577,879



Exhibit D-3
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Public Schools — Fiduciary Funds
Year ended June 30, 2020

Custodial
Funds
Assets:
Cash and temporary investments $ 1,335,753
Receivables:
Commonwealth of Virginia 295,012
Total assets $ 1,630,765
Liabilities:
Accrued payroll $ 38,481
Accrued benefits 30,611
Due to General Fund 225,919
Total liabilities $ 295,012
Net Position:
Restricted for:
Students 1,335,753
Total net position & liabilities $ 1,630,765

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Exhibit D-4

Discretely Presented Component Unit — Public Schools — Fiduciary Funds

Year ended June 30, 2020

Additions:
Commonwealth of Virginia
Miscellaneous
Total additions:

Deductions:

Purchases on behalf of students

Instruction

Technology

Total deductions:
Net increase in fiduciary net position

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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Custodial
Funds

1,098,226
1,752,862

$ 2,851,088

1,747,105
1,083,483
14,743

2,845,331

5,757
1,329,996

1,335,753



Exhibit D-5
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
June 30, 2020

Assets
Current assets:

Cash and short-term investments (note 2) $ 584,397
Due from James City County (note 7) 53,339
Rent receivable 26,531
Accounts receivable 2,973
Bond fee receivable 360
Total current assets 667,600
Notes receivable, net allowance 20,638

Capital assets (note 6):
Nondepreciable 911,505
Depreciable, net 642,771
Capital assets, net 1,554,276
Total assets $ 2,242,514

Liabilities and Net Position
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable $ 53,339
Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 1,554,276

Unrestricted 634,899

Total net position 2,189,175

Total liabilities and net position $ 2,242,514

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit D-6
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
Year ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:

Lease income $ 104,601
Bond fees 17,216
Intergovernmental - County contribution (note 17) 5,223

Total operating revenues 127,040

Operating expenses:

Community development 52,730
Depreciation 25,384
Professional fees 16,638
Promotion 10,221
Rent abatement 5,305
Other 19
Total operating expenses 110,297
Operating income 16,743
Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest income 4,219
Loss on disposal of capital assets (113,149)
Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (108,930)
Change in net position (92,187)
Net position, beginning of year 2,281,362
Net position, end of year $ 2,189,175

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit D-7
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Economic Development Authority
Year ended June 30, 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from County and customers $ 107,664
Payments to suppliers (82,533)
Net cash provided by operating activities 25,131

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 214,007

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received 4,219
Net increase in cash and short-term investments 243,357

Cash and short-term investments, beginning of year 341,040
Cash and short-term investments, end of year $ 584,397

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 16,743
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 25,384

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Due from James City County (5,223)
Rent receivable (26,531)
Bond fee receivable 230
Accounts receivable 7,786
Notes receivable 4,362
Accounts payable 2,380
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 25,131

See accompanying independent auditor's report.
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Exhibit D-8
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Service Authority
June 30, 2020

James City
Service
Authority
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (note 2) $ 3,088,624
Investments (note 2) 49,828,908
Restricted investments (note 2) 9,401,879
Accounts receivable, customers 2,412,576
Accounts receivable, other 1,044
Notes receivable 1,090
Interest receivable 293,410
Inventories 1,109,615
Total current assets 66,137,146
Capital assets, net (note 6):
Non-depreciable 6,111,331
Depreciable 146,471,081
Net capital assets 152,582,412
Total assets 218,719,558
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Deferred charge on refunding, net 1,510,736
Deferred pensions (note 11) 815,631
Deferred OPEB group life insurance (note 12) 77,029
Deferred OPEB health insurance credit (note 12) 11,901
Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare (note 12) 13,062
Total deferred outflows of resources 2,428,359
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources $ 221,147,917
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 428,901
Accrued salaries 23,170
Compensated absences, current portion (note 9) 356,429
Due to James City County (note 7) 494,045
Deposits 830,721
Interest payable 328,979
Bonds payable, current portion (note 9) 1,337,907
Total current liabilities 3,800,152
Noncurrent liabilities:
Advances for construction (note 16) 32,902
Other post-employment benefits (OPEB) (note 12) 805,084
Compensated absences, net of current portion (note 9) 118,811
Bonds payable, net of current portion (note 9) 28,984,574
Net pension liability (note 11) 1,265,328
Total noncurrent liabilities 31,206,699
Total liabilities 35,006,851
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Deferred pensions (note 11) 262,425
Deferred OPEB retiree healthcare (note 12) 76,605
Deferred OPEB group life insurance (note 12) 25,058
Deferred OPEB health insurance credit (note 12) 12,267
Total deferred inflows of resources 376,355
Net Position
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 132,512,264
Restricted for:
Capital projects 8,741,597
Debt service 660,282
Unrestricted 43,850,568
Total net position 185,764,711
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position $ 221,147,917

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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County of James City, Virginia

Exhibit D-9

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Service Authority

Year ended June 30, 2020

Operating revenues:
Water and sewer services
Water supply proffers
Rental income
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Operating supplies
Maintenance
Utilities
Contractual fees
Other
Total operating expenses
Operating income before depreciation and amortization
Depreciation and amortization

Operating loss

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Facility charges
Investment income
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues, net

Income before capital contributions

Capital contributions

Change in net position
Net position, beginning of year
Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.
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James City
Service
Authority

$ 17,692,654
220,804
127,656
136,437

18,177,551

5,093,032
2,075,905
1,229,827
1,735,381
919,745
991,478
319,050

12,364,418

5,813,133
8,115,624

(2,302,491)

2,386,850
2,033,417
17,813

(854,412)

3,583,668

1,281,177
17,325

1,298,502
184,466,209

$ 185,764,711




Exhibit D-10
County of James City, Virginia
Statement of Cash Flows
Discretely Presented Component Unit — Service Authority
Year ended June 30, 2020

James City
Service
Authority
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash receipts from customers $ 19,133,397
Other cash receipts 550,662
Cash payments to suppliers of goods and services (6,534,379)
Cash payments for personnel services (7,005,405)
Facility charges 2,386,850
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,531,125
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Repayments of debt (655,000)
Interest paid (702,050)
Proceeds from bond issuance 9,135,000
Bond issuance costs (131,975)
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (6,020,651)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 37,171
Net cash provided by capital and related financing activities 1,662,495
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of investments (29,239,804)
Proceeds from sales of investments 27,346,986
Interest received 2,030,886
Net cash used in investing activities 138,068
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 10,331,688
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year (including $569,708 in
restricted accounts at June 30, 2019) 2,158,815
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year (including $9,401,879 in restricted
accounts at June 30, 2020) $ 12,490,503

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:
Operating loss $ (2,302,491)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization 8,115,624
Facility charges 2,386,850
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable, customers 1,224,453
Accounts receivable, others 65,765
Inventories (193,860)
Accounts payable (643,017)
Accrued salaries 10,920
Compensated absences 58,743
Due to James City County (502,021)
Deposits 216,290
Net OPEB liability and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources (14,884)
Net pension liability and related deferred inflows/outflows of resources 108,753
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 8,531,125

Supplemental schedule — noncash capital and investing activities:
Capital asset contributions $ 17,325

Unrealized loss from change in fair value of investments
See accompanying notes to basic financials statements.

1

580,156
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County of James City, Virginia
Statistical Section Overview

This part of the James City County’s comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a
context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures and required
supplementary information says about the County’s overall financial health.

Financial Trends Tables1-4
These tables contain trend information to help the reader understand how the County’s financial performance and
well-being has changed over time.

Revenue Capacity Tables 5-9
These tables contain information to help the reader assess the factors affecting the County’s ability to generate its
property taxes.

Debt Capacity Tables 10 - 12
These tables present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the County's current levels of
outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional debt in the future.

Demographic & Economic Information Tables 13- 14
These tables offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment within
which the County’s financial activities take place and to help make comparisons over time and with other
governments.

Operation Information Tables 15- 18

These tables contain information about the County’s operations and resources to help the reader understand how
the County’s financial information relates to the services the County provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual
financial report for the relevant year.
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Governmental activities:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net position
Business-type activity (1):
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt service
Unrestricted
Total business-type activity net position
Primary government:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted:
Capital projects
Debt Service
Other purposes
Unrestricted
Total primary government net position

County of James City, Virginia
Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 1

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 46,961,066 $ 133,812,951 $ 128,851,392 $ 142,867,725 $ 159,469,360 $ 176,303,250 $ 185,274,286 $ 198,539,384 $ 210,357,610 $ 223,523,519
20,005,183 21,226,338 35,010,428 8,320,449 1,551,387 - - - -
- - - - - 1,222,336 1,226,566 1,236,338 4,536,503 2,030,253
- - - - - 1,899,944 3,067,921 4,940,612 1,043,098 1,319,233
134,831,315 55,343,408 52,396,401 50,095,897 51,222,452 52,962,121 63,841,474 70,378,940 82,578,292 96,534,809

$ 201,797,564

$ 210,382,697

$ 216,258,221

$ 201,284,071

$ 212,243,199

$ 232,387,651

$ 253,410,247

$ 275,095,274

$ 298,515,503

$ 323,407,814

$ 135,641,623

4,740,769

34,057,874

$ 135,110,313

4,876,760

34,462,629

$ 139,966,206

2,620,384

30,189,025

$ 137,922,955

2,601,160

29,159,119

$ 137,173,064

2,716,277

32,903,518

$ 139,312,785

729,605
37,014,202

$ 136,696,744

677,614
41,443,900

$ 132,616,889

567,011
46,664,323

$ 134,359,937

569,708
49,536,564

$ 174,440,266

$ 174,449,702

$ 172,775,615

$ 169,683,234

$ 172,792,859

$ 177,056,592

$ 178,818,258

$ 179,848,223

$ 184,466,209

$ 182,602,689

24,745,952

168,889,189

$ 268,923,264

26,103,098

89,806,037

$ 268,817,598

37,630,812

82,585,426

$ 280,790,680

10,921,609

79,255,016

$ 296,642,424

4,267,664

84,125,970

$ 315,616,035

1,951,941
1,899,944
89,976,323

$ 321,971,030

1,904,180
3,067,921
105,285,374

$ 331,156,273

1,803,349
4,940,612
117,043,263

$ 344,717,547

5,106,211
1,043,098
132,114,856

$ 223,523,519

2,030,253
1,319,233
96,534,809

$ 376,237,830

$ 384,832,399

$ 389,033,836

$ 370,967,305

$ 385,036,058

$ 409,444,243

$ 432,228,505

$ 454,943,497

$ 482,981,712

$ 323,407,814

(1) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020, the James City Service Authority is reported as a
discretely presented component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.
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County of James City, Virginia
Government-Wide Expenses and Program Revenues by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 2

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Expenses:
Governmental activities:
General government administration $ 23,061,671 $ 17,103,421 $ 14,304,134 $ 9,249,487 $ 19,278,147 $ 8,807,519 $ 11,261,405 $ 8,768,221 $ 11,011,081 $ 15,165,784
Judicial administration 5,394,548 5,513,976 5,505,727 5,216,769 5,598,594 5,682,096 5,147,078 6,053,891 6,153,636 6,339,331
Public safety 15,003,864 23,768,668 27,750,476 25,964,996 23,996,973 30,842,789 30,313,710 32,036,916 34,180,592 34,366,944
Public works 7,332,972 6,119,246 7,963,622 7,244,367 6,985,073 7,986,260 9,161,360 7,258,365 9,128,572 9,918,359
Health and human services 7,582,994 7,042,619 6,785,380 6,671,151 7,013,325 7,368,295 7,742,508 7,883,242 8,482,617 9,523,747
Education 83,737,593 82,082,568 84,309,615 85,595,145 87,713,464 87,508,710 93,728,530 94,073,287 100,455,268 101,088,169
Parks, recreation, and cultural 8,980,597 8,744,156 8,536,371 10,897,006 9,386,351 10,650,141 11,779,541 12,346,131 12,909,059 12,629,914
Community development 9,467,357 14,832,661 11,139,632 10,676,484 10,692,736 12,787,069 11,905,882 10,627,626 9,481,249 9,095,405
Interest on long-term debt 9,853,465 9,384,810 9,522,081 8,822,326 7,787,361 5,869,933 5,386,316 4,905,534 5,647,370 3,919,485
Total governmental activities expenses 170,415,061 174,592,125 175,817,038 170,337,731 178,452,024 177,502,812 186,426,330 183,953,213 197,439,444 202,047,138
Business-type activities (2):
Service Authority 20,896,660 21,361,681 21,272,566 21,002,926 19,888,935 19,971,937 19,876,242 19,522,028 20,319,667
Total business-type expenses 20,896,660 21,361,681 21,272,566 21,002,926 21,002,926 19,971,937 19,876,242 19,522,028 20,319,667
Total primary government expenses $ 191,311,721 $ 195,953,806 $ 197,089,604 $ 191,340,657 $ 199,454,950 $ 197,474,749 $ 206,302,572 $ 203,475,241 $ 217,759,111 $ 202,047,138
Program revenues:
Governmental activities:
Charges for services:
General government administration $ 6,845,682 $ 7,246,961 $ 7,436,450 $ 7,758,238 $ 8,047,642 $ 7,547,746 $ 7,797,839 $ 7,973,771 $ 8,423,063 $ 7,864,966
Judicial administration 1,864,708 1,816,700 1,828,073 1,839,637 1,832,471 2,464,271 2,366,908 2,407,582 2,404,298 2,409,617
Public safety 2,874,239 3,172,589 3,463,159 3,330,101 3,455,177 3,558,411 3,281,957 2,964,057 2,875,855 2,854,882
Parks, recreation and cultural 2,494,536 2,527,532 2,708,063 2,854,489 3,109,047 3,563,791 3,667,720 3,694,635 3,734,663 2,844,953
Other 203,302 216,443 225,520 281,256 270,799 1,041,798 1,017,317 1,015,042 1,084,496 1,849,853
Total charges for services 14,282,467 14,980,225 15,661,265 16,063,721 16,715,136 18,176,017 18,131,741 18,055,087 18,522,375 17,824,271
Operating grants and contributions 32,049,993 33,019,242 31,354,415 30,572,383 31,767,861 32,181,074 32,903,768 32,980,663 33,465,872 41,795,253
Capital grants and contributions 434,823 2,035,365 1,312,352 1,286,856 346,627 269,439 196,051 828,415 1,125,513 180,635
Total governmental activities program revenues 46,767,283 50,034,832 48,328,032 47,922,960 48,829,624 50,626,530 51,231,560 51,864,165 53,113,760 59,800,159
Business-type activities (2):
Charges for services 16,443,520 14,883,627 15,871,187 16,131,430 16,452,120 16,018,375 19,064,677 19,523,972 19,248,136
Operating grants and contributions - - - - - - - - -
Capital grants and contributions 1,750,073 5,395,362 4,600,645 3,388,700 5,284,379 6,865,346 1,509,214 796,235 5,137,825
Total business-type activities program revenues 18,193,593 20,278,989 20,471,832 19,520,130 21,736,499 22,883,721 20,573,891 20,320,207 24,385,961
Total primary government program revenues $ 64,960,876 $ 70,313,821 $ 68,799,864 $ 67,443,090 $ 70,566,123 $ 73,510,251 $ 71,805,451 $ 72,184,372 $ 77,499,721 $ 59,800,159
Net (expense)/revenue:
Governmental activities $ (123,647,778) $ (124,557,293) $ (127,489,006) $ (122,414,771) $ (129,622,400) $ (126,876,282) $ (135,194,770) $ (132,089,048) $ (144,325,684) $ (142,246,979)
Business-type activities (2) (2,703,067) (1,082,692) (800,734) (1,482,796) 1,847,564 2,911,784 697,649 798,179 4,066,294
Total primary government net expense $ (126,350,845) _$ (125,639,985) _$ (128,289,740) _$ (123,897,567) _$ (127,774,836) _$ (123,964,498) _$ (134,497,121) _$ (131,290,869)  $ (140,259,390) _$ (142,246,979)
General revenues and other changes in net position:
Governmental activities:
Taxes:
Property taxes, levied for general purposes $ 109,545,003 $ 111,454,692 $ 110,351,991 $ 111,899,484 $ 113,359,672 $ 120,796,742 $ 128,334,481 $ 131,493,564 $ 134,846,403 $ 138,698,177
Other local taxes 19,100,086 20,006,069 21,208,061 21,435,046 22,771,626 24,027,667 24,555,363 24,442,882 29,324,049 25,981,646
Interest on investment earnings 442,698 395,001 330,514 339,358 232,388 263,745 402,544 382,080 795,865 966,252
Miscellaneous 1,201,369 1,286,664 1,473,964 1,875,485 4,217,842 1,932,580 2,924,978 3,065,493 2,779,596 1,493,215
Total governmental activities 130,289,156 133,142,426 133,364,530 135,549,373 140,581,528 147,020,734 156,217,366 159,384,019 167,745,913 167,139,290
Business-type activities (2):
Interest on investment earnings 509,675 351,929 (1,249,111) 267,061 248,207 519,767 90,148 43,940 1,904,327
Miscellaneous 521,384 740,199 375,758 520,504 1,013,854 832,182 973,869 726,432 495,207
Total business-type activities 1,031,059 1,092,128 (873,353) 787,565 1,262,061 1,351,949 1,064,017 770,372 2,399,534
Total primary government $ 131,320,215 $ 134,234,554 $ 132,491,177 $ 136,336,938 $ 141,843,589 $ 148,372,683 $ 157,281,383 $ 160,154,391 $ 170,145,447 $ 167,139,290
Change in net position:
Governmental activities $ 6,641,378 $ 8,585,133 $ 5,875,524 $ 13,134,602 $ 10,959,128 $ 20,144,452 $ 21,022,596 $ 27,294,971 $ 23,420,229 $ 24,892,311
Business-type activities (1,672,008) 9,436 (1,674,087) (695,231) 3,109,625 4,263,733 1,761,666 1,568,551 6,465,828
Total primary government $ 4,969,370 $ 8,594,569 $ 4,201,437 $ 12,439,371 $ 14,068,753 $ 24,408,185 $ 22,784,262 $ 28,863,522 $ 29,886,057 $ 24,892,311

(1) Reflects expenses from Exhibit 2.

(2) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020, the James City Service Authority is reported as a discretely presented

component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.

127



Table 3
County of James City, Virginia
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years (1)

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
General fund:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 298,757 $ 346,545 $ 361,682 $ 370,536 $ 340,709 $ 336,498 $ 332,335 $ 311,882 $ 252,792 $ 232,235
Prepaid items - - - - 2,111 - - - -
Assigned:
General 2,678,655 6,089,236 6,595,137 6,544,809 5,991,822 7,860,584 7,249,473 8,384,195 7,825,910 9,436,272
Capital reserve 16,045,435 15,766,115 11,583,529 8,118,950 4,968,111 5,414,938 6,001,542 6,963,412 7,116,956 7,853,810
Unassigned 20,449,054 21,674,594 22,345,746 23,099,410 23,360,679 24,681,548 28,339,753 30,119,197 31,693,639 42,058,054
Total general fund $ 39,471,901 $ 43,876,490 $ 40,886,094 $ 38,133,705 $ 34,663,432 $ 38,293,568 $ 41,923,103 $ 45,778,686 $ 46,889,297 $ 59,580,371
All other government funds:
Restricted - bond proceeds
held in escrow $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 1,236,338 $ 4,536,503 $ 2,030,253
Restricted - nonmajor
governmental funds $ 1,319,233
Committed:
Grants 741,113 962,702 128,700 240,900 69 - - - - -
Capital projects/reserve 25,150,586 21,226,338 35,010,428 8,320,449 1,551,387 28,907,491 13,781,490 - - -
Assigned:
Capital reserve - - - 14,466,602 16,178,748 18,699,213 26,115,707 26,401,040 29,732,523 31,263,804
Special revenue 3,372,795 4,132,137 4,993,071 4,505,717 4,957,409 6,111,183 7,233,419 10,523,259 9,761,066 12,375,121
Total all other
governmental funds $ 29,264,494 $ 26,321,177 $ 40,132,199 $ 27,533,668 $ 22,687,613 $ 53,717,887 $ 47,130,616 $ 38,160,637 $ 44,030,092 $ 46,988,411

(1) Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, which provides fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied
was adopted by the County as of July 1, 2010. Therefore, the fund balances for years 2009 through 2010 have been restated to reflect this standard.
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Revenues:

General property taxes
Other local taxes
Licenses, permits, and fees
Fines and forfeitures
Use of money and property
Charges for services
Miscellaneous
Intergovernmental

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Storm costs
General government administration
Judicial administration
Public works
Health and human services
Education
Parks, recreation, and cultural
Public safety
Community development
Nondepartmental
Debt service (2):

Principal

Interest

Bond issuance costs
Capital outlay (1)

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

(under) expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of debt
Premiums on bonds issued
Capital lease

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent

Total other financing sources
Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of noncapital

expenditures

2011

2012

County of James City, Virginia
Changes in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Table 4

2020

$ 108,564,306

$ 110,677,787

$ 109,112,196

$ 112,151,342

$ 112,542,078

$ 124,363,595

$ 128,094,252

$ 130,402,106

$ 134,744,837

$ 138,724,196

19,100,086 20,006,069 21,208,061 21,435,046 22,771,626 24,027,667 24,555,363 24,442,882 29,324,049 25,981,646
7,055,618 7,487,105 7,623,652 8,134,299 8,443,821 8,779,496 9,049,208 8,892,499 9,496,531 8,878,568
334,633 274,198 295,355 293,625 271,615 309,278 270,716 265,561 292,518 231,608
442,698 395,001 330,514 339,358 232,388 263,745 402,544 382,080 795,865 966,252
4,861,478 5,174,185 5,736,864 5,549,607 5,944,750 6,623,273 6,471,404 6,656,889 6,586,341 6,291,204
1,201,370 1,286,664 1,473,964 1,875,484 4,217,842 1,932,580 2,924,978 3,065,493 2,779,596 1,493,215
34,515,554 37,099,346 34,672,161 33,945,431 34,169,438 34,635,171 35,092,799 35,731,814 36,733,787 44,338,305
176,075,743 182,400,355 180,452,767 183,724,192 188,593,558 200,934,805 206,861,264 209,839,324 220,753,524 226,904,994
- 2,454,661 - - - - - - - -
8,265,513 8,669,692 9,399,885 9,643,858 9,432,889 9,678,060 9,770,250 10,086,403 11,651,426 12,905,240
5,311,684 5,254,489 5,250,974 5,514,609 5,599,728 5,463,744 5,870,569 5,856,353 5,908,750 5,954,875
7,241,872 6,493,573 7,606,884 7,353,940 6,976,533 27,878,252 28,443,672 28,728,800 31,127,333 31,102,285
7,582,994 7,042,619 6,785,380 7,061,327 7,193,841 7,082,202 7,833,811 7,635,751 8,235,686 8,652,838
73,830,796 74,280,245 75,931,599 77,496,482 79,610,865 7,234,052 7,350,896 7,584,697 8,259,078 9,383,160
9,180,161 9,163,941 9,075,083 9,899,159 9,858,887 79,825,974 84,299,207 85,395,004 91,070,061 92,286,710
23,792,805 24,915,821 26,555,114 26,764,383 27,475,307 9,872,451 10,293,611 10,394,095 10,896,838 10,751,418
10,289,898 9,873,740 10,914,977 10,958,279 10,769,064 10,353,844 11,827,600 9,959,810 10,451,529 9,682,050
(266,150) 1,265,803 966,806 721,744 525,433 1,183,538 - - - -
14,830,524 14,787,955 23,473,305 16,417,326 16,862,695 17,122,377 16,206,234 16,284,125 14,343,182 14,282,841
9,853,465 9,384,810 9,522,081 8,822,326 7,787,361 6,188,222 6,841,056 6,195,080 5,848,486 5,447,279
20,003 - 253,624 - 112,863 1,173,546 - - 380,771 -
30,042,723 15,023,734 12,586,344 18,421,679 13,424,741 12,647,985 25,818,138 26,833,602 26,793,328 11,824,193
199,976,288 188,611,083 198,322,056 199,075,112 195,630,207 195,704,247 214,555,044 214,953,720 224,966,468 212,272,889
(23,900,545) (6,210,728) (17,869,289) (15,350,920) (7,036,649) 5,230,558 (7,693,780) (5,114,396) (4,212,944) 14,632,105
28,784,026 29,412,515 33,965,148 34,729,940 35,271,660 40,956,217 40,745,506 40,309,261 46,365,441 36,233,275
(28,784,026) (29,412,515) (33,965,148) (34,729,940) (35,271,660) (40,956,217) (40,745,506) (40,309,261) (46,365,441) (36,233,275)
4,820,000 7,672,000 26,380,000 - 34,185,000 91,665,000 - - 14,195,000 -
321,834 - 2,309,915 - 3,907,273 10,930,294 - - 1,150,501 -
- - - - - - 4,736,044 - - -
(5,019,743) - - - (39,371,952) (73,165,442) - - - -
122,091 7,672,000 28,689,915 - (1,279,679) 29,429,852 4,736,044 - 15,345,501 -
$ (23,778454) $ 1461272 _$ 10,820,626 _$ (15,350,920) _$ (8,316,328) _$ 34,660,410 $ (2957,736) _$ (5114,396) _$ 11,132,557 _$ 14,632,105
14.27% 13.65% 17.55% 13.97% 13.35% 12.56% 11.99% 11.74% 10.18% 9.79%

(1) Including operating transfers to capital projects.
(2) Noncapital expenditures equals total expenditures less amounts for capitalized assets on the government-wide statement of net position.

129



County of James City, Virginia

Assessed Value and Actual Value of Taxable Property
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 5

Total
General Total Total direct
Fiscal Total personal Machinery Mobile Personal Public assessed tax
year real property property and tools homes property service value rate
2011 $11,172,929,700 621,471,862 137,178,668 $ 10,101,067 768,751,597 210,802,200 $12,152,483,497 $ 477
2012 11,316,807,900 652,561,625 139,945,157 9,719,184 802,225,966 222,670,868 12,341,704,734 4.77
2013 10,921,180,200 687,058,440 141,877,157 9,209,475 838,145,072 232,588,225 11,991,913,497 4.77
2014 11,067,756,400 710,720,870 144,950,305 8,346,659 864,017,834 233,973,337 12,165,747,571 4.77
2015 11,148,405,300 783,249,672 144,694,099 7,901,856 935,845,627 336,370,602 12,420,621,529 4.84
2016 11,352,153,219 770,378,346 145,094,277 7,533,858 923,006,481 236,177,856 12,511,337,556 4.84
2017 11,608,801,433 809,023,687 147,942,350 7,008,284 963,974,321 245,349,999 12,818,125,753 4.84
2018 11,797,419,633 862,391,419 151,313,988 6,377,045 1,020,082,452 247,568,334 13,065,070,419 4.84
2019 12,089,303,067 898,095,969 150,923,619 6,628,640 1,055,648,228 262,267,902 13,407,219,197 4.84
2020 12,241,257,556 895,259,839 155,315,787 7,099,488 1,057,675,114 388,057,441 13,686,990,111 4.84

Source: Real Estate Assessments and Commissioner of the Revenue, James City County.
Note: Tax rate is per $100 of assessed value.
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County of James City, Virginia
Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 6

Historic Total
Real Personal Retail Triangle direct
Fiscal estate property Room Meal sales sales tax
year tax (1) tax (1) tax tax tax (2) tax (3) rate
2011 $ 077 $ 4.00 $ 5.00 $ 4.00 $ 1.00 $ - 4.77
2012 0.77 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.77
2013 0.77 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.77
2014 0.77 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.77
2015 0.77 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.77
2016 0.84 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.84
2017 0.84 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.84
2018 0.84 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 - 4.84
2019 0.84 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 1.00 4.84
2020 0.84 4.00 5.00 4.00 1.00 1.00 4.84

(1) Per $100 assessed value
(2) Collected by the State and remitted to the County monthly

(3) Effective July 1, 2018
(4) There are no overlapping taxes in the rates disclosed in this table.
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Table 7
County of James City, Virginia
Principal Tax Payers
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

|Principal Property Tax Payers

2020 2011
Property Percentage of Property Percentage of
taxes County taxes County
assessed Rank total assessed Rank total
Anheuser-Busch, Inc. $ 5,381,053 1 3.63% $ 4,839,587 1 4.09%
Virginia Electric & Power Company 3,605,740 2 2.43% 799,797 5 0.68%
Seaworld Parks & Entertainment, LLC 2,285,269 3 1.54% 1,120,837 3 0.95%
Wal-Mart, Inc. 1,245,018 4 0.84% 1,156,567 2 0.98%
Premium Outlets of Williamsburg (1) 1,225,641 5 0.83% 588,051 10 0.50%
Williamsburg Plantation Owners Association 1,098,272 6 0.74% 654,724 9 0.55%
Powhatan Plantation Owners Association 1,009,305 7 0.68% 980,194 4 0.83%
Williamsburg Landing, Inc. 973,077 8 0.66% 737,636 7 0.62%
Ball Metal Container 876,225 9 0.59% 675,043 8 0.57%
Manor Club @ Ford's Colony 690,088 10 0.47%
Busch Properties 778,416 6 0.66%
Total $ 18,389,688 12.41% $ 12,330,852 10.43%

Source: Commissioner of the Revenue
(1) Premium Outlets includes two related parties, Williamsburg Outlets, LLC and Williamsburg Mazel, LLC. They are combined in this table to
show the value of the shopping center.

|Principal Personal Property Tax Payers

2020 2011
Property Percentage of Property Percentage of
taxes County taxes County

assessed Rank total assessed Rank total
Anheuser-Busch, Inc. $ 4,199,353 1 9.92% $ 3,756,362 1 12.22%
Seaworld Parks, LLC 1,712,961 2 4.05% 1,120,837 2 3.64%
Ball Metal Container 734,996 3 1.74% 569,956 3 1.85%
Printpack, Inc. 471,985 4 1.12% 452,854 4 1.47%
Owens-Brockway Glass Container 455,147 5 1.08% 400,892 5 1.30%
Cox Communications of Hampton Roads 305,552 6 0.72% 191,285 8 0.62%
Wal-Mart, Inc. 298,591 7 0.71% 352,993 6 1.15%
Toyota Lease Trust 201,963 8 0.48%
HVT, Inc. 194,978 9 0.46%
Citizen Asset Finance, Inc. 164,385 10 0.39%
Jack L. Massie Contracting, Inc. 216,012 7 0.70%
Branscome, Inc. 171,057 9 0.56%
Busch Properties 112,395 10 0.37%

Total $ 8,739,911 20.67% $ 7,344,643 23.88%
Source: Commissioner of the Revenue
|Principal Real Estate Property Tax Payers
2020 2011
Property Percentage of Property Percentage of
taxes County taxes County

assessed Rank total assessed Rank total
Virginia Electric & Power Company $ 3,598,920 1 3.39% $ 799,109 4 0.91%
Premium Outlets of Williamsburg (1) 1,225,641 2 1.16% 588,051 8 0.67%
Anheuser-Busch, Inc. 1,181,700 3 1.11% 1,083,225 1 1.21%
Williamsburg Plantation Owners Association 1,089,777 4 1.03% 650,274 7 0.74%
Powhatan Plantation Owners Association 988,420 5 0.93% 966,499 2 1.10%
Wal-Mart, Inc. 946,427 6 0.89% 803,574 3 0.92%
Williamsburg Landing, Inc. 860,819 7 0.81% 675,738 5 0.77%
Riverside Healthcare Assoc. 704,106 8 0.66%
Manor Club @ Ford's Colony (2) 651,006 9 0.61% 581,756 9 0.66%
Virginia United Methodist Homes, Inc. 645,755 10 0.61%
Busch Properties 666,021 6 0.76%
Seaworld Parks, LLC 521,684 10 0.60%

Total $ 11,892,571 11.20% $ 7,335,931 8.34%

Source: Commissioner of the Revenue

(1) Premium Outlets includes two related parties, Williamsburg Outlets, LLC and Williamsburg Mazel, LLC. They are combined in this table to
show the value of the shopping center.

(2) In 2010, the company was known as Manor Houses Associates.
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Taxes levied

County of James City, Virginia
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Collected within the fiscal
year of the levy

Collections in

Table 8

Total collections to date

for the fiscal Percentage subsequent Percentage
Fiscal year year Amount (1) of levy years Amount of levy
2011 $ 117,215,610 $ 100,889,563 86.07% $ 15,946,267 $ 116,835,830 99.68%
2012 121,312,654 101,482,234 83.65% 19,498,752 120,980,986 99.73%
2013 117,414,914 98,431,581 83.83% 18,747,396 117,178,977 99.80%
2014 118,804,815 100,523,591 84.61% 17,810,298 118,333,889 99.60%
2015 116,313,370 101,071,578 86.90% 13,981,851 115,053,429 98.92%
2016 122,270,532 106,867,113 87.40% 14,476,777 121,343,890 99.24%
2017 125,345,126 109,436,232 87.31% 15,895,512 125,331,744 99.99%
2018 129,502,759 111,268,080 85.92% 17,510,094 128,778,174 99.44%
2019 133,720,786 114,672,068 85.75% 16,894,911 131,566,979 98.39%
2020 133,461,243 114,426,238 85.74% - 114,426,238 85.74%

Source: Treasurer, James City County

(1) Collections related to fiscal year levies includes PPTRA claimed by taxpayers.
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2011

2012

2013

County of James City, Virginia

Taxable Sales by Category
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

2019

Table 9

2020

Apparel stores
Automotive dealers, supplies
and repair
Building materials, machinery
and equipment
Eating and drinking
establishments
Food stores
Furniture, home furnishings
and household equipment
General merchandise
Lodging
Other outlets
Other retail stores, dealers,
trades and services

Total

Source: Weldon Cooper Center

$ 183,244,309
17,019,548
16,631,597

91,552,799
135,172,441

22,119,421
87,029,287
32,414,685
29,255,159

188,073,849

$ 198,116,199
24,017,913
20,676,668

103,724,814
148,451,817

23,420,749
92,522,324
14,172,343
39,511,197

204,974,337

$ 206,585,825
21,792,904
19,518,301

105,121,625
160,043,266

25,032,485
103,860,834
16,041,031
38,200,453

208,856,679

$ 213,354,143
21,122,470
18,093,198

116,111,215
169,193,864

31,239,589
116,426,211
15,276,927
38,297,074

205,764,580

$ 194,143,321
20,893,120
18,046,110

112,320,430
172,591,926

33,524,596
133,412,703
20,352,083
32,410,167

231,051,462

$ 194,900,831
23,582,443
20,957,143

116,764,293
178,533,330

34,915,814
138,011,583
22,528,553
31,055,094

250,886,839

$ 186,607,800
23,292,016
19,658,032

113,221,696
173,053,026

33,199,279
138,691,794
21,630,584
31,872,830

243,076,757

$ 161,355,210
27,301,606
18,140,731

96,580,559
166,510,730

30,254,081
148,614,533
23,009,096
38,055,982

261,444,986

$ 153,888,820
27,495,725
16,525,955

100,513,316
159,139,231

29,813,814
158,022,671
20,053,827
23,929,492

275,721,770

$ 148,561,525
27,923,233
15,897,685

103,898,550
171,721,520

28,837,623
148,055,718
18,872,605
13,410,125

277,858,734

$ 802,513,095

$ 869,588,361

$ 905,053,403

$ 944,879,271

$ 968,745,918

$1,012,135,923

$ 984,303,814

$ 971,267,514

$ 965,104,621

$ 955,037,318

Note: Some data is not categorized to protect confidentiality of the business.
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County of James City, Virginia
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Business-type

Table 10

Governmental activities activity (3)

General Lease Total Percentage Per capita
Fiscal obligation Capital revenue Revenue primary of personal personal
year bonds leases bonds Total bonds government income (1) income (2)
2011 $ 93,283,624 $ 10,285,522 $ 104,055,000 $ 207,624,146 $ 34,469,298 $ 242,093,444 18.48 $ 54,224
2012 86,134,103 9,235,074 104,472,000 199,841,177 32,938,174 232,779,351 20.21 55,990
2013 80,004,294 1,098,854 123,034,000 204,137,148 25,185,000 229,322,148 20.69 55,550
2014 72,164,244 984,528 114,416,000 187,564,772 24,660,000 212,224,772 23.34 56,960
2015 65,458,589 858,833 103,604,000 169,921,422 24,115,000 194,036,422 26.59 58,504
2016 49,844,842 728,456 130,451,552 181,024,850 24,118,109 205,142,959 26.05 59,632
2017 44,155,482 4,195,266 119,855,768 168,206,516 23,269,202 191,475,718 29.49 62,350
2018 38,348,323 3,183,141 109,069,984 150,601,448 22,600,295 173,201,743 33.89 64,466
2019 33,966,163 2,146,958 112,183,815 148,296,936 21,906,388 170,203,324 35.64 66,306
2020 29,479,003 1,086,117 102,028,321 132,593,441 - 132,593,441 o *

(1) Based on personal income from Table 13
(2) From Table 13, calendar year basis

(3) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of
fiscal year 2020, the James City Service Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.

** Statistics not yet available
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Table 11
County of James City, Virginia
Debt Statistics
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Ratio of Net General Bonded Debt to Assessed Value and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita

Less Ratio of net
debt bonded Net
Gross service Net debt to bonded

Fiscal Assessed bonded monies bonded assessed debt per
year Population (1) value (2) debt (3) (4) available (5) debt value capita
2011 68,500 $ 12,152,483,497 $ 93,283,624 $ 2,921,037 $ 90,362,587 0.74 $ 1,319
2012 69,451 12,341,704,734 86,134,103 2,920,981 83,213,122 0.67 1,198
2013 70,376 11,991,913,497 80,004,294 2,920,538 77,083,756 0.64 1,095
2014 71,254 12,165,747,571 72,164,244 2,920,369 69,243,875 0.57 972
2015 72,682 12,420,621,529 65,458,589 1,219,616 64,238,973 0.52 884
2016 73,767 12,511,337,556 49,844,842 1,221,521 48,623,321 0.39 659
2017 74,795 12,818,125,753 44,155,482 1,222,024 42,933,458 0.33 574
2018 75,776 13,065,070,419 38,348,323 1,226,463 37,121,860 0.28 490
2019 76,211 13,407,219,197 33,966,163 - 33,966,163 0.25 446
2020 77,202 13,686,990,111 29,479,003 - 29,479,003 0.22 382

(1) From Table 13; based on calendar year

(2) From Table 5

(3) Includes all long-term general obligation bonded debt, bond anticipation notes, and literary fund loans
(4) Includes general obligation debt payable from enterprise revenues

(5) Debt Service Reserve Funds held by a trustee

**  Statistics not yet available

Ratio of Annual Debt Service Expenditures for General Bonded Debt (1) to Total General Government Expenditures and Revenues

Ratio of debt Ratio of debt
Total service to Total service to

Total general general total general general total

debt governmental governmental governmental governmental

Fiscal year Principal (1) (5) Interest (2) service (4) expenditures (3) expenditures revenues (3) revenues

2011 $ 14,830,524 $ 9,853,465 $ 24,683,989 $ 198,893,176 12.41 $ 201,684,905 12.24
2012 14,787,955 9,384,810 24,172,765 201,078,316 12.02 206,996,888 11.68
2013 23,473,305 9,522,081 32,995,386 215,304,486 15.32 205,082,111 16.09
2014 16,417,326 8,822,326 25,239,652 211,866,777 11.91 209,633,075 12.04
2015 16,862,695 8,781,971 25,644,666 218,984,810 11.71 213,074,589 12.04
2016 17,122,377 6,188,222 23,310,599 226,845,449 10.28 239,451,445 9.74
2017 16,206,234 6,841,056 23,047,290 231,072,402 9.97 245,652,126 9.38
2018 16,284,125 6,195,080 22,479,205 231,635,241 9.70 248,003,274 9.06
2019 14,343,182 5,848,486 20,191,668 251,898,565 8.02 259,858,415 7.77
2020 14,282,841 5,447,279 19,730,120 243,309,721 8.11 269,835,290 7.31

(1) General obligation bonds reported in the enterprise funds and special assessment debt with government commitment have been excluded.

(2) Excludes bond issuance and other costs.

(3) Reflects recurring expenditures and revenues included in the General Fund, Debt Service Fund, Special Revenue funds, operating transfers to
Capital Projects and the County's percentage of discretely presented Component Unit - Public Schools Operating Fund.

(4) The County has no overlapping debt.

(5) Infiscal year 2013, principal payments increased by $7,380,000 related to the refinancing of a capital lease. Proceeds from the issuance of new
debt were used for these principal payments.
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County of James City, Virginia
Pledged Revenue Coverage
James City Service Authority

Last Ten Fiscal Years (3)

Table 12

@
1) Net revenue Debt service requirements

Fiscal Gross Operating available for

year revenue expenses debt service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2011 17,474,579 $ 12,091,472 $ 5,383,107 $ 1,490,000 $ 1,537,750 $ 3,027,750 1.78
2012 15,975,755 12,414,605 3,561,150 1,545,000 1,483,100 3,028,100 1.18
2013 14,997,834 12,407,414 2,590,420 525,000 1,119,306 1,644,306 1.58
2014 16,918,995 12,218,405 4,700,590 545,000 1,100,931 1,645,931 2.86
2015 17,714,181 10,982,443 6,731,738 565,000 1,081,856 1,646,856 4.09
2016 17,370,324 10,701,704 6,668,620 785,000 571,161 1,356,161 4.92
2017 20,128,694 10,904,086 9,224,608 605,000 749,450 1,354,450 6.81
2018 20,128,689 10,609,709 9,518,980 630,000 725,250 1,355,250 7.02
2019 21,647,670 11,669,088 9,978,582 655,000 700,050 1,355,050 7.36
2020 22,615,631 12,364,418 10,251,213 1,274,000 802,305 2,076,305 4.94

1)
)
®)

Total operating expenses, exclusive of depreciation
The Authority has no debt margin or overlapping debt.
For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type
activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020, the James City Service Authority is reported as a discretely presented
component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.
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Table 13
County of James City, Virginia
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Per capita

Calendar Personal personal Unemployment
year Population (1) income (2) income (2) percentage (1)
2011 68,500 $ 4,474,583,000 $ 54,224 6.1%
2012 69,451 4,703,429,000 55,990 5.7%
2013 70,376 4,745,679,000 55,550 5.3%
2014 71,254 4,954,338,000 56,960 4.9%
2015 72,682 5,160,028,000 58,504 4.3%
2016 73,767 5,344,090,000 59,632 4.1%
2017 74,795 5,646,096,000 62,350 3.8%
2018 75,776 5,869,000,000 64,466 2.9%
2019 76,211 6,066,000,000 66,306 2.7%
2020 77,202 * hid *

(1) Planning Division, supplemented by data from Virginia Employment Commission
(http://www.vec.virginia.gov/)

(2) Data from the Bureau of Economic Analysis (http://www.bea.gov/), and has
combined data for James City County and the City of Williamsburg

**  Statistics not yet available

[Median Household Income

James

Calendar City Commonwealth United
year County of Virginia States
2009 $ 72,902 $ 59,372 $ 50,221
2010 74,241 60,665 50,046
2011 73,575 61,877 50,502
2012 78,396 61,782 51,371
2013 75,806 62,745 52,250
2014 75,926 64,923 53,657
2015 77,668 66,263 55,775
2016 80,226 66,149 55,322
2017 80,772 68,766 57,652
2018 83,048 71,564 60,293
2019 *% *% *%
2020 *% *%* *%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, Small Area Income and Poverty Estimates
**  Statistics not yet available

[Households and Poverty

Percentage
Fiscal Food stamp Total of food stamp
year households households* households
2009 1,224 27,567 4.4%
2010 1,638 27,003 6.1%
2011 1,840 27,375 6.7%
2012 2,015 27,707 7.3%
2013 2,236 28,090 8.0%
2014 2,211 28,415 7.8%
2015 2,006 28,986 6.9%
2016 1,870 29,390 6.4%
2017 1,773 29,807 5.9%
2018 1,729 30,240 5.7%
2019 1,690 30,608 5.5%
2020 1,676 31,036 5.4%

Source: Social Services Department and Planning Division
*  Reflects the number of occupied housing
(Continued)
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County of James City, Virginia
Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Table 13 (Continued)

[Population and Age Distribution

Percentage

Year Population Increase
1950 6,317 28.7%
1960 11,539 82.7%
1970 17,853 54.7%
1980 22,763 27.5%
1990 34,859 53.1%
2000 48,102 38.0%
2010 67,009 39.3%
Age 1970 1980 1990 2000 2010
0-14 5,226 29.3% 5,008 22.0% 7,211 20.7% 9,254 19.2% 11,608 17.3%
15-19 1,448 8.1% 2,276  10.0% 2,147  6.2% 2,838  5.9% 4120 6.1%
20-29 2,915 16.3% 3,870 17.0% 5,330 15.3% - 0.0% - 0.0%
20-34 * * * * * * 7,484 15.6% 9,741  14.5%
30-44 3,172 17.8% 4,780 21.0% 8,001 25.5% - 0.0% - 0.0%
35-44 * * * * * * 7,866 16.4% 8,133 12.1%
45-64 3,531 19.8% 5,235 23.0% 7,255  20.8% 12,563 26.1% 19,537  29.2%
65+ 1,561  8.7% 1,594  7.0% 4,015 11.5% 8,097 16.8% 13,870  20.7%

17,853  100% 22,763 100% 34,859  100% 48,102 100% 67,009 100%
Source:  U.S. Census Bureau

*

New categories, as defined by the U.S. Census

[Households and Population

Total
Fiscal Number of households
year households* population**
2010 27,003 66,157
2011 27,375 67,068
2012 27,707 67,882
2013 28,090 68,821
2014 28,415 69,616
2015 28,986 71,015
2016 29,390 72,005
2017 29,807 73,028
2018 30,240 74,089
2019 30,608 74,991
2020 31,036 76,038
Source:  Planning Division

*

*%

Reflects the number of occupied housing
Reflects total population less group quarter population, such as nursing facilities, Eastern State Hospital (a state

mental facility), Middle Peninsula Juvenile Detention Center and the Virginia Peninsula Regional Jail.

Persons per

household

2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45
2.45

[Unemployment Rate and Labor Force

Calendar Civilian Number
year labor force employed
2010 32,243 30,205
2011 32,605 30,618
2012 32,988 31,101
2013 33,690 31,891
2014 34,650 32,941
2015 34,250 32,765
2016 34,206 32,883
2017 35,352 34,080
2018 36,554 35,552
2019 37,219 36,166
2020 37,120 33,576

Source:

Number Unemployment
unemployed rate
2,038 6.3%
1,987 6.1%
1,887 5.7%
1,799 5.3%
1,709 4.9%
1,485 4.3%
1,323 3.9%
1,271 3.6%
1,002 2.7%
1,053 2.8%
3,544 9.5%

Planning Division, supplemented by data from Virginia labor market information
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County of James City, Virginia
Principal Employers in James City County
Current Year and Ten Years Ago

Table 14

2020 2011
Percent Percent
of total of total
County County
Employees Rank employment Employees Rank employment
Williamsburg-James City County Public Schools 1000+ 1 5.14% 1000+ 2 6.01%
Busch Entertainment 1000+ 2 b 1000+ 1 13.29%
Wal-Mart Distribution Center 500-999 3 2.84% 500-999 8 1.82%
James City County 500-999 4 2.46% 500-999 5 2.82%
Riverside Regional Medical Center 500-999 5 1.74%
Eastern State Hospital 500-999 6 1.69% 500-999 4 3.14%
Anheuser-Busch Inbev 500-999 7 1.49% 500-999 6 2.31%
Williamsburg Landing 500-999 8 1.05%
Owens & Minor/AVID 250-499 9 0.98%
Jamestown-Yorktown Foundation 250-499 10 0.71% 250-499 10 1.32%
Lumber Liquidaters 1000+ 3 3.75%
Busch Properties, Inc. 500-999 7 2.27%
Avid Medical 250-499 9 1.46%
Total 18.10% 38.19%

Source: Economic Development, James City County and Virginia Employment Commission
** Busch Gardens became publicly traded during fiscal year 2013, and information is not available.
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County of James City, Virginia
Full-time County Government Employees by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 15

Function/program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Administrative:
Board of supervisors 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 0.5 0.5 0.5 0.5 -
County administration 2.5 25 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 4.0 6.0 7.0
County attorney 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 4.0 4.0
Communications 75 75 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 - -
Economic development 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 35 3.5 35 3.5 3.0
Voter registration and elections 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Human resources:
Human resources 4.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 7.0
Training and Quality Performance 3.0 - - - - - - - - -
Financial administration:
Accounting 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0
Commissioner of the revenue 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Financial and management services 7.0 6.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0
Purchasing 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 55
Real estate assessments 10.0 9.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 8.0 8.0
Treasurer 12.0 11.0 12.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 14.0
Satellite services 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0
Information resources management
Information resources management 20.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 21.0 15.0 14.0
Information technology core applications - - - - - - - - 5.0 6.0
Information technology infrastructure - - - - - - - - 8.0 9.0
General services:
Facilities maintenance 17.0 17.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 18.0 19.0 18.0 18.0 18.0
Fleet and equipment 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.0 8.5
General and capital services 5.5 7.0 8.0 8.0 7.0 7.0 7.0 9.5 10.5 115
Grounds maintenance 22.0 22.0 24.0 25.0 25.0 25.0 26.0 26.5 275 28.5
Solid waste management 6.0 6.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0 6.0
Stormwater 6.5 4.0 4.0 4.0 6.0 8.0 8.0 7.0 18.0 18.0
Community development:
Building safety and permits 13.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 14.0 14.0 15.0 16.0 17.0 17.0
Community Development 2.5 25 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Engineering and resource protection 12.0 13.0 12.0 12.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 - -
Planning 125 10.5 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 9.0 11.0 11.0
Zoning enforcement 3.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0 4.0
Judicial:
Courts/judicial 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Courthouse 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Clerk of the circuit court 12.0 12.0 12.0 12.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0 11.0
Commonwealth’s attorney 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 9.0 10.0 11.0 11.0 13.0
Sheriff 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 16.0 17.0 17.0 17.0
Public safety:
Animal control 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Emergency communications 26.0 26.0 26.0 26.0 29.0 29.0 29.0 29.0 28.0 28.0
Emergency management 2.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0 2.0
Emergency medical services 25.0 - - - - - - - - -
Fire 86.0 110.0 110.0 110.0 114.0 115.0 115.0 115.0 122.0 128.0
Police 98.0 98.0 98.0 99.0 100.0 103.0 103.0 105.0 108.0 111.0
Parks and recreation 48.0 49.0 48.0 48.0 47.0 49.0 52.0 52.0 54.0 54.0
Community services:
Cooperative extension service 2.0 2.0 - - - - - - - -
Total general fund 541.0 541.0 542.0 544.0 552.0 559.0 567.0 573.0 588.0 604.0
Other services:
Housing and neighborhood development 9.5 9.5 9.0 9.0 8.0 8.0 7.0 8.0 9.0 9.0
JCSA (1) 86.0 89.0 89.0 89.0 89.0 89.0 89.0 91.0 96.0
Social services 52.5 52.5 52.0 51.0 51.0 51.0 52.0 53.0 53.0 56.0
Colonial community corrections 12.0 12.0 12.0 13.0 13.0 13.0 12.0 12.0 14.0 14.0
Special projects/grants 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 3.0 6.0 5.0 8.0
Grand total all funds 704.0 707.0 707.0 709.0 716.0 723.0 730.0 743.0 765.0 691.0

Source: Financial and Management Services

(1) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020, the James City
Service Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.
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County of James City, Virginia
Operating Indicators by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 16

Function/program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020

Police:

Callls for service 21,129 20,879 19,539 20,175 20,875 22,225 21,829 22,247 21,806 20,677

Major crimes reported 1,071 1,092 999 999 1,182 1,260 1,153 1,133 976 724

Major crimes cleared 325 324 317 247 335 390 335 374 343 231
Fire:

Fire/other responses 2,786 3,178 2,822 3,065 3,153 3,302 4,010 3,774 3,978 3,646

Inspections 1,735 1,804 1,910 1,829 1,320 1,255 1,169 1,046 914 500

EMS responses 5,956 6,147 6,446 6,450 6,666 7,039 7,141 7,330 7,894 7,486
Refuse collection:

Refuse collected (tons per day) 9 10 12 11 10 11 12 12 17 18

Recyclables collected (tons per day) 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 1 1

Recyclables collected curbside (tons per day) 23 22 22 22 23 24 23 23 24 15
Parks and recreation:

Community center admissions 463,491 464,358 511,976 444,755 400,367 401,111 434,719 404,919 431,581 296,848

Park attendance 1,708,976 2,253,617 2,163,533 2,428,894 2,595,974 2,817,348 3,075,306 3,742,009 3,997,042 3,930,165

Participants in programs offered 395,789 378,733 371,959 404,023 441,969 463,319 508,776 528,703 505,780 307,607
Water (1):

New connections 388 351 448 359 388 423 464 407 292 284

Water mains breaks 44 31 25 21 26 21 34 25 30 28
Sewer (1):

New connections 375 296 347 261 380 447 470 414 287 290

Source: County operating departments

(1) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020, the James City Service
Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.

142



County of James City, Virginia

Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Table 17

Function/program 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
Police stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire stations 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5
Parks and recreation:

Acreage 1,582 1,582 1,582 1,582 1,582 1,582 1,592 1,592 1,592 1,592
Playgrounds 11 11 11 11 12 12 10 10 10 10
Ball fields maintained 65 65 65 65 65 65 70 70 68 68
Tennis courts maintained 5 5 5 5 4 4 4 4 4 -
Pickleball courts maintained - - - - - 2 2 2 2 8
Community centers 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Water (2):
Water lines (miles) 393 390 393 400 402 407 409 410 414 414
Water customers 19,719 20,070 20,549 20,858 21,246 21,669 22,133 22,540 22,832 23,116
Storage tanks (greater than
250,000 gallons) 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7 7
Average ERCs (1) 20,866 19,200 18,597 18,937 19,415 18,921 20,025 20,220 19,247 18,977
Wastewater (2):
Sewer lines (miles) 419 423 425 430 435 439 440 440 446 446
Gallons collected (millions) 1,598 1,771 1,739 1,862 1,922 1,863 1,971 1,987 1,898 1,879
Sewer customers 21,127 21,488 21,962 22,575 22,955 23,402 23,872 24,286 24,573 24,863

Source: County operating departments

(1) Equivalent Residential Connections (ERCs) are determined based upon the rated capacity of a water meter (e.g., the average amount of water which can flow through such meter on
a continuous basis) as compared to the rated capacity for a typical 5/8" residential water meter.
(2) For fiscal years 2019 and prior, the James City Service Authority was reported as a blended component unit and business type activity of James City County. As of fiscal year 2020,
the James City Service Authority is reported as a discretely presented component unit, and is no longer reported as part of the primary government.
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County of James City, Virginia
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government and
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Public Schools
Year ended June 30, 2020

Pass-through

Federal entity
catalog identifying
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Cluster/Program Title number number

Exhibit E-1

Amount
passed
through to
subrecipients Expenditures

Primary Government - Governmental Activities:
Department of Agriculture:
Virginia Department of Social Services:
SNAP Cluster:
State Administrative Matching Grants - Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 10.561 il
Department of Health and Human Services:
Virginia Department of Social Services:

Promoting Safe and Stable Families 93.556 il
TANF Cluster:

Temporary Assistance for Needy Families 93.558 il
Refugee and Entrant Assistance - State Administered Programs 93.566 il
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 93.568 *x
Child Welfare Services 93.645 **
Foster Care - Title IV-E 93.658 **
Adoption Assistance 93.659 il
Social Services Block Grant 93.667 **
Chafee Foster Care Independent Living 93.674 *x
State Children’s Insurance Program 93.767 *x
Medicaid Cluster:

Medical Assistance Program 93.778 *x
CCDF Cluster:

Child Care Mandatory and Matching Funds of the Child Care and Development Fund 93.596 il
Chafee Education and Training Vouchers Program 93.599 il
Adoption and Legal Guardianship Incentive Payments 93.603 il
Provider Relief Fund 93.498 **

Total Department of Health and Human Services
Department of Interior:

Bureau of Cash Management Payment in Lieu of Taxes 15.000 N/A
Department of Treasury:
Coronavirus Relief Fund 21.019 N/A

Department of Homeland Security:
Virginia Department of Emergency Management:

Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 EMW-2018-SS-00093-S01
Homeland Security Grant Program 97.067 hid
Emergency Management Performance Grants 97.042 hid

Total Department of Homeland Security
Department of Housing and Community Development:
Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development:

Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871 N/A
Housing Counseling Assistance Program 14.169 N/A
HOME Investment Partnerships Program 14.239 hid
Community Development Block Grants/State's program and Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii 14.228 hid
Emergency Solutions Grant Program 14.231 bl

Total Department of Housing and Community Development
Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:

Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 hid
Virginia Department of Motor Vehicles:
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 69A37518300001
Alcohol Open Container Requirements 20.607 18X9205464VA17
Highway Safety Cluster:
Highway Safety Grant 20.600 69A37518300004010VAQ
Highway Safety Grant 20.600 69A37519300004

Total Highway Safety Cluster, Department of Transportation
Total Department of Transportation
Department of Justice:
Bureau of Justice Administration:

BJA - Bulletproof Vests Partnership 16.607 N/A
Office of Justice Programs:
Edward Byrne Memorial Justice Assistance Grant Program 16.738 2019-DJ-BX-0302
Virginia Department of Criminal Justice Services:
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 19-W9412VA18
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.588 20-X9412VA19
Violence Against Women Formula Grants 16.590 2015-WE-AX-0009
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 20-Z8579VW18

Total Department of Criminal Justice Services
Total Department of Justice
Total federal awards, primary government - governmental activities

N/A  Not applicable; direct funding
**  Information is not available.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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$ 657,105

45,782

289,858
422
51,346
502
260,133
320,879
252,517

8,232

500,000 4,811,705

44,422
21,794
39,143
105,359

1,256,365
29,005
89,183
21,100
47,312

1,442,965

4,800

8,535
3,023

2,092
10,516
12,608
28,966

16,243
5,076

5,383
23,965
82,033

137,445
248,826
270,145

500,000 9,362,862

(continued)



County of James City, Virginia

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards - Primary Government and
Discretely Presented Component Unit - Public Schools

Year ended June 30, 2020

Exhibit E-1

Total federal awards, reporting entity

N/A  Not applicable; direct funding
**  |nformation is not available.

See accompanying notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.
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Pass-through Amount
Federal entity passed
catalog identifying through to
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grantor/Cluster/Program Title number number subrecipients Expenditures
Component Unit - Public Schools:
Department of Agriculture:
Child Nutrition Cluster:
Virginia Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services:
Food Commodities 10.555 5180699 $ 259,584
Virginia Department of Education:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 16161VA307N1099 446,536
National School Lunch Program 10.555 16161VA307N1099 1,323,709
Summer Food Service Program 10.559 16161VA307N1100 21,951
Total Child Nutrition Cluster, Department of Agriculture 2,051,780
Department of Education:
Impact Aid 84.041 N/A 162,143
College of William and Mary - Project HOPE 84.196 S196A150048 17,544
Virginia Department of Education:
Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 419 1,215,392
Title |, Part D, Neglected and Delinquent Children 84.013 S013A150046 73,033
Vocational Education - Basic Grants to States 84.048 V048A130046 47,738
S367A150044/S367A1
Title Il, Part A, Supporting Effective Instruction State Grants 84.367 60044 269,287
S365A14140046/S365
Title I, Part A, English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 A15140046 55,725
Title IV, Part A, Student Support and Academic Enrichment Grants 84.424 S424A170048 33,841
Special Education Cluster:
11027A150107/11027A
Special Education - Grants to States 84.027 160107 2,203,257
Special Education - Preschool Grants 84.173 H173A160112 20,020
Total Special Education Cluster 2,223,277
Total Department of Education 4,097,980
Department of Health and Human Services:
Head Start Program Cluster:
Head Start 93.600 ** 108,880 108,880
Medicaid Cluster:
Medical Assistance Program 93.778 *x 2,738
Total Department of Health and Human Services 108,880 111,618
Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster:
Highway Planning and Construction 20.205 51SR7101M3001 27,180
Total federal awards, component unit - Public Schools 108,880 6,288,558

$ 608,880 $ 15,651,420




1)

2)

3)

4)

County of James City, Virginia
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Year ended June 30, 2020

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal award activity of the County
of James City, Virginia (the County) and its component unit, Williamsburg-James City County Public Schools
(Public Schools). The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the County and Public Schools, it is not intended to and does not present the
financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the County and Public Schools.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported in the schedule are reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and OMB Circular
A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain types of expenditures are
not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

Indirect Cost Rate

The County and Public Schools have elected not to use the 10% de minimus indirect cost rate allowed under
the Uniform Guidance.

Sub-recipient Payments

There was one award passed-through by the County to a sub-recipient during the fiscal year ended June 30,
2020. This award was in the amount of $500,000 and was provided through funding received from the
Department of Treasury's Coronavirus Relief Fund, CFDA 21.019. The sub-recipient was the Greater
Williamsburg Partnership, and the purpose of the award was to provide assistance to small businesses
impacted by COVID-19.

In addition, an amount of $1,749,959 received by the County from the Coronavirus Relief Fund, CFDA 21.019
was passed through to the Public Schools to purchase laptops and other equipment needed for remote learning.
This amount was not yet expended by the Public Schools as of June 30, 2020 and was reported as Unearned
Revenue by the Public Schools for fiscal year 2020. As a result, this amount is not included in the expenditures
presented on the accompanying schedule.

During fiscal year 2020, the Public Schools passed through an award of $108,880 to a sub-recipient. The award

was provided to the Williamsburg-James City County Community Action Agency for the Department of Health
and Human Services’ Head Start program, CFDA 93.600.
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EDWARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER
MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Supervisors
County of James City, Virginia
Williamsburg, Virginia

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the Specifications for Audits of Counties, Cities and
Towns, issued by the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Virginia, the financial
statements of the governmental activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the County of James City, Virginia, (the “County”)
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the County’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated
December 8, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the County’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the County’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe
than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

Your Success is Our Focus
701 Town Center Drive, Suite 700 « Newport News VA 23606 « 757-873-1033 « Fax 757-873-1106 » www.BEcpas.com



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the County’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed an instance of noncompliance that is required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
guestioned costs as item 2020-001.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the County’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purposes.

QW,W '@7&47,{410.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Newport News, Virginia
December 8, 2020
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COUNTY OF JAMES CITY, VIRGINIA

SUMMARY OF COMPLIANCE MATTERS
June 30, 2020

As more fully described in the Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we performed tests of the County’s compliance with
certain provisions of the laws, regulations, contracts, and grants shown below.

STATE COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Code of Virginia State Agency Requirements
Budget and Appropriation Laws Social Services

Cash and Investment Laws

Conflicts of Interest Act

Local Retirement Systems

Debt Provisions

Procurement Laws

Comprehensive Services Act

Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act

Sheriff Internal Controls

FEDERAL COMPLIANCE MATTERS

Compliance Supplement for Single Audits of State and Local Governments

Provisions and conditions of agreements related to federal program selected for testing.
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EDWARDS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Supervisors
County of James City, Virginia
Williamsburg, Virginia

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the County of James City, Virginia’s (the “County”) compliance with the types
of compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the County’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
County’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, the terms, and conditions of
its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the County’s major federal programs
based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations, Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the County’s compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the County’s compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, County of James City, Virginia complied, in all material respects, with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2020.

Your Success is Our Focus
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of County of James City, Virginia is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning
and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the County’s internal control over compliance
with types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on
the effectiveness of the County’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing

of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Newport News, Virginia
December 8, 2020
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Exhibit E-2
COUNTY OF JAMES CITY, VIRGINIA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2020

A. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS
1. The auditor’s report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements.

2. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements were reported in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters
Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

3. No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements was disclosed.

4. No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the major federal award programs were reported in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on Internal Control Over
Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance.

5. The auditor’s report on compliance for the major federal award programs expresses an unmodified opinion.
6. The audit disclosed no audit findings relating to the major programs.

7. The programs tested as major were:

. Child Nutrition Cluster (CFDA No.: 10.553, 10.555, 10.559)

b.  Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies (CFDA No.: 84.010)
c.  Special Education Cluster (CFDA No.: 84.027, 84.173)

d.  Coronavirus Relief Fund (CFDA No.: 21.019)

a

8. The threshold for distinguishing Type A and B programs was $750,000.
9. The County was not determined to be a low-risk auditee.
B. FINDINGS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
None
C. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAM AUDIT
None
D. FINDINGS - COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA
2020-01:  Uniform Disposition of Unclaimed Property Act
During testing performed on outstanding checks, auditors noted checks outstanding that were
greater than one year old as of the beginning of the fiscal year (July 1, 2019) that should have been
remitted to the Commonwealth as unclaimed property by November 1, 2019. Additionally, during

testing of the report filed with the Commonwealth, auditors noted that due diligence letters were
not sent at least 60 days prior to the filing of the report.
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COUNTY OF JAMES CITY, VIRGINIA

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2020

There were no findings in the audit report, dated November 27, 2019, for the year ended June 30, 2019,
issued by Brown Edwards & Company, LLP.

There were no reports issued by federal agencies or contract administrators during the year covered by
this audit.
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WHY EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT IS IMPORTANT

Building a culture of employee engagement is a strategic priority

* Decades of research reveals a strong connection between employee engagement and how well an organization
performs. That’s because we know that engaged employees find their work more meaningful and deliver better
results.

= Plus, a high level of engagement helps localities achieve strategic goals, foster healthy relationships, encourage
innovation, retain employees, and deliver better services for citizens in James City County.

= Improving government performance can also increase public confidence, potentially raising employee morale.

Bottom line: employee engagement organizational performance!




ty
AT A GLANCE | J!

Survey conducted August 24 — September 4,2020

2018 2020
= Total responses 563 664
" Participant rate 57% 71%

= Survey assesses engagement across /7 categories:

= Organizational Purpose & Direction = Diversity, Equity,and Inclusion

= Leadership =  Accountability & Performance Management

= |nformation sharing & communication = Job Satisfaction

= Work Environment

* 68% response rate for OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey



HEADLINES JV!

Employees are
most positive
about

Effectively addressing poor performance. (+13 points)
Managers demonstrating strong leadership skills. (+12 points)
The quality of our products and services. (+11 points)

Effectively addresses poor performance. (49%)
Areas received Policies for promotion and advancement. (53%)
lowest ratings Compensation (pay and benefits). (54%)

employees work ;
pPaysaayyears



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Items with the Highest and Lowest Levels of Agreement and Biggest Changes from 2018 Survey

Highest Percentage Level of
Agreement

Have a good understanding of the mission and

goals

Lowest Percentage Level of

Agreement

Poor performance is effectively addressed

Understands how my work directly contributes to

the success of the organization

The quality of our products and services are very

important

Policies for promotion and advancement are

fair

Highest Percentage Increase

from 2018

Poor performance is effectively addressed

Satisfaction with pay and benefits

My manager demonstrates strong leadership

skills

Customer needs are the top priority

Overall job satisfaction

Senior management is genuinely interested in

employee opinions and ideas

The quality of our products and services are

very important

Satisfaction with career growth opportunities

My workplace is safe

Information and knowledge are shared openly

Senior management is held accountable for

achieving results

Respect manager as a competent professional

Senior management is held accountable for

achieving results

Customer needs are the top priority

The organization respects its employees

My manager understands the benefits of

maintaining a work/life balance

My manager is actively interested in my

professional development

My manager does a good job of sharing

information

| have the resources | need to do my job well

Pace of the work enables me to do a good job

There is a strong feeling of teamwork and

cooperation

My supervisor gives me praise and recognition

My manager is always consistent when

administering policies

Information and knowledge are shared openly




ORG PURPOSE AND DIRECTION

Avg 2020 2018 | % Change
Organizational Purpose and Direction 97% )CC
| [Have a good understanding of the mission and goals 442 | 97% | 94% | 3% employees
compared to
2 |Understands how my work directly contributes to the success | 4.55 | 97% | 95% 2% 85% federal
employees know
3 |The quality of our products and services are very important 456 | 97% | 86% | 11% how their work
relates to the
4 |Customer needs are the top priority 444 | 94% | 85% 9% agency’s goals*.

= Category with highest percentages

= Managers help employees see not only the purpose of their work, but how each person’s work
relates to the County’s purpose and outcomes.

= Impacting the County’s ability effectively respond during the pandemic.

*OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey



LEADERSHIP

Avg 2020 2018 | % Change
Leadership 49% JCC
5 |l respect my manager as a competent professional 426 | 85% | 81% 4% employ:es
. S S S compared to
6 |My manager demonstrates strong leadership skills 4.05 | 75% | 63% 12% 34% federal
My manager understands the benefits of maintaining a work/life |
7 |7 TE : 428 | 85% | 82% | 3% smployees agree
balance P ,
performance is
8 [Poor performance is effectively addressed 3.28 | 49% | 36% 13% effectively
managed.*
= |eadership recognized for how well the County managed the pandemic.
= Demonstrating flexibility
= Setting expectations for employees, residents and businesses
= Getting employees the materials & equipment needed protect their health and ensure their
safety — demonstrating their value to the County. !

*OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey



INFORMATION SHARING / WORK ENVIRONMENT

Information Sharing

9
10
I

13
14

I5

Avg

2020

2018

% Change

Information and knowledge are shared openly 3.54 | 62% | 55% 7%
My manager does a good job of sharing information 394 | 78% | 71% 7%
| have all the information | need to do my job 398 | 80% | 81% | -1%

Work Environment

12

78% |CC
employees
compared to

56% federal
employees are
satisfied with the
information

received.*

There is a strong feeling of teamwork and cooperation 381 | 72% | 66% 6%
| have the resources | need to do my job well 4.08 | 83% | 83% NC
The pace of the work enables me to do a good job 3.99 | 82% | 78% 4%
My workplace is safe 4.17 | 86% | 84% 2%

Information sharing — lower satisfaction across team leads and middle managers

= Staffs seeking ways to breakdown the silos across divisions and departments

Physical safety remains high after VB shooting and during the pandemic

*OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey




DIVERSITY, EQUITY, & INCLUSION

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion

Avg

2020

2018

% Change

| 6 |We work to attract, develop, and retain a diverse workforce 3.78 | 74% | 69% 5%
Senior management is genuinely interested in employee
3.54 | 58% | 56% 2%
opinions and ideas
I8 | The organization respects its employees 388 | 76% | 69% 7%
|9 |Policies for promotion and advancement are fair 3.37 | 53% | 54% | -1%
20 [My manager treats employees fairly 397 | 76% | 70% 6%
21 |l am comfortable sharing my opinions at work 382 | 76% | 71% 5%

74% |CC
employees
compared to 59%
federal employees
feel policies and
programs promote
diversity in the
workplace.

= Recently established Diversity and Inclusion resource group is working in partnership with HR to
create talent management initiatives, implement long-term strategies, and effect change within the

organization.




ACCOUNTABILITY & PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT L_/f/"!

Avg | 2020 | 2018 | % Change
22 |Senior management is held accountable for achieving results 3.67 | 63% | 54% 9% —< {\PMNMNG N
23 [My manager is always consistent when administering policies 3.80 | 72% | 66% 6% ::"" v ["'/MOMTONNG\"}
24 |My supervisor gives me praise and recognition 408 | 82% | 77% 5% \_ /Ma::;: ;i”g;de\ ,/
25 |l receive feedback that helps me improve my performance 397 | 79% | 75% 4% YV A
My manager is actively interested in my professional [ ramne | [ oeveLopnG |
26 3.82 | 70% | 65% 5% / \
development N N

= Accountability and Performance management drives employee engagement. It is

. . 82% JCC employees
important for leaders to set expectations and goals.

compared to 58% federal
employees are satisfied
with the recognition
received. 10

=  Employees need constant feedback to know if what they are doing matters.

*OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey



JOB SATISFACTION

Avg

2020

2018

% Change

Job Satisfaction

27
28
29
30

Overall job satisfaction 4.19 | 87% | 81% 6%
Satisfaction with pay and benefits 3.30 | 54% | 52% 2%
Satisfaction with career growth opportunities 3.50 | 58% | 57% | %
Satisfaction with current work-life balance 387 | 78% | 72% 6%

Employees recognize County’s support (i.e. leave donation and child care assistance)

Satisfied with recent changes to health care plan

D

Jamestown
1607

87% JCC employees
compared to 69% federal
employees are satisfied with
their job.

54% JCC employees
compared 63% federal
employees are satisfied with
their pay.

Compensation continues to be an issue. Perception the salaries are not competitive with other localities.

Career growth challenges: desire clear career paths for promotions and more professional development
opportunities.

*OPM 2019 Federal Employee Viewpoint Survey




NEXT STEPS

= As in 2018, use data to identify initiatives to address factors impacting employees’ dissatisfaction.

= Example include, changes in employee benefits (health care, leave, paid holidays); piloting a new emerging
leaders academy; and standardizing policies (inclement weather policy and telework).

= Directors are meeting with managers and team leads to identify focus areas for opportunities

= HR will use Directors’ input to identify county-wide initiatives

=  Then monitor & track progress of key initiatives

= Continue conversations with the workforce throughout the year



2020 EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT RESULTS

JAMES CITY COUNTY — BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

Human Resources
December 10,2020
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MINUTES
JAMES CITY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
WORK SESSION
County Government Center Board Room
101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
October 27,2020
4:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

Michael J. Hipple, Vice Chairman, Powhatan District
Ruth M. Larson, Berkeley District

P. Sue Sadler, Stonehouse District - via phone

John J. McGlennon, Roberts District

James O. Icenhour, Jr., Chairman, Jamestown District

Scott A. Stevens, County Administrator
Adam R. Kinsman, County Attorney

Mr. Icenhour asked for a motion to allow Ms. Sadler to participate in the meeting remotely,
due to an ongoing medical condition that prevented her attendance.

A motion to allow Ms. Sadler to participate remotely was made by Ruth Larson, the motion
result was Passed.

AYES: 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 1

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler

Ms. Sadler acknowledged her presence on the call.

C. BOARD DISCUSSIONS

Mr. Icenhour acknowledged Mr. Rich Krapf, Planning Commission Chairman, would call the
Planning Commission meeting to order.

At approximately 4:45 p.m., Mr. Krapf called the Planning Commission Working Group
(PCWG) October 27, 2020, meeting to order.

Mr. Paul Holt, Director of Community Development and Planning, called the roll.
ROLL CALL

Planning Commissioners Present:
Barbara Null

Julia Leverenz

Frank Polster

Jack Haldeman

Tim O’Connor

Rich Krapf



Planning Commissioners Absent:
Rob Rose

Briefing on the Engage 2045 Comprehensive Plan Update Process

Ms. Ellen Cook, Principal Planner, addressed the Board with a PowerPoint presentation on
the Engage 2045 Comprehensive Plan Update. Ms. Cook noted this update represented the
fourth check-in with the Board. She further noted Mr. Vlad Gavrilovic, Principal with EPR,
P.C., and Ms. Leigh Anne King, Director, Clarion Associates. Ms. Cook noted Ms. Ginny
Wertman, PCWG member and Acting Chair of the Community Participation Team (CPT) was
also in attendance. Ms. Cook further noted the significant progress the PCWG, CPT,
consultants, and staff had made in the Comprehensive Plan update since the May 2020
meeting. Ms. Cook noted the PowerPoint presentation focused on a summary of the second
round of public input and the scenario planning process results. She further noted two
frameworks, Revising the Plan and the Preferred Scenario, would be highlighted in the
presentation.

Ms. King addressed the Board highlighting the five-phase project process in the PowerPoint
presentation. She noted the community engagement process included four key components.
Ms. King noted public engagement in the process was a cumulative effort which was built on
the existing 2035 Comprehensive Plan, the 2019 Citizen Survey, Round One input, and the
Round Two input. She further noted two additional rounds of input were upcoming. Ms. King
continued the presentation with statistical breakdowns of key issues from the 2019 Citizen
Survey. She noted five public input priorities were developed from Round One of the Summit
on the Future: nature; community character; affordable housing; economic development; and
quality of life. Ms. King continued the presentation highlighting information in each of those five
key areas. She noted specifics from Round Two, which included a virtual assembly and online
questionnaires to gather additional input. She further noted the importance of education, and
while not a focus of a specific 2035 Comprehensive Plan goal, it was identified as an important
component of the community per the 2019 Citizen Survey.

Mr. Gavrilovic continued the presentation and addressed the scenario effort planning. He
noted two scenarios were developed with one showing current trends and the second showing
an alternative vision based on public input. He further noted both scenarios were run through
three computer models: land use indicators, transportation indicators, and economic and
facilities indicators. Mr. Gavrilovic noted the results were shared with the PCWG and the
public and incorporated into a questionnaire for citizen response. He continued the
PowerPoint presentation highlighting the results of the scenario testing and modeling
conclusions from the PCWG. Mr. Gavrilovic noted these results were shared with the public
through maps, images, and numbers, which were incorporated into an online questionnaire for
citizen preference on the scenarios. He further noted the process regarding the questionnaire in
the presentation, adding the input was very robust and thorough. Mr. Gavrilovic continued the
PowerPoint presentation with a statistical breakdown for both scenarios in the three areas of
maps, images, and numbers. He noted Scenario B was the preferred choice in all three areas
and a more site-specific evaluation will need to be done to create the actual Future Land Use
map. Mr. Gavrilovic noted the Round Two inputs were consistent with the 2019 Citizen
Survey and the Round One public input priorities. He further noted the CPT’s and PCWG’s
roles in the development of the information.

Ms. Wertman addressed the Board noting the coordination between the CPT and the Planning
Commission on the instruments to gather public input. She noted the numerous opportunities
for citizens to provide open-ended comments and the valuable information gathered from
those comments. She further noted CPT-planned in-person events were abandoned due to the
pandemic, but added social and digital media were used in that absence. Ms. Wertman noted



the use of advertising on the Williamsburg Area Transit Authority buses as well as live question
and answer sessions during virtual assembly. She further noted the use of the Williamsburg
Regional Library bookmobile for electronic survey access as well as paper copies upon
request through the Planning Division for citizens who may have electronic restrictions. Ms.
Wertman noted a significant decline in citizen participation even with those actions taken. She
further noted most of those participants indicated this was the first time they had been involved
in a County planning process. Ms. Wertman noted this was largely due to the outreach efforts
and the CPT would continue to find creative ways to engage citizens regarding participation
and feedback.

Mr. Icenhour thanked Ms. Wertman and asked for questions and/or comments from the
Board.

Mr. McGlennon noted the presentation was very helpful and useful. He further noted a clear
sense from citizens on what they did and did not want in the County. He asked about
scenarios regarding management of the population growth and the possible incorporation into
the next round.

Mr. Gavrilovic noted the scenarios had purposely held the populations constant in establishing
a standard baseline, but added population adjustments could be incorporated into policies and
actions.

Mr. Hipple noted more development appeared to be mostly in the Primary Service Area
(PSA) and possible changes to how the PSA is currently used. He further noted those changes
could potentially free up the rural lands and allow the rural character to remain intact. Mr.
Hipple noted reviewing if the PSA was truly in the right place with directional adjustments but
not size reduction. He further noted a potential protection zone for rural roads so no change
would occur in those areas.

Ms. Sadler asked if the pandemic had changed the timeline for the process. She inquired if
additional meetings would be factored into the timeline.

Ms. Tammy Rosario, Assistant Director of Community Development and Planning, noted
some adjustment had taken place with the overall timeline. She further noted the original
Round Two Public Input Session schedule had been impacted by a month. Ms. Rosario noted
the pandemic, in combination with the complicated nature of the material, had impacted the
schedule also. She further noted adjustments within the timeline to address the process as a
possible late summer Board consideration item. Ms. Rosario noted an approximate two-
month delay in the process to date.

Ms. Sadler thanked Ms. Rosario for the update. She inquired if citizens who had not
participated in the survey would have an opportunity to do so.

Ms. Rosario responded yes. She noted an extension of the public input period from three or
four to seven weeks. She further noted the CPT was currently considering that point.

Ms. Sadler asked if late arrivals to the process would feel their input was still important. She
stressed that citizen involvement was crucial.

Ms. Rosario responded yes the input would be valuable and welcome in the process. She
noted the educational aspect of the process so that each new participant would understand
and want to be involved.

Mr. McGlennon referenced Mr. Hipple’s comments on the PSA and the preservation of
agricultural area surrounding it. He noted a need to also protect natural areas within the PSA



too. He further noted reexamining property within the PSA for redevelopment and restoration.

Mr. Gavrilovic noted citizens had denoted areas for preservation on the Preserve Change Map
at the November 2019 Summit. He further noted the feedback reflected a wide range of
preservation in and out of the PSA and the specific features of that preservation.

Ms. Larson noted citizen input was paramount, but questioned if citizens fully understood the
process. She further noted input from the PCWG for changes to the Comprehensive Plan. Ms.
Larson inquired how to address people and let them know that not everything will be obtained
in this Comprehensive Plan. She questioned, based on past experience, if people were okay if
some things were addressed and they felt someone was listening to their input.

Ms. King addressed the point referencing a comment Mr. Hipple had made during work on
the Strategic Plan. She noted that not everyone would agree on all points, but if it was a good
consensus plan, that was the goal. Ms. King further noted listening to all input and building on
it. She noted the next steps in the process addressed specific policy direction and
implementation. Ms. King further noted transparency and open discussion were important.

Mr. Hipple noted finding the balance and harmony between development and greenspace. He
further noted the importance of those elements for citizens, developers, and the County.

Ms. Larson noted the importance of the things that were already established and could not be
changed. She further noted any change would be a process.

Ms. Cook noted Ms. King would continue the presentation by addressing Visions, Goals, and
Policies for the nine chapters of the Comprehensive Plan.

Ms. King noted in the PowerPoint presentation that the process was moving in Phase Three.
She further noted revision of the plan framework was based on the 2035 Comprehensive Plan
and encompassed Vision, Goals, Strategies, and Actions (GSAs). Ms. King continued the
presentation highlighting significant overlap and consistency in themes from the 2035 Vision
Statement which are seen in the current input process. She noted GSAs from the 2035
Comprehensive Plan and gave statistical information on each component. Ms. King further
noted that in analyzing the public input, both new policy ideas and enhancement of existing
policies became evident as noted with Land Use.

Ms. Larson asked what would be an example of the policy idea that stated ‘support a greater
mix of uses within or adjacent to existing and new neighborhoods.’

Ms. King noted this included more biking and walking opportunities between various
communities and not just within isolated communities.

Mr. Gavrilovic noted this addressed citizens’ responses for the opportunities to walk to
shopping, restaurants, or other amenities. He further noted potential redevelopment of areas as
mixed use to support those opportunities.

Ms. King continued the presentation noting policy considerations for Community Character.
She noted the next goal, Economic Development, received public input for focus on higher
paying jobs and industries. Ms. King further noted policy ideas for consideration with Housing,
which included clarification on the local housing market targets. She continued the presentation
addressing Transportation. Ms. King noted strong public support for additional biking and
walking facilities. She further noted Parks and Recreation and Public Facilities policy
considerations in the PowerPoint presentation. Ms. King addressed the final component of
Population Needs.



Mr. Gavrilovic noted a 50-page document, the Preferred Scenario Framework, was included
in the Agenda Packet. He further noted the presentation indicated the key ideas from the
Preferred Scenario Map, the alternative Scenario B. Mr. Gavrilovic discussed the six main
points from the citizen input, which included limiting new residential development in rural lands,
potential reduction of the PSA, redesignation of land use toward Mixed Use. He noted
Complete Communities would benefit from the Mixed Use designation to encompass walking
to shops, restaurants, and other amenities together within the community. Mr. Gavrilovic
continued the presentation highlighting additional planning concepts that embraced current
market trends and best practices in the profession.

Ms. Leverenz addressed the Board noting the Planning Commission’s review on the GSA
framework, which built upon the 2035 plan. She noted similarities and overlaps in the 2035
Vision Statement, but added there was enough variation in the public input themes to warrant
reviewing the language and organization of the Vision Statement. Ms. Leverenz cited the
Nature theme from the 2035 Vision Statement and the 2045 public input both included the
intent to protect sensitive features such as greenspace. She noted the public input also
referenced water quality and sea level rise. She further noted the PCWG felt that a revision of
the Vision Statement was needed using the input as a guide. Ms. Leverenz noted education as
an important factor to be considered in any revisions. She further noted watching the gap
areas, as seen during the PowerPoint presentation, particularly moving forward with the
Strategies and Actions in the Comprehensive Plan. Ms. Leverenz added if there was an area
the public felt was important, but did not think the County was there yet, that needed to be
considered. She noted Round Two public input brought new ideas forward, which the
Planning Commission added to as well. She further noted the importance of these ideas during
the review process.

Mr. Krapf addressed the Board and expressed his thanks for the opportunity to share the
PCWG’s thoughts on the Scenario Framework document. He noted the PCWG had spent
considerable time on this process, adding that it was new and very complex. He further noted
some of the PCWG’s work had included guiding the concepts for the scenario modeling
process, reviewing the indicator results for the two scenarios, developing a questionnaire with
the public in coordination with the CPT, and consideration of the questionnaire results and
concepts discussed within the framework document. Mr. Krapf noted the PCWG reviewed
the input and found significant support for the Scenario B model, which represented a
departure from the current trend in James City County. He further noted the next steps in the
PCWG’s review of policies and the Land Use map.

Mr. Icenhour inquired if there was any discussion or questions from the Board or the PCWG.
He noted the presentation that showed the gap analysis was enlightening. He further noted it
indicated areas where citizens liked the idea, but acknowledged the County was not there yet.
Mr. Icenhour noted he was very pleased with the presentation and results and felt confident
moving to the next step in the process.

Mr. Hipple noted he felt it was a well put together plan with good citizen information, but
added he was disappointed there had not been more participation. He further noted caution
regarding making things too tight and adjusting the PSA. He added he was for some growth to
keep things moving, but also wanted to protect the rural areas. Mr. Hipple stressed caution on
changing the land use, but supported limited growth that was managed and planned. He noted
he liked how the plan addressed accessibility to waterways and safer bike trails.

Ms. Larson noted the hard work that had been done. She further noted not just having a
Comprehensive Plan that had check boxes, but a real working plan on which to make
decisions. Ms. Larson expressed concern about how to be all things to all people and possible
Board actions and decisions going forward, particularly with land use. She noted attendance at
Round One of public input and the diverse age group that attended, but added the pandemic’s



impact on the schedule. Ms. Larson expressed hope that people would continue to stay
involved in the process. She thanked everyone for their involvement.

Mr. McGlennon thanked the PCWG, CPT, and the consultants for their hard work. He noted
the opportunity to rethink and envision new things as citizens provide input on how they want
things to be in the County. He noted as the process moved forward to make citizens aware of
the difficult choices that will make a better community. Mr. McGlennon noted affordable
housing is an area where citizens know tough decisions need to be made if particular policies
or needs within the community are valued. He further noted he felt the process was heading in
the right direction and looked forward to additional participation in future stages.

Ms. Sadler thanked everyone involved in the process and noted she felt they were moving in
the right direction. She further noted she and Mr. Hipple both lived in the rural part of the
County and she echoed his thoughts on development. Ms. Sadler noted citizen concern on
maintaining the rural character and its uniqueness. She further noted development and school
concerns.

Mr. Icenhour noted a clear message to move forward was being sent to move ahead with the
Preferred Scenario Framework. He further noted he was impressed with the presentation and
urged the group to keep up the good work.

Mr. Holt noted there were several housekeeping items for the Planning Commission to
address.

Mr. Krapf thanked the Board for the positive reinforcement.

Mr. Holt noted as the Planning Commission meeting this evening was a public meeting with a
physical quorum present, rather than a virtual meeting held under the County’s Continuity of
Government Ordinance, remote participation of Ms. Leverenz and Mr. O’Connor required
approval from a majority of the Planning Commission members physically present at the
evening’s meeting. Mr. Holt noted the approval for both could be done by the same motion
and vote. He recommended Mr. Krapf call for said motion and a voice vote would be
recorded for the minutes.

Mr. Krapf asked for a motion to accept the virtual participation of Ms. Leverenz, due to a
medical condition that prevents her from attending, and Mr. O'Connor, due to personal
reasons, as stated.

Ms. Null made the motion.

Mr. Krapf noted the vote passed unanimously. He asked for a motion to adjourn the PCWG
meeting until 4 p.m. on November 9.

Ms. Null made the motion.
Mr. Krapf noted the vote passed unanimously.

At approximately 6:04 p.m., Mr. Krapf adjourned the Planning Commission Working Group
meeting.

At approximately 6:04 p.m., Ms. Sadler left the Board of Supervisors meeting.

Contract Award and Lease-Purchase - Portable Radio Replacement



A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 1

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler

Fire Chief Ryan Ashe addressed the Board referencing the Contract Award resolution before
it. He noted these devices were used by both the Fire and Police Departments. He further
noted the current equipment was purchased in 2003-2004 as part of the regional radio system
upgrade. Chief Ashe noted difficulty in obtaining parts in addition to the units were at their end-
of-life stage. He further noted the replacements would be for Fire, Police, Sheriff’s Office, and
Emergency Communications. Chief Ashe noted enhanced technological features on the units.
He further noted originally this was funded as a cash purchase, but with COVID-19 and the
current financial climate and after discussion with Ms. Sharon Day, Director of Financial and
Management Services, and staff, it was determined a lease-purchase option was the best
route. Chief Ashe noted the resolution in the Agenda Packet allowed the County Administrator
to enter into the contract and transfer money from the Capital Improvements Program Fund to
the Debt Service Fund for the initial payment with the four additional payments to be included
in future budgets.

Ms. Larson noted it was impressive the units had lasted the duration, particularly with
technological advances. She inquired about the lifespan on the new models.

Chief Ashe noted 12-15 years was the expectation. He credited personnel for taking care of
their equipment as well as the maintenance program, but noted the department was excited
about the upgraded units.

Ms. Larson noted those technological advances were very important in connecting first
responders with the Call Center, both for the first responders and the citizens.

Mr. Icenhour noted Item No. 3, 2021 Legislative Agenda items would be moved to the end of
the Board Discussions.

Contract Award-JCC Marina Improvements

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 1

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler

Mr. John Carnifax, Director of Parks and Recreation, addressed the Board noting the Agenda
Packet contained a memorandum and resolution for a contract award for Phase One of the
Marina. He noted last year only one bid had been received, but three bids had been received
this year. Mr. Carnifax further noted Carolina Marine Structures, Inc. received the bid, adding
the company was currently working on the shoreline stabilization project at Chickahominy
Riverfront Park. He noted several site modifications due to budget constraints. Mr. Carnifax
further noted evaluation upon completion of Phase One to adjust Phase Two, which is slated
for 2023, in hopes of bringing some amenities back at that time.

Ms. Larson thanked Mr. Carnifax and staff for their work. She noted the Marina definitely
needed some work and attention and as the County owned it, she was appreciative it was

being addressed.

Mr. McGlennon asked about the anticipated completion date.



Mr. Carnifax noted as part of the negotiated price, the project was extended from 180 to 220
days. He further noted late spring was the anticipated timeline, but added it could extend to
June 2021.

Board Appropriation - Settlement at Powhatan Creek

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 1

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler

Ms. Toni Small, Director of Stormwater and Resource Protection, addressed the Board
regarding an appropriation request of $137,200 from a held surety account to an escrow
account. She noted the appropriation would address the remaining construction issues
associated with Phase Two of the Settlement at Powhatan Creek. Ms. Small noted any unused
funds would return to the financial institution once the project was complete.

Mr. Icenhour inquired what the remaining work entailed. He asked if Best Management
Practices (BMPs) were part of the work.

Ms. Small noted BMPs were part of it, adding the Phase Two punch list addressed specific
areas of work. She further noted stabilization, several sinkholes, and other elements were also
part of that work.

Mr. McGlennon asked if a contractor was lined up pending the Board’s action for approval of
the appropriation.

Ms. Small noted coordination with Mr. Barry Moses, Capital Projects Engineer. She further
noted he was ready to move on the project pending setup of the appropriation. Ms. Small
noted December-January was the anticipated start date.

Mr. McGlennon asked if she anticipated completion of the project in early 2021.

Ms. Small confirmed yes.

FY?2021 First Quarter Financial Update

Ms. Day addressed the Board regarding the County’s AAA bond rating and recent good
news. Ms. Day further noted the three bond rating agencies (Moody’s, Fitch, and Standard &
Poor’s) periodically performed ‘surveillance’ as part of their due diligence in which they
request financial information and operational updates. She noted Fitch had contacted her
requesting this information, particularly how the County had been impacted by the COVID-19
Pandemic and the County’s response to it. Ms. Day further noted they were particularly
interested in how the County ended last fiscal year and if any Fund Balance had been used to
balance last year’s books or to balance this year’s budget. She noted she was proud to
respond that Fiscal Year 2020 (FY 2020) ended with a surplus, all due to expenditure savings
despite the revenue shortfall in addition to balancing the FY 2021 budget without the use of
any Fund Balance. Ms. Day noted the budget had been built in anticipation of reduced
spending. She further stated on October 26, 2020, she received notification that there would
be no change to the County’s rating or its positive outlook and that the County’s AAA rating
was upheld. Ms. Day noted this positive note spoke highly of both the Board’s leadership and
that of Mr. Stevens. She further noted it reinforced the team effort and that the departments
played a crucial role in response to the pandemic with curtailed spending without a drastic cut



to services. Ms. Day noted collaboration with County partners, in particular the Williamsburg-
James City County (WJCC) School Division. She further noted difficulties and sustainability,
but added that it seemed to point toward the right direction in the current circumstances.

The Board thanked Ms. Day.

Ms. Day noted the County’s General Fund or Operating Revenues on a cash basis as well as
an accrual basis in a PowerPoint presentation. She further noted the cash basis reflected actual
cash received so far this year. Ms. Day noted the revenue downfall was about 7.8% or $2.4
million. She further noted the budget reflected a 10% reduction so currently the County was
trending slightly better than budget. Ms. Day continued the PowerPoint presentation
highlighting the accrual basis, which she noted are figures that will be audited and rolled into
the County’s General Fund. Ms. Day noted in the presentation assumptions on the timeline for
the hardest hits in revenue as well as the slow recovery timeline. She further noted the
importance of the updates to monitor the 10% reduction and time to react and adjust if
needed. Ms. Day noted the biggest contributors to the variances in the budget and the actual
results are the other local taxes and charges for services. She further noted a more detailed
look at the other local taxes as that represented the category most impacted by tourism
revenue. She added that the charges for services were impacted by reduction in medic
transport fees and Parks and Recreation fees from membership, camps, and programs. Ms.
Day noted in the presentation a cash comparison from the same time period from last year
compared to the current year. She further noted the local taxes were comprised of the sales,
lodging, and meals and those were impacted the most by the loss of tourism revenue. Ms. Day
continued the presentation noting tax collection as remitted on the state and local levels. She
noted local sales tax were down about 15%. She further noted the volatility associated with
collection of the Historic Triangle 1% Sales Tax with the amounts up and down across
different months. Ms. Day noted FMS did not have details on the businesses impacting this,
but guessed late payments from businesses could be a factor. She further noted though tax
revenue was lower than last year, and the sales tax was doing better than the reduced revenue
budget. She added the lodging and meal taxes were taking a harder hit.

Mr. McGlennon asked if the cash basis and accrual basis numbers were related to the overall
decline in revenue.

Ms. Day confirmed yes.
Mr. McGlennon asked if this was where it was all happening.

Ms. Day confirmed yes. She noted a significant decline in personal property tax had not been
seen, but added only one of the two collections had been made to date.

Mr. McGlennon referenced a previous slide on state and local funding and questioned if the
balance reflected any Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act money.

Ms. Day noted the CARES Act money was in a different fund and had not been co-mingled
with the General Operation numbers.

Mr. Icenhour inquired if the June to August deferral on the personal property payment had
affected the accrual rate. He asked if the deferral had not been made would the revenue be
closer to the 10% mark.

Ms. Day confirmed yes. She cited an accrual change from 45 days to 60 days in the revenue
collection. She noted a significant one-time refund to a business was the primary reason for the
lower amount. Ms. Day continued the presentation highlighting trend data showing monthly
breakdowns for the respective taxes from the current year compared to last year. She noted



the next part of the presentation addressed the spending side of the budget. Ms. Day further
noted the top expense was 54% for the School Division followed by County payroll. She
continued the PowerPoint presentation detailing each department’s spending as well as
payments to outside services, which are done at the beginning of the year. Ms. Day noted the
restriction on expenditures remained in place due to the uncertainty surrounding the COVID-
19 Pandemic.

Ms. Larson asked if a specific benchmark was used when departmental budget requests were
made.

Ms. Day confirmed yes.

Ms. Larson asked if the benchmarks were being checked before moving forward with the next
year’s budget.

Mr. Stevens noted if specific items are benchmarked, then yes that can be monitored. He
further noted the items included departmental salaries, projects and reports, and service. Mr.
Stevens noted tracking service to the community adding Parks and Recreation did that very
well regarding camps and various programs as well as General Services and the convenience
centers.

Ms. Larson thanked Ms. Day for the financial updates. Ms. Larson noted a recent
promotional piece from Busch Gardens and inquired if there was any update.

Mr. Stevens noted a recent conversation with Mr. Kevin Lembke, Park President, Busch
Gardens Williamsburg, regarding some programming that would take place through December.
He further noted Mr. Lembke’s comment on some progress on capacity, but not a significant
increase. Mr. Stevens further noted Mr. Lembke was pleased with any increase as it would be
helpful to the park and was awaiting news on the possibility.

2021 Legislative Agenda

Mr. Kinsman addressed the Board regarding the compilation of items for the 2021 Legislative
Agenda to be presented to the General Assembly. He noted a review of the Board’s previous
legislation and what actions had occurred with it. Mr. Kinsman noted the first item focused on
the distribution of online sales tax by physical address not zip code for account reconciliation.
He further noted that item had not been picked up by any legislator. Mr. Kinsman noted the
second item involved designation of Special Conservators of the Peace in the definition of
criminal justice agency. He further noted this allowed County Park Rangers access to Virginia
Criminal Information Network (VCIN). Mr. Kinsman noted no legislator had picked up that
item, but he would try another direction. He further noted the next item addressed a County
Code amendment to prohibit e-cigarette store locations within 1,000 feet of a public school.
He added that item had not been picked up either. Mr. Kinsman noted the fourth item
addressed a County Code amendment to allow taxation on amusement machines that take
payment in forms other than coins. He added that would not be one to potentially pursue in
light of other items. He further noted the next item addressed amendment of the Virginia Code
regarding requirement of absentee voting record by precinct if more than 25 votes were cast.
Mr. Kinsman noted this item was supported by Delegate Amanda Batten and had made it to a
House of Representatives’ subcommittee where it remained on the table. He further noted the
County’s General Registrar, Dianna Moorman, had strong opposition to this item.

Mr. McGlennon noted he did not understand the objection as he felt the information was
already in the record. He further noted the information would need to be reported, but
collection would already be done.



Mr. Kinsman asked the Board’s thoughts on the online sales tax, e-cigarette store locations,
and absentee voting special reports.

Mr. Icenhour asked if any of the legislators would be willing to pick up any or all of the three
items.

Ms. Larson noted the General Registrar’s opposition to the Board’s request to move forward
on the absentee voting.

Mr. Kinsman noted he would talk with Ms. Moorman.
Discussion ensued on the point.

Mr. Kinsman noted he would retain that point and have Ms. Moorman join him at the next
meeting to discuss it. He further noted the additional legislative items to be considered for the
General Assembly’s 2021 agenda included an item Mr. Hipple requested for a provision to
add an increased litter tax. Mr. Kinsman noted the tax, which was on retailers, wholesalers,
and manufacturers, is collected by the Commonwealth, but 95% of it is delivered back to
localities.

Mr. McGlennon noted the action would be a request to the state to raise the tax.

Mr. Kinsman confirmed yes. He noted it was taxation at the source of the trash and not at the
individual(s) who distributes it on the roads, but added the funding would hopefully help clean
up the County. He further noted Mr. Hipple requested a provision that localities require
sprinkler systems in residential houses. Mr. Kinsman noted James City County was not the
first County to consider this and he had researched it. He further noted this point generally fell
under housing standards within the Commonwealth’s Department of Housing and Community
Development. Mr. Kinsman provided background and update on this requirement elsewhere
in the state.

Mr. Hipple noted jurisdictional authority, not a statewide one. He further noted there were
some provisions that should be statewide, but also allowed for some decision flexibility at the
local level too.

Mr. Kinsman noted he would review the County Code. He further noted this would be a
unique section of the Code in terms of directing construction outside of the Uniform Statewide
Building Code.

Discussion ensued.

Mr. Kinsman noted the next item was requested by Ms. Larson. He further noted it addressed
imposition of stiffer penalties for violation of motor vehicle with loose loads on highways. Mr.
Kinsman added this involved a mandate that such loads be covered. He noted the penalty was
a Class IV misdemeanor which is a fine of not more than $250. He further noted Class III was
$500, Class IT was $1,000 with the possibility of jail, and Class I was up to $2,500.

Ms. Larson felt this was both a litter and a safety issue.

Mr. Kinsman asked if she had a magical number to assign to this request.

Ms. Larson noted $2,000 to $500.

Mr. Kinsman noted the next item was also at Ms. Larson’s request and it addressed an



increased assessment for Air BnB properties. He further noted discussion with Mr. Jon
Fountain, Director of Real Estate Assessments. Mr. Kinsman noted the assessment is based
on the highest and best use theory and if the assessment were switched from residential based
to commercial based, the potential for reduced tax revenue would be the result unless the
property owner made a large amount of money for the Air BnB use. He further noted he and
Mr. Fountain ‘ran the numbers’ and determined the property or properties would need to be
rented almost daily and at a high charge to see the net taxable income exceed the charge as
use as a residential home.

Ms. Larson asked if this meant no double dipping was allowed in terms of how the house was
used.

Mr. Kinsman confirmed yes.

Discussion ensued on properties with Special Use Permits for rental, commercial use, and tax
collection.

Mr. Kinsman noted a section of the Virginia Code allowed localities to operate an Air BnB
registry. He further noted James City County did not have a registry, but it could have one if
desired. Mr. Kinsman noted if an Air BnB was operating and not on the registry, a fee could
be imposed on the unregistered unit.

Discussion ensued on establishing a registry and monitoring legal versus illegal Air BnBs within
the County.

Ms. Larson noted she would talk with Mr. Stevens to address some of these points and
review options.

Mr. Kinsman noted the next item, also requested by Ms. Larson, addressed increased
assessments for residences that are unfinished for an extended period of time. He further
noted, after conferring with Mr. Fountain, that unfinished homes are assessed on the stage of
the last approved construction regardless of the length of that stage. Mr. Kinsman noted that
adding a penalty for the extra time would be difficult in keeping everything fair and equitable.
He further noted Mr. Fountain would review the unfinished homes and check the status for
assessments.

Ms. Larson questioned fair and equitable assessments of the neighboring homes to the
unfinished homes. She noted the impact on home value when a home sat unfinished for as
many as 27 years.

Mr. Kinsman noted there were possible provisions in the Uniform Statewide Building Code
where this point could be addressed. He further noted the County was doing that and had filed
a case to test that law.

Mr. Hipple noted some localities charged for Certificate of Occupancy (CO). He further noted
if a home was incomplete, a temporary CO could be granted and a fee would be charged

incrementally until completion. Mr. Hipple questioned a state law that addressed this fee.

Mr. Kinsman noted it was probably a fee charged every three months or so to renew the
temporary CO. He further noted that was something he would review.

Mr. Hipple noted the incremental fee might motivate people to finish building.

Mr. Kinsman noted the next item was requested by Mr. Icenhour. He further noted it
addressed amendment of the Virginia Code to explicitly give Board of Supervisors the ability



to impose sunset clauses on use permits. Mr. Kinsman noted the State Code explicitly stated
Boards of Zoning Appeals had the ability, but not specifically Boards of Supervisors.

Mr. Icenhour requested Mr. Kinsman pursue that item.

Mr. Kinsman noted the next item was requested by Ms. Sadler and addressed a change to the
State Code which allowed the Commissioner of the Revenue to release the names of all
businesses in the County. He further noted a high level of exclusions to which the
Commissioner was held, adding this was currently not one of them.

Mr. McGlennon asked in this case could the Board request the Commissioner communicate its
particular message to those businesses.

Mr. Kinsman noted he had not thought of it that way.

Mr. McGlennon noted it would not require changing the law, but instead use the Commissioner
of the Revenue to convey the message.

Mr. Kinsman noted he would speak with Mr. Richard Bradshaw, Commissioner of the
Revenue. He further noted Items No. 8-10 were probably page 2 positions rather than direct
legislation. Mr. Kinsman noted Item No. 8 addressed a request to the General Assembly for
additional 9-1-1 funding or to additional funding to offset the Next Gen 911. He further noted
Item No. 9 was a request from Ms. Larson for General Assembly funding for the General
Registrar’s Office.

Ms. Larson noted the number of laws regarding voting, but added it was unfunded mandates.
She further noted the General Registrar’s salary was set by the state and the County needed
some relief in that area.

Mr. McGlennon noted citizens were pleased with these changes and would likely continue to
use them more.

Discussion ensued on funding assistance, space limitations, and other factors.

Mr. Kinsman noted the last item was requested by Ms. Moorman. He further noted she
requested the Board take the position that the General Assembly should not approve the
proposed change to extend polling place hours on Election Day. He detailed the proposed
change and referenced senior citizen poll workers and the extended time for them.

Ms. Larson questioned poll worker participation as once you start work, you stay.
Mr. Kinsman confirmed yes.

Ms. Larson noted the poor lighting at many of the elementary school polling places due to
limited nighttime events.

Discussion ensued regarding polling hours.

Mr. Kinsman noted the remaining 2020 items were the same as previously. He further noted
some wording changes to the Eastern State Hospital surplus property item. Mr. Kinsman
noted the next steps for preparing the 2021 Legislative Agenda and the timeline. He further
noted that at the November Work Session, the items would be presented to the legislators to
see who would carry which items.Discussion ensued on the legislative deadline, average daily
membership in schools, and other points.



D.

E.

F.

BOARD REQUESTS AND DIRECTIVES

Mr. McGlennon noted the passing of one of his constituents, Mr. Roy Hock, of COVID on
October 25, 2020. He extended his condolences.

Ms. Larson noted she, Mr. Stevens, and representatives from Economic Development
recently attended the groundbreaking ceremony for The Maine, an event venue across from
Governor’s Land. She further noted The Maine anticipated opening next year. She noted the
Burlington Plantation, an event venue on Route 5 in Charles City County, was booked every
weekend of the year. She further noted it was an outdoor venue, adding she felt The Maine
would also do quite well. Ms. Larson welcomed them to the County and the Berkeley District.
She noted she had a Virginia Peninsula Jail meeting which addressed how well the
Superintendent and staff handled any COVID-19 cases there. Ms. Larson reminded her
fellow Board members of the upcoming Finance meeting with the Tourism Council and
welcomed any to attend the open meeting. She noted the recent joint meeting of the Board of
Supervisors, the City of Williamsburg, and the WJCC School Board. Ms. Larson further
noted in the current uncertain times, the County and its citizens were to be commended for its
contribution to education. She noted the County was one of 46 localities that exceed the
100% mark in this area with the County at 115%. Ms. Larson further noted the continued
work of the three entities moving forward.

Mr. Hipple noted updates to the various Transportation groups, as well as the Finance and
Budget meetings. He further noted a Bond Letting of $600 million through the Hampton Roads
Traffic Advisory Committee, which secures another part of the Hampton Roads Bridge Tunnel.
Mr. Hipple noted the amazing amount of money it takes to do transportation projects. He
further noted the next Bond Letting schedule for 2021 would be approximately $1.3 billion.

Mr. Icenhour noted the recent Mayors and Chairs virtual meeting with James City County
serving as the host. He further noted the group was always looking for items that could be
worked on collectively. Mr. Icenhour noted the boat trail and indicated Mr. Stevens would
address that point. He further noted the Board’s invitation to the Hampton Roads Ultility and
Heavy Contractors Association’s social event.

Mr. Stevens noted he had no County Administrator’s report, but wanted to follow up on the
boat trail of the birthplace of America. He further noted it had been part of a previous study
which linked bicycle and pedestrian paths that connect to the Capital Trail and down to Fort
Monroe and the City of Hampton. Mr. Stevens noted the County Administration Officers as
well as the Mayors and Chairs of the different localities were discussing the pieces along the
route. He further noted the City of Newport News was working on incorporation of a part as
well as James City County and other localities. Mr. Stevens noted the collaborative efforts for
funding to assist with the project.

CLOSED SESSION

None.

ADJOURNMENT

Adjourn until 5 p.m. on November 10, 2020 for the Regular Meeting

A motion to Adjourn was made by Michael Hipple, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 4 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 1

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler



At approximately 7:16 p.m., Mr. Icenhour adjourned the Board of Supervisors.

Deputy Clerk
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MINUTES
JAMES CITY COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS
REGULAR MEETING
County Government Center Board Room
101 Mounts Bay Road, Williamsburg, VA 23185
November 10, 2020
5:00 PM

A. CALL TO ORDER

Michael J. Hipple, Vice Chairman, Powhatan District
Ruth M. Larson, Berkeley District

P. Sue Sadler, Stonehouse District - via phone

John J. McGlennon, Roberts District

James O. Icenhour, Jr., Chairman, Jamestown District

Scott A. Stevens, County Administrator
Adam R. Kinsman, County Attorney

Mr. Icenhour requested a motion to allow Ms. Sadler to participate remotely, due to an illness
which did not allow her attendance.

A motion to allow Ms. Sadler to Participate Remotely was made by Ruth Larson, the motion
result was Passed.

AYES:4 NAYS:0 ABSTAIN:0 ABSENT: I

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon

Absent: Sadler

Mr. Icenhour welcomed Ms. Sadler to the meeting.

Ms. Sadler acknowledged her presence on the call.

B. ROLL CALL
C. MOMENT OF SILENCE

D. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Ms. Peg Boarman, Clean County Commission Chair, led the Board and citizens in the Pledge
of Allegiance

E. PRESENTATIONS
1. Colonial Soil and Water Conservation District Report

Mr. Douglas Hall, District Representative, noted fellow District Representative Mr. Robert
Lund, Jr., was unable to attend the meeting. He introduced Ms. Robyn Goad, Urban
Conservationist, and Mr. James Wallace, District Manager, and gave an overview of the
PowerPoint slideshow included in the Agenda Packet. In conclusion, he expressed his thanks
to the Board of Supervisors and the community for their support and looked forward to a
continued partnership.

Mr. McGlennon expressed his thanks to Mr. Hall for the presentation and the work that



Colonial Soil and Water Conservation District has done for the community over the years. He
acknowledged changes in the ability to hold public meetings due to the COVID-19 Pandemic
and expressed kudos for the amount of work done with relatively little funding, especially the
farm plots located at Warhill High School.

Mr. Hall commended Mr. Wallace and his staff for their exceptional work.
Ms. Larson echoed those same comments and stressed the importance of the Turf Program.

Mr. Hipple inquired if anyone had reached out to local landscape companies regarding
products used and the environment; as well as suggested a possible lunch and learn meeting.

2. Greater Williamsburg Small Business Relief Fund - Update

Ms. Sadler stated that earlier in the year when speaking with local business owners, it became
obvious that financial assistance would be extremely beneficial to those experiencing economic
hardships resulting from the COVID-19 Pandemic. She discussed the Board having
unanimously adopted a resolution in May 2020, authorizing/appropriating $500,000 to the
Greater Williamsburg Small Business Relief Fund through the Williamsburg Community
Foundation in partnership with the Virginia 30 Day Fund, to support County small businesses
whose operations and revenues were negatively impacted by the Executive Order restrictions
and limitations. She noted the partnership with the Virginia 30 Day Fund has provided funding
to date for 110 James City County small businesses representing a diverse variety of
industries. She further noted additional funds remain available and applications are still being
accepted; for more information call the Office of Economic Development (OED) at 253-
6690. She expressed kudos to the OED and Communications Team who put together an
amazing video highlighting one of the recipients of the Virginia 30 Day Fund.

The Board members and audience watched a brief video highlighting Sweethaven Lavender of
Williamsburg, the 100th recipient of the Virginia 30 Day Fund. Ms. Kerry Messer shared
some of the tangible ways the grant made a difference in the business and broader community.

F. PUBLIC COMMENT

1. Ms. Boarman, 17 Settlers Lane, addressed the Board in regard to trash. She appealed to
everyone to take pride in how we view our County, roadways, highways, and parking lots
regarding trash that should be contained in receptacles and keeping the community clean. She
referenced Veterans Day and expressed her thanks and gratitude to every veteran for their
service. She recognized that the Police Department had been featuring its veterans on
Facebook and expressed her thanks as they continue to protect and keep everyone safe. She
applauded all the families for their sacrifices, especially the current active-duty military families
and expressed her thanks to each Board member for serving the community.

G. CONSENT CALENDAR

1.  Minutes Adoption
A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

The motion for approval of the minutes included the following meetings:



- September 22, 2020, Work Session
- October 13, 2020, Regular Meeting
- October 26, 2020, Joint Meeting

2. Acceptance of Funds - Virginia Forfeited Asset Sharing Program - $1,665

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

3. Grant Award - Patrick Leahy Bulletproof Vest Partnership - $39,200

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

4.  Grant Award - USC Schwarzenegger Institute’s Democracy Fund Initiative - $20,000

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

5. Olde Towne Medical and Dental Center Addition of a Development and Communications
Assistant Position

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Ms. Larson inquired about the positions in regard to the relationship between Olde Towne and
the Colonial Services Board.

Mr. Stevens felt there have been some ongoing conversations and introduced Mr. Aaron
Thompson, Executive Director of Olde Towne Medical and Dental Center.

Mr. Thompson noted this is currently in the preliminary stage and briefly discussed the
establishment of two working groups between the Colonial Behavioral Health Board and the
Olde Towne Medical and Dental Center Board.

6.  Olde Towne Medical and Dental Center Addition of a Full-Time Dental Director

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

7. Olde Towne Medical and Dental Center Addition of a Part-Time Medical Director

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

H. PUBLIC HEARING(S)

Mr. Icenhour stated Mr. Tim O’Connor was the Planning Commission Representative this
evening.



Ordinance to Amend County Code Section 15-26

A motion to Approve was made by John McGlennon, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Ms. Elizabeth Parman, Assistant County Attorney, gave an overview of the memorandum and
Ordinance included in the Agenda Packet.

Mr. McGlennon inquired about any charges being filed.

Ms. Parman replied she was not presently aware of any.

Note - Continued remarks made by Ms. Parman were inaudible.
Mr. Icenhour opened the Public Hearing.

As there were no registered speakers, Mr. Icenhour closed the Public Hearing.

SUP-20-0016. Norge Solar Farm SUP Amendment

A motion to Approve was made by Michael Hipple, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Mr. Alex Baruch, Principal Planner, gave an overview of the staff report and resolution
included in the Agenda Packet.

Mr. O’Connor stated it was a unanimous vote by the Planning Commission to extend the
commencement of construction expiration date by 12 months as Dominion Energy, Inc. was
confident it could make the project happen in a 12-month time period.

Mr. Icenhour opened the Public Hearing.

As there were no registered speakers, Mr. Icenhour closed the Public Hearing.

SUP-20-0015. 3179 Chickahominy Road Family Subdivision

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Mr. Baruch gave an overview of the staff report and resolution included in the Agenda Packet.

Ms. Larson referenced a previous case where driveways were an issue and wanted to make
certain that would not be a concern moving forward.

Mr. Baruch replied there is an existing access easement which will be extended to this lot.
Mr. Hipple discussed another case where a family subdivision gave access for the right to

come in and out, and the hardships involved when attempting to sell the property. He
suggested looking down the road in case someone would want to sell their piece of the



property and discussed the potential to possibly put an advertisement on the front portion of
the property. He further suggested including something in the Family Subdivision Rules and
Regulations that would allow an individual the right to sell the portion of a property that legally
belongs to them if so desired.

Mr. Icenhour asked Mr. Kinsman if there was anything to look at in the future regarding such a
scenario. Mr. Icenhour opened the Public Hearing.

1. Mr. Payten Harcum, 3179 Chickahominy Road, addressed the Board in regard to this
item. Mr. Harcum stated the location map included in the Agenda Packet did not show the
access road mentioned and noted a 20-foot easement.

General discussion ensued.

As there were no other speakers, Mr. Icenhour closed the Public Hearing.

I.  BOARD CONSIDERATION(S)

1.

Initiation of Consideration of Amendments to the Zoning Ordinance to Consider Contractors’
Offices and Storage in Planned Unit Development Districts

A motion to Approve was made by Sue Sadler, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Ms. Christy Parrish, Zoning Administrator, gave an overview of the memorandum and
resolution included in the Agenda Packet.

Mr. McGlennon clarified this is not currently permitted in the Planned Unit Development;
however, this would allow it to be utilized with a special use permit.

Ms. Parrish replied that has yet to be determined and is something the Planning Commission
and Policy Committee would iron out.

Mr. McGlennon commented this is a question of whether or not to include this kind of use, and
then the Planning Commission would consider any type of limitations on that use or how

broadly the use may be in place.

Ms. Parrish replied correct.

Fiscal Year 2021 Budget Restoration Appropriation - $1,796,000

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.

AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Ms. Sharon Day, Director of Financial and Management Services (FMS), gave an overview
of the memorandum, resolution, and PowerPoint slideshow included in the Agenda Packet.
She noted the Executive Leadership Team was in attendance if the Board had any questions.

Mr. Hipple inquired about travel and training.

Mr. Stevens responded there has been regional travel as well as other travel done on a case-



by-case basis and briefly discussed a request to restore travel from Economic Development
regarding future trips with the State Economic Development Team. He noted conversations

with department heads in regard to training that discouraged travel outside of the Richmond

and Hampton Roads area.

Ms. Day stated that details submitted from the vast majority of various departments noted
virtual training being utilized due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.

Mr. Hipple noted he wanted the public to be aware that staff was not traveling and expressed
kudos for doing a good job trying to save money.

Mr. McGlennon agreed a lot of credit goes to FMS staff, all the County departments, and
County Administration, for the careful monitoring of funding and getting through the worst of
financial impacts successfully.

Ms. Larson expressed her appreciation for doing more with less as well as her desire for
organizations that are traveling to hold their conferences in James City County.

Establishment of One Full-Time Regular Position

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Mr. Stevens gave an overview of the memorandum and resolution included in the Agenda
Packet.

Ms. Larson expressed her appreciation of the time and effort Mr. Stevens put into speaking
with each Board member regarding this position. She noted its importance to the County and
expressed kudos to Mr. Stevens for his efforts of always working toward continuous

improvement.

Mr. Icenhour extended his thanks to Mr. Stevens for his efforts working with staff and the
Board.

Authorization of Two Percent General Wage Increase

A motion to Approve was made by Ruth Larson, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0

Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Mr. Stevens gave an overview of the memorandum and resolution included in the Agenda
Packet.

Ms. Larson inquired if the Superintendent of the schools had brought a plan before the School
Board.

Mr. Stevens replied he thought she was recommending a percent and a half along with a $500
bonus.

Ms. Larson noted realizing some savings back from the schools.

Mr. McGlennon noted a discrepancy between what is being provided to County staff and



perhaps revisiting the question of helping the schools with supplies.

5. 2021 Legislative Agenda

A motion to Approve was made by Michael Hipple, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

Mr. Kinsman gave an overview of the memorandum and resolution included in the Agenda
Packet. He stated there were no changes from what the Board had at its work session other
than he formalized them for the Board. He explained that the first three items listed under Part
1. Legislation Introduced on Behalf of the County are carryovers and noted the last four are
new items. He noted that everything listed under Part I1. Position/Legislation Supported by
the County is a carryover except for the last item.

Mr. Hipple remarked that most of the time none of these get carried over, therefore; if we get
one or two we are pretty lucky. He stated perhaps more would be picked up if the list was cut
down. He suggested keeping Items 1-5, 1-6, and 1-7 under Part I and keeping Items 1-3, 1-
6, and 1-8 under Part II. He asked his fellow Board members for their feedback.

Mr. Icenhour relayed concerns from when this was adopted last year and then sent out to
legislators. He noted there was no effort to make any direct contact with supervisors and
legislators to talk about this prior to the work session.

General discussion ensued.

Mr. McGlennon stated he would like the items to remain as listed and recognized they could
be prioritized in order to be on record as positions the Board can support if movement on
them is seen. He discussed the question of reporting votes by precinct, noting the central
absentee precinct had the vast majority of all the votes in the County and no idea of how the
individual precincts actually voted in the last election. He predicted these types of issues could
continue in the future with early voting periods for citizens.

Mr. Icenhour agreed and recognized that it has also become an issue with others in the
Commonwealth. He discussed reaching out to members of the Electoral Board and
commented he would prefer to leave it in the legislative agenda due to it affecting many
individuals in the County.

Mr. Hipple referred to Part I1. Item 1-4 NONPARTISAN REDISTRICTING and stated this
had already been taken care of and could be removed from the list.

Mr. Kinsman suggested a motion to adopt the resolution with the amendment to remove 1-4
from Part II.

J.  BOARD REQUESTS AND DIRECTIVES

Ms. Sadler offered her thanks to Ms. Dianna Moorman, General Registrar, and her team, for
doing an amazing job with the election process in James City County. She emphasized the long
hours and hard work involved, noting her appreciation for such efforts. She spoke of having
missed being able to work the polls this year and seeing the citizens who came out to vote.

Mr. McGlennon mirrored Ms. Sadler’s appreciation for the hard work by the election officials,
starting with the Registrar, but also including all of the individuals who worked many hours to
make the election successful. He noted positive comments from citizens being overwhelming in



regard to the convenience of an early voting process and options that were available. He
stated he attended sessions of the Virginia Association of Counties (VACo) which held very
interesting presentations. He reported positive news coming out of the analysis of the state’s
financial situation and commented there may be additional positive news down the line in terms
of the economic recovery in the state.

Ms. Larson expressed her appreciation to all the volunteers who worked Election Day and
Pre-Election Day. She discussed pondering a scenario where an Independent who perhaps is
unable to “man a booth” during the days leading up to an election versus an individual who
represents a party and can reach out to a voter walking into a Voting Center. She questioned
the need for the number of polling facilities that were used, noting low walk-in traffic in her
precinct and expense involved.

Mr. Stevens stated he did not currently have an answer, but would be happy to speak with
Ms. Moorman regarding early voting in the future and include that concern as part of the
conversation.

Ms. Larson acknowledged her disappointment with the legislators who did not bother to pick
up any of the pieces of legislation that were offered and questioned if they gathered any
legislation from other localities. She stressed the Board of Supervisors represents their
community and the legislators are headed to Richmond as our representatives. She
emphasized a lot of time and effort went into the legislation from the Board, the Virginia
Municipal League, and VACo. She noted she was happy to follow through with the plan to
reach out but questioned what to do this year if nothing gets picked up.

Mr. Hipple extended his condolences to the family of Mr. Douglas Haller on his recent passing
and cited several accomplishments Mr. Haller achieved during his lifetime. He noted the
Hampton Roads Bridge-Tunnel groundbreaking ceremony, acknowledging the Governor, the
Secretary of Transportation, and representatives from the Virginia Department of
Transportation (VDOT) presence. He promoted the viewing of VDOT’s website which
displays the new bridges and tunnel in an interesting video. Mr. Hipple referenced the family
subdivision previously mentioned and “For Sale” signage being allowed to be put up if a
member decides to sell their property.

Mr. Icenhour referenced the Chamber of Business Council and commented that all Board
members received an invitation to the virtual award meeting to be held November 14, 2020.
He noted eight out of 15 upcoming businesses within the James City County community had
been selected for the award. He discussed being involved with the Military Affairs Committee
and noted a successful fundraiser project that raised enough money to offer $300 spending
money to 16 young military enlisted individuals being sent home for Christmas. He noted the
cancellation of this year’s Christmas Parade. He pointed out local events occurring on
November 11, 2020, such as: his afternoon guest appearance on radio station WMBG; local
veterans placing flags on veterans' graves in Williamsburg Memorial Park; and a 10:30 a.m.
celebration at the Bell Tower located in New Town where attendees are asked to wear a
mask and social distance. Mr. Icenhour acknowledged the large amount of veterans in the
community and asked the community to please thank them for their service if the opportunity
should arise.

K. REPORTS OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR

Mr. Stevens expressed his thanks to Mr. Icenhour and his fellow veterans for their services to
our country. He noted that on November 11, 2020, County offices, including the
Williamsburg-James City County Courthouse, would be closed in observance of Veterans
Day. He stated the James City County Recreation Center, libraries, parks, and convenience



centers will be open.

Ms. Larson referenced a social media post and asked for clarification regarding the opening
and/or closing of area parks.

Mr. Stevens replied it was his understanding that they would all be open, but he would clarify
that information.

L. CLOSED SESSION
None.

M. ADJOURNMENT

1.  Adjourn until 4 p.m. on November 24, 2020 for the Work Session
A motion to Adjourn was made by Michael Hipple, the motion result was Passed.
AYES: 5 NAYS: 0 ABSTAIN: 0 ABSENT: 0
Ayes: Hipple, Icenhour Jr, Larson, McGlennon, Sadler

At approximately 6:14 p.m., Mr. Icenhour adjourned the Board of Supervisors.
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Kenny Lamm, Fire Marshal

Elizabeth Parman, Assistant County Attorney

SUBJECT: Appointment and Authorization of Police Powers for Assistant Fire Marshal Jared Randall

Virginia Code § 27-36 and 27-34.2:1 allow the Board of Supervisors to appoint assistant fire marshals and
to authorize assistant fire marshals to have the same police powers as local law enforcement.

Jared Randall has completed those courses necessary to have police powers as provided in Virginia Code
§ 27-34.2:1. Fire Marshal Kenny Lamm requests that the Board appoint and authorize Jared Randall to have
police powers as provided in Virginia Code § 27-34.2:1.

Therefore, staff recommends approval of the attached resolution.

KL/LP/md
PolicePwr-AsstFM-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

APPOINTMENT AND AUTHORIZATION OF POLICE POWERS FOR

ASSISTANT FIRE MARSHAL JARED RANDALL

WHEREAS, §27-36 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended provides that the Board of Supervisors
may appoint one or more assistants, who, in the absence of the fire marshal, shall have
the powers and perform the duties of the fire marshal; and

WHEREAS, § 27-34.2:1 of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended provides that the Board of
Supervisors may authorize the local fire marshal and his assistants to have the same
police powers as a sheriff, police officer, or law enforcement officer; and

WHEREAS, Jared Randall has completed the minimum training and certification requirements of the
Department of Criminal Justice Services to have police powers as provided in § 27-34.2:1
of the Code of Virginia, 1950, as amended.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,
Virginia, does hereby appoint Jared Randall as an assistant fire marshal and authorizes
Assistant Fire Marshal Jared Randall to have those police powers provided in Virginia
Code § 27-34.2:1.

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES
ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON
Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE
Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

PolicePwr-AsstFM-res
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Patrick O. Teague, Director of Human Resources

SUBJECT: Authorization of Two Percent General Wage Increase

When COVID-19 began in March 2020, and due to the economic uncertainty of the pandemic, funding for
a general wage increase was removed from the Fiscal Year (FY) 2021 budget. Due to the numerous
measures taken by the County to curtail spending, the County’s finances are currently trending well, with
over $10 million being added to our Fund Balance at the end of FY 2020. This result was largely due to
staff’s actions as County employees have taken on many unexpected challenges this year while continuing
to provide outstanding service to our citizens. They have achieved this with less money in their budgets,
fewer coworkers, more concern for their health and safety, and an uncertain financial future.

James City County has recognized the need to provide a 2% General Wage Increase to maintain the market
competitiveness of the County’s compensation plan and to recognize staff for its efforts over the past year
while being fiscally prudent. This increase was approved at the November 10, 2020, James City County
Board of Supervisors meeting. It is important to extend this to staff who report directly to the Board, which
includes Scott A. Stevens, James City County Administrator, and Adam Kinsman, James City County
Attorney. The effective date would be January 1, 2021.

The estimated cost from January 1-June 30, 2021 is $4,300. The attached resolution authorizes the use of
Fund Balance for this purpose and authorizes the appropriation in the applicable departments.

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.

POT/md
GenWagelncr-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZATION OF TWO PERCENT GENERAL WAGE INCREASE

WHEREAS, James City County desires to maintain the market competitiveness of the County’s
Compensation Plan and to recognize staff for its efforts over the past year; and

WHEREAS, staff recommends a 2% General Wage Increase for the County Administrator and County
Attorney effective January 1, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the estimated cost from January 1-June 30, 2021 is $4,300.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,
Virginia, hereby approves a 2% General Wage Increase for the County Administrator
and the County Attorney effective January 1, 2021, and authorizes the use of the General
Fund’s fund balance for this purpose and to be appropriated in the applicable departments

for a total of $4,300.
Revenue:
Fund Balance $4.,300

Expenditures:

Personnel $4,300

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES
ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON
Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE
Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

GenWagelncr-res
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Ryan T. Ashe, Fire Chief

SUBJECT: Authorization for Four Firefighter Over-Hire Positions

The Fire Department currently has multiple members who are either eligible, or will be eligible for
retirement in the upcoming years. In many cases, the incumbent provides advance notice of retirement, but
Fire is unable to fill the incumbent’s position until he or she has separated. This negatively affects Fire’s
operational staffing during the time that the new-hire is in introductory training. Although Section 2.8G of
the James City County Personnel Policy Procedure Manual authorizes the County Administrator to grant a
30-day overlap, this time period is often inadequate to allow the replacement employee to enter the regional
fire academy at its start. Thus, Fire must often wait up to six months until the beginning of the next fire
academy to begin the replacement process.

Currently, Fire has one new recruit on Military Leave while he is on deployment with his National Guard
unit. In addition, several other members also serve as guardsmen or reservists, and have the potential to
deploy. In the case of an extended deployment, a similar loss of operational staffing results. Fire also has
limited ability to make up for the shortage in the interim.

The attached resolution, if approved, would establish up to four over-hire positions for the Fire Department.
In the case of a pending retirement or other advance-notice separation, Fire would be granted an over-hire
for up to 135 days. A 60-day over-hire would be authorized in the case of pending military deployment.
The over-hire positions would only be filled on an as-needed basis. In the case that the pending separation
is cancelled, or the deployed member returns, the total number of employees would be decreased to
previously authorized levels at the first available naturally occurring vacancy. The Board of Supervisors
passed a similar resolution in September 2017 for the Police Department. The attached resolution maintains
consistency with Police’s current practice. Fire will also consult with County Administration, Human
Resources, and Financial and Management Services to determine budget availability and necessity if filling
these positions.

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution.

RTA/mb
FireOverHirePos-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZATION FOR FOUR FIREFIGHTER OVER-HIRE POSITIONS

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Fire Department currently has one recruit on extended deployment with the Virginia
National Guard, as well as multiple other members who serve as guardsmen and
reservists with the potential to deploy; and

multiple members are currently, or will be eligible for retirement in coming years with
their replacements typically taking six months to one year to complete Introductory Fire
and Emergency Medical Training; and

the resulting reduction in operational staffing during the transitional periods adversely
affects service delivery; and

funds are available within the Fire Department’s personnel budget to create four full-
time over-hire positions.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,

Virginia, hereby establishes four full-time regular Firefighter over-hire positions to only
be used on an as-needed basis when an incumbent employee is pending military
activation, retirement, or other advance-notice separation. Each over-hire position will
be implemented no more than 60 days in advance in the case of military activation, and
no more than 135 days in advance in the case of retirement or other separation.

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES

ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON

Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE

Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of

December, 2020.

FireOverHirePos-res
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Patrick N. Page, Director of Information Resources Management

SUBIJECT: Grant Award - Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act Broadband
Funding - $88,196

The Governor’s Office of Virginia through the Chief Broadband Advisor has granted Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act funding to local jurisdictions specifically to prevent, prepare
for, and respond to the Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) to provide broadband infrastructure for
distance learning. The County has been allocated $88,196 from the Coronavirus Relief Fund through the
Commonwealth of Virginia.

The Governor’s Office restricted the use of CARES Act broadband funding to expenses related to distance
learning. The allocation will be used for expenditures related to the construction of communication cabling
and the establishment of internet services meeting educational standards. Cox Communications partnered
with James City County and Williamsburg-James City County Schools to identify student locations where
cabling infrastructure costs prohibited access to services.

The County has certified that the amount awarded would only be used for allowable expenses of
broadband infrastructure and that any funding not used for eligible expenses would be paid back to the
Commonwealth of Virginia. In addition, the County agreed to maintain all records related to these
expenses. All funds must be paid out by December 30, 2020.

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors adopt the attached resolution to authorize acceptance of

these CARES Act broadband funds and appropriate the use of these funds to the Special Projects/Grants
Fund for eligible expenses.

PNP/nb
GA-CARESbrdband-mem

Attachment



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

RESOLUTION

GRANT AWARD - CORONAVIRUS AID, RELIEF, AND

ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT BROADBAND FUNDING - $88.196

James City County has been awarded a distribution of Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security (CARES) Act funding for broadband expansion in the amount of
$88,196 from the Commonwealth of Virginia to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19); and

the County seeks to provide communication infrastructure to facilitate distance learning
for students where construction is cost prohibitive; and

the County agrees to abide by the stipulations provided by the Commonwealth of
Virginia regarding the allowable uses of these funds and the necessary recordkeeping;

and

no local match is required.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,

Virginia, hereby authorizes acceptance of these funds and the budget appropriation of
$88,196 to Special Projects/Grants Fund as shown below.

Revenue:

Federal - CARES Act Broadband Funds $88,196
Expenditure:

CARES Act Broadband Funds $88,196

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES

ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON

Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE

Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of

December, 2020.

GA-CARESbrdband-res
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Grace A. Boone, Director of General Services

SUBJECT: Grant Award - Litter Prevention and Recycling Program - $12,632

The Fiscal Year 2021 Virginia Department of Environmental Quality Litter Prevention and Recycling Grant
was awarded to James City County in the amount of $12,632.

The attached resolution appropriates the grant amount of $12,632 to the Special Projects/Grants Fund in
support of the litter prevention, beautification, and recycling programs.

The Litter Grant Fund is appropriated by the James City Clean County Commission to educate and
encourage residents, local businesses, and industry to enhance both the physical and visual environment.
Examples of annual programs and activities supported by the Litter Grant include the Annual Spring
Cleanup, Community Outreach and Environmental Education, Household and Hazardous Chemical
Collections, and Computer Recycling.

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.

GAB/md
GA-LitterPrev21-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

GRANT AWARD - LITTER PREVENTION AND RECYCLING PROGRAM - $12,632

WHEREAS, the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality has awarded James City County Solid
Waste Division a Litter Prevention and Recycling Grant in the amount of $12,632; and

WHEREAS, no local match is required.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,
Virginia, hereby authorizes acceptance of this grant and the following appropriation to
the Special Projects/Grants Fund:

Revenue:

State - Fiscal Year 2021 Litter Control Grant $12.632

Expenditure:

Fiscal Year 2021 Litter Control Grant 12,63

:

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES

ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON

Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE

Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

GA-LitterPrev21-res
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Rebecca Vinroot, Director of Social Services

SUBIJECT: Grant Award - Housing and Urban Development Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and
Economic Security Act Housing Assistance Payments Allocation - $47,643

The James City County Social Services Housing Unit (Housing) is designated as a Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) Approved Public Housing Agency (PHA) responsible for administering the Housing
Choice Voucher (HCV) Program. The HCV Program has been directly administered by James City County
through the Office of Housing (and Community Development, prior to July 1, 2016) since 2001. On
November 4, 2020, James City County was awarded $47,643 in Housing Assistance Payment funding under
the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) to be used for per unit cost increases
of the program. The period of availability for expenditure of these funds, awarded under Public and Indian
Housing Notice (PIH) Notice 2020-17, is December 31, 2021.

In accordance with PIH 2020-17: CARES Act - HCV Program Housing Assistance Payments Supplemental
Funding, “is available for PHAs that either (1) experience a significant increase in voucher PUC [per unit
cost] due to “Extraordinary Circumstances”, or (2) despite taking reasonable cost saving measures, as
determined by the Secretary, would otherwise be required to terminate rental assistance for families as a
result of insufficient funding (herein referred to as Shortfall Funds).”

Housing proposes to use the funding to adjust the current Payment Standard for all unit sizes effective
January 1, 2021. Current Payment Standards are at 90.4% of the Fiscal Year 2021 Fair Market Rent (FMR)
for the Virginia Beach-Norfolk-Newport News, VA-NC HUD Metro FMR Area. As a result of increases
to the FMR along with recent rent increases in James City County, Housing has seen a PUC increase of
approximately 7% from July 2019 to September 2020. This increase means an average PUC increase of
$43.62. These funds will allow Housing to offset this increase and help reduce the financial burden to our
Low-and-Moderate Income (LMI) program participants.

Staff recommends that the Board of Supervisors adopt the attached resolution to the Housing and
Neighborhood Development Fund and authorize acceptance and use of these Housing Assistance Payment
funds to reduce the financial burden to LMI households during the COVID-19 crisis.

RV/md
GA-HUDCARESHAP-mem

Attachments:
1. Resolution
2. Notice of Award



RESOLUTION

GRANT AWARD - HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT CORONAVIRUS AID,

RELIEF, AND ECONOMIC SECURITY ACT HOUSING ASSISTANCE

PAYMENTS ALLOCATION - $47.643

WHEREAS, the James City County Social Services Housing Unit (Housing) is designated as a
Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Approved Public Housing Agency (PHA)
responsible for administering the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program; and

WHEREAS, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development has awarded the County
$47,643 in additional Housing Assistance Payments funding under the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) for Per Unit Cost (PUC) increases due
to “Extraordinary Circumstances” through December 31, 2021; and

WHEREAS, the funding will be used to adjust the current Payment Standard for all unit sizes; to offset
the PUC increase; and to help reduce the financial burden to our Low- and Moderate-
Income program participants.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,
Virginia, hereby authorizes acceptance of this award and the following budget
appropriation to the Housing and Neighborhood Development Fund:

Revenue:
Federal - HUD CARES Act Funding $47,643

Expenditure:
HCV Program Housing Assistance Payments $47,643

James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES
ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON
Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE
Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

GA_HUDCARESHAP-res
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I HHH U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
I £ WASHINGTON, DC 20410-5000
&

OFFICE OF PUBLIC AND INDIAN HOUSING

November 4, 2020

Dear Executive Director

Subject: Housing Assistance Payments (HAP) Allocation from the Coronavirus Aid, Relief,
and Economic Security Act (CARES Act).

The Office of Housing VVoucher Programs (OHVP) has evaluated and approved your
public housing agency (PHA) CARES Act HAP funding application for per unit cost increases
based on the criteria provided in PIH Notice 2020-17. This HAP award is described in the
attached Enclosure and is for the HCV Program only.

Your PHA must follow the accounting guidance provided in PIH Notice 2020-24 for
Financial Data Schedule reporting. Also, monthly housing assistance payments (HAP) expenses
covered by CARES Act HAP awards must be included in the regular HAP expense fields so that
the expenses are available for the calculation of future HAP monthly disbursements under cash
management procedures (PIH Notice 2017-06), and for Housing Choice Voucher (HCV)
Program HAP renewal calculations.

Additionally, HUD is still working on the CARES Act Portal that will be the repository
of CARES Act funding expenditures. In the meantime, PHAs must continue tracking CARES
Act HAP expenses separately for reconciliation purposes because unspent funds will not run
through the PHA’ restricted net position (RNP). Unspent funds will be returned to HUD after
the period of availability, which is December 31, 2021.

Please direct any questions concerning this allocation to contact your Financial Analyst at
the Financial Management Center.

Thank you for your continued participation in the HCV and/or Mainstream Programs to
serve the needs of your community during this critical time.

Sincerely,

Miguel A. Fontanez

Director

Housing Voucher Financial
Management Division

www.hud.gov espanol.hud.gov



CY 2020 Extraordinary Circumstances
HCV Program

PHA NUMBER: [vaoa1

PHA NAME:

|JAMES CITY COUNTY HSG & COMMUNITY DEVELOPEMENT

PRIORITY DETERMINATION:
Calculated Reserve Balance
1 Month HAP:
1 Month HAP + 2%:
Estimated Months of HAP Reserve:

PUC VARIANCE
Data Source:
Most Recent Month Submitted:
Most Recent Month Expense:
Most Recent Month UML:
Most Recent Month PUC:
2020 HAP PUC:
PUC Ratio:
PUC Variance:

FUNDING AWARD:
PUC Variance:
multiplied by Most Recent Month UML:
multiplied by 12 months:

COMMENTS:

PRIORITY
S 112,349
$ 89,217
$ 91,001
1.23
PHA
September 2020
S 89,217
138
S 646.50
$ 617.73
1.047
S 28.77
S 28.77
138
$ 47,643
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MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: M. Douglas Powell, General Manager, James City Service Authority

SUBJECT: Participation in the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act Delinquent Utility
Bill Grant Program as Fiscal Agent

In mid-November a provision was approved in the State Appropriation Act entitled the COVID-19
Municipal Utility Relief Program (the Program). This program applies to any utility providing electric, gas,
water, or wastewater service that is owned by a city, county, town, authority, or other political subdivision
of the Commonwealth. The program will be administered by the State Corporation Commission (SCC) and
the Virginia Department of Housing and Community Development (DHCD).

Under the program, $100 million in Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act funding is
available to utilities to assist customers who have been impacted by COVID-19 with delinquent utility bills.
The SCC developed an application whereby interested municipal utilities may submit an application based
on their arrearages over 30 days and 60 days as of October 31, 2020. An application has been submitted on
behalf of the James City Service Authority (JCSA).

The SCC will determine the amount that each municipal utility is eligible to receive as a proportion of all
statewide arrearages. JCSA is ineligible to receive the funds directly and requires James City County to
serve as fiscal agent to receive and disburse the grant funds.

For a customer to be eligible, they must self-certify that they are delinquent due to a hardship created by
COVID-19. Utilities will apply funds received to the accounts of eligible customers. Funds must be spent
by January 29, 2021.

Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution authorizing: the County’s participation in the grant
program as a partner with the Authority, required certifications to the SCC and DHCD that grant funds will
be used only in accordance with state and federal law, and execution of an agreement with JCSA whereby
the County will serve as fiscal agent for the program.

MDP/nb
CARESGrnt-JCC-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

PARTICIPATION IN CARES ACT DELINQUENT UTILITY BILL GRANT PROGRAM

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

AS FISCAL AGENT FOR THE JAMES CITY SERVICE AUTHORITY

federal Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act) funds are
available through the State Corporation Commission (SCC) and the Virginia Department
of Housing and Community Development (DHCD) to assist municipal utility customers
experiencing economic hardship due to delinquent utility bills caused by the COVID-19
Pandemic; and

the James City Service Authority (the “Authority”) is eligible to participate in the
program as a municipal utility and the Board of Supervisors desires to assist the
Authority’s participation in order to provide economic relief to eligible customers; and

the grant program requires the Authority to establish a partnership with a city or county
that will act as the fiscal agent to receive the funds from the Department of Accounts
(DOA) and the city or county will then forward funds to the Authority to implement the
program for its customers.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia,

that James City County shall act as fiscal agent for the James City Service Authority for
the purposes of receiving and transferring state and federal coronavirus relief customer
assistance funding offered through the SCC and the DHCD. In furtherance thereof, the
County Administrator is authorized and directed to execute necessary documents and
undertake all reasonable efforts and required processes to assist and partner with the
James City Service Authority to request and disperse any coronavirus relief customer
assistance funding, including the establishment of a COVID-19 Utility Assistance
account.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, does

hereby authorize the County Administrator to make certifications to the SCC and the
DHCD necessary to receive coronavirus relief fund payments, including that any funds
awarded will be used only in accordance with state and federal law.



James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES
ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON
Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE
Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

CARESGrnt-JCC-res



AGENDA ITEM NO. 1.1.

ITEM SUMMARY
DATE: 12/8/2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Patrick N. Page - Director of Information Resources Management
SUBJECT: Authorization for an Application Support Analyst Position, Transfer of Funds from the
Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund, and Appropriation in the General Fund
ATTACHMENTS:
Description Type
Memorandum Cover Memo
o Resolution Resolution
REVIEWERS:
Department Reviewer Action Date
Information Resources Page, Patrick Approved 11/18/2020 - 9:46 AM
Financial Management Cochet, Cheryl Approved 12/1/2020 - 10:53 AM
Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 12/1/2020 - 10:55 AM
Legal Review Kinsman, Adam Approved 12/1/2020 - 10:56 AM
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 11:09 AM
Board Secretary Purse, Jason Approved 12/1/2020 - 11:18 AM
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 2:26 PM



MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 8, 2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Patrick N. Page, Director of Information Resources Management

SUBJECT: Authorization for an Application Support Analyst Position, Transfer of Funds from the
Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund, and Appropriation in the General Fund

The Information Resources Management (IRM) Department is currently replacing the financial software
system for Financial and Management Services (FMS). The success of the project is vital as every County
department utilizes the financial software as well as fiscal agencies supported by FMS. Among other things,
it is the primary system used for accounting, purchasing, and budgetary control.

At this stage of the project, we are preparing to go-live with the MUNIS system and day-to-day operational
support of the system is scheduled to start in the March/April 2021 timeframe. Included in the capital budget
for this project is funding for temporary help to assist with daily responsibilities, allowing the core staff to
focus on successfully implementing the new software (MUNIS). IRM is seeking approval for an
Application Support Analyst position from this source of funds to provide support to FMS and General
Services, as both will heavily utilize the system. This position was requested in the FY 2021/2022 budget
and approved by Human Resources; however, the position was not funded due to COVID-19 financial
limitations. Approval and funding of this position at this time will allow the smooth transition to operational
support and allow the project manager currently assigned to this project to move to the next project,
Computer Aided Dispatch (CAD) and Police Records Management (RMS).

Staff has determined the best course of action is to fund the estimated cost of the position of $48,000 for
the remainder of FY 2021 utilizing the financial software replacement capital budget. Approval of this
request requires adoption of a resolution creating the position, transferring the funding from the Capital
Projects Fund to the General Fund, and appropriating those funds in the General Fund.

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.

PNP/nb
AuthAppSuppFTE-mem

Attachment



RESOLUTION

AUTHORIZATION FOR AN APPLICATION SUPPORT ANALYST POSITION, TRANSFER

OF FUNDS FROM THE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND TO THE GENERAL FUND,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

AND APPROPRIATION IN THE GENERAL FUND

James City County’s Information Resources Management Department includes
Application Analyst services for the County and its fiscal agencies; and

the County is implementing a new financial software this fiscal year in support of the
Financial and Management Services and General Services Departments; and

it has become apparent that more resources are needed to ensure a successful financial
software implementation while preparing for the next system replacements; and

approval for a full-time Application Support Analyst for the remainder of Fiscal Year
2021 is estimated at $48,000 and there are sufficient funds available in the financial
software replacement project in the Capital Projects Fund.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of James City County,

Virginia, hereby approves the full-time position of the Application Support Analyst,
authorizes the transfer of $48,000 from the Capital Projects Fund to the General Fund
for the position, and appropriates these funds in the General Fund for Fiscal Year 2021
as follows:

Revenue:

Transfer from Capital Projects Fund $48.000

Expenditures:

Information Technology - Core Applications

Salary $33,000
Fringe Benefits 15,000

Total $48,000



James O. Icenhour, Jr.
Chairman, Board of Supervisors

VOTES
ATTEST: AYE NAY ABSTAIN
SADLER
MCGLENNON
LARSON
Teresa J. Fellows HIPPLE
Deputy Clerk to the Board ICENHOUR

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors of James City County, Virginia, this 8th day of
December, 2020.

AuthAppSuppFTE-res



AGENDA ITEM NO. L.1.

ITEM SUMMARY
DATE: 12/8/2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Teresa J. Fellows, Deputy Clerk
SUBJECT: Consideration of a personnel matter, the appointment of individuals to County Boards

and/or Commission pursuant to Section 2.2-3711(A)(1) of the Code of Virginia

REVIEWERS:
Department Reviewer Action Date
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 4:31 PM



AGENDA ITEM NO. L.2.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 12/8/2020

TO: The Board of Supervisors

FROM: Tom Leininger, Staff Liaison to the Historic Triangle Bicycle Advisory Committee

SUBJECT: Re-Appointment to the Historic Triangle Bicycle Advisory Committee
ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type

REVIEWERS:
Department Reviewer Action Date
Planning Holt, Paul Approved 11/20/2020 - 10:18 AM
Development Management  Holt, Paul Approved 11/20/2020 - 10:18 AM
Publication Management Daniel, Martha Approved 11/20/2020 - 10:23 AM
Legal Review Kinsman, Adam Approved 11/20/2020 - 1:04 PM
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 11:10 AM
Board Secretary Purse, Jason Approved 12/1/2020 - 11:21 AM
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 2:27 PM



AGENDA ITEM NO. L.3.

ITEM SUMMARY

DATE: 12/8/2020

TO: The Board of Supervisors

FROM: Michael Woolson, Senior Watershed Planner

SUBJECT: Appointment to the Chesapeake Bay Board and Wetlands Board
ATTACHMENTS:

Description Type
REVIEWERS:
Department Reviewer Action Date
Engineering & Resource g Toni Approved 11/17/2020 - 9:24 AM
rotection

Development Management — Holt, Paul Approved 11/17/2020 - 3:45 PM
Publication Management Burcham, Nan Approved 11/17/2020 - 3:48 PM
Legal Review Kinsman, Adam Approved 11/18/2020 - 11:48 AM
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 11/18/2020 - 12:39 PM
Board Secretary Purse, Jason Approved 12/1/2020 - 11:17 AM

Board Secretary

Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 2:25 PM



DATE:

TO:

FROM:

SUBIJECT:

REVIEWERS:
Department
Board Secretary

AGENDA ITEM NO. LA4.

ITEM SUMMARY

12/8/2020
The Board of Supervisors
Jason Purse, Assistant County Administrator

Discussion or consideration of the acquisition of real property for a public purpose, or
of the disposition of publicly held real property, including but not limited to the terms of
the lease of WISC, where discussion in an open meeting would adversely affect the
bargaining position or negotiating strategy of the public body, pursuant to Section 2.2-
3711 (A)(3) of the Code of Virginia

Reviewer Action Date
Fellows, Teresa Approved 12/1/2020 - 4:36 PM



AGENDA ITEM NO. M.1.

ITEM SUMMARY
DATE: 12/8/2020
TO: The Board of Supervisors
FROM: Teresa J. Fellows, Deputy Clerk

SUBJECT: Adjourn until 4 p.m. on January 4, 2021 for the Organizational Meeting

REVIEWERS:
Department Reviewer Action Date
Board Secretary Fellows, Teresa Approved 11/30/2020 - 10:16 AM
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